
(TENTATIVE) BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS REGULAR MEETING 

 

November 01, 2022 – 5:00 PM 

Effingham County Administrative Complex 

804 South Laurel Street, Springfield GA 31329 

 

The Georgia Conflict of Interest in Zoning Action Statue (O.C.G.A. §§ 36-67A-1 et seq.) requires disclosure of certain 
campaign contributions made by applicants for rezoning actions and by opponents of rezoning application.  A rezoning 
applicant or opponent of a rezoning application must disclose contributions or gifts which in aggregate total $250.00 or 
more if made within the last two years to a current member of Effingham County Planning Board, Board of Commissioners, 
or other Effingham County official who will consider the application.  The campaign contribution disclosure requirement 
applies to an opponent of a rezoning application who publishes his or her opposition by appearance before the Planning 
Board or Board of Commissioners or by any other oral or written communication to a member or members of the Planning 
Board or Board of Commissioners.  Disclosure must be reported to the Board of Commissioners by applicants within ten 
(10) days after the rezoning application is filed and by opponents at least five (5) days prior to the first hearing by the 
Planning Board.  Any person knowing failing to comply with these requirements shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. 
 
“Individuals with disabilities who require special needs to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have 
questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities should contact the County Clerk at 912-754-2123 
promptly to afford the County time to create reasonable accommodations for those persons.” 

**PLEASE TURN OFF YOUR CELL PHONE 
 

Agenda 

Watch us live on our YouTube page:  

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC9wRzS6f2pHHZG3IgRk3OUQ 
 

I. Call to Order 

II. Roll Call 

III. Invocation 

IV. Pledge to the American Flag 

V. Agenda Approval - Consideration of a resolution to approve the agenda 

VI. Minutes - Consideration to approve the October 18, 2022 regular commission meeting 
minutes 

VII. Public Comments - Comments shall pertain to the agenda items only.  Should you wish to 
make remarks, clearly state your full name into the microphone before commencing to speak 

VIII. Correspondence - Documents from this meeting are located in the Clerk's Office and on the 
Board of Commissioner's website. 

IX. Appearance - 5:15 pm 

Residents of Lower Ferry Road to discuss the road condition 

X. Consent Agenda - This section shall include all routine items for which there will be no 
discussion.  Should a need arise for a debate, the item can be moved to the appropriate area 
of the agenda 

 

 

1



(Tentative) Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting – November 01, 2022 

1. [2022-575 Plan] 

Consideration to approve to ratify and affirm a Recruitment Marketing Plan with WTOC 
for recruitment of firefighters  

2. [2022-576 Purchase Order] 

Consideration to approve to ratify and affirm Enterprise vehicle orders for the Effingham 
County Sheriff Office 

3. [2022-577 Agreement] Alison Bruton 

Consideration to approve to renew an Agreement between the Georgia Department of 
Human Services, Division of Family and Children Services related to low-income 
assistance with water and wastewater services  

XI. Old Business 

1. [2022-520 Public Hearing] Teresa Concannon 

The Planning Board recommends denying an application by Cindy Howze as Agent 
for Ansgarhay, LLC to rezone 72.15 acres located at 108 Godley Road from AR-1 to I-1, 
to allow for future industrial use Road [Map# 419 Parcel# 1A] in the First & Second 
Districts (this item was postponed 09/06/2022) 

2. [2022-521 Second Reading] 

Consideration to approve the Second Reading of an application by Cindy Howze as 
Agent for Ansgarhay, LLC to rezone 72.15 acres located at 108 Godley Road from AR-
1 to I-1, to allow for future industrial use Road [Map# 419 Parcel# 1A] in the First & 
Second Districts (this item was postponed 09/06/2022) 

3. [2022-537 Ordinance] Teresa Concannon 

Consideration to approve the First Reading to amend Article II – Definitions; Section 
5.6. R-3 Multifamily; and Section 5.8. R-6 Single Family Residential; and add a new zoning 
district, R-5 Single family Traditional Neighborhood Design to the Effingham County Code 
of Ordinances (this item was postponed 10/18/2022) 

XII. New Business 

1. [2022- 578 Proclamation] Stephanie Johnson 

Consideration to approve a Proclamation celebrating November 6, 2022 as Retired 
Educators Day 

2. [2022-579 Resolution] Tim Callanan 

Consideration to approve Resolution# 048 to authorize a second amended and restated 
Intergovernmental Contract between Effingham County, Georgia and the Effingham 
County Hospital Authority and for other purposes  

3. [2022-580 Plat/Deed] Teresa Concannon 

Consideration to approve a Warranty Deed, Final Plat, and Infrastructure Agreement for 
Oglethorpe Landing Subdivision, Phase 1, consisting of 31 lots located off of Ebenezer 
Road. Map# 446 Parcel# 13 in the Fifth District 

 

 

2



(Tentative) Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting – November 01, 2022 

4. [2022-581 Job Descriptions] Sarah Mausolf 

Consideration to approve and publish new Job Descriptions for Geographical 
Information System (GIS)  

5. [2022-582 Insurance Renewal] Sarah Mausolf 

Consideration to approve to continue the Contract with Sun Life for stop loss insurance 
through 12/31/2023 

6. [2022-583 Study] Angela Stanley 

Consideration to approve the Old Augusta Road Corridor Study completed by Pond. 

7. [2022-584 Change Order] Alison Bruton 

Consideration to approve Change Order #3 for Task Order 22-006 with Pond & Company 
for the Stormwater Master Plan 

8. [2022-585 Change Order] Alison Bruton 

Consideration to approve Change Order #1 to Task Order 21-25-004 with Roberts Civil 
Engineering for the FDRE for Ash Roads Design and Construction Management  

9. [2022-586 Change Order] Alison Bruton  

Consideration to approve Change Order #1 to LMIG 2022 Support and CM Services 
Agreement with Roberts Civil Engineering 

10. [2022-587 Change Order] Alison Bruton  

Consideration to approve Change Order #1 for Task Order 22-25-006 for the TSPLOST 
Intersections Design and Construction Management with Roberts Civil Engineering 

11. [2022-588 Purchase Order] Alison Bruton  

Consideration to approve award of  PO 23-REQ-011 to Dobbs Equipment for the 
purchase of a tractor and boom ax for the Public Works Department 

12. [2022-589 Purchase Order] Alison Bruton 

Consideration to approve four (4) Purchase Orders for the purchase of equipment for 
the new fire engines 

13. [2022-590 Agreement] Mark Barnes 

Consideration to approve an amendment to the Coastal Incentive Grant Award 
Agreement for the stormwater master plan, extending the timeframe for master plan 
completion 

  

14. [2022-591 Resolution] Mark Barnes 

Consideration to approve Resolution# 022-049 to amend the Fiscal Year 2022 Budget 

15. [2022-592 Resolution] Stephanie Johnson 

Consideration to approve Resolution# 022-050 to appoint Scott Morgan to the Tax 
Assessor Board to fulfil the unexpired term of office for the Third District 

XIII. Reports from Commissioners & Administrative Staff 

XIV. Executive Session - Discussion of Personnel, Property and Pending Litigation 

3



(Tentative) Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting – November 01, 2022 

XV. Executive Session Minutes - No executive session was held, no minutes to be approved. 

XVI. Planning Board - 6:00 pm 

1. [2022-593 Public Hearing] Katie Dunnigan 

The Planning Board recommends approving an application by Allen Cote to rezone 
23.38 acres located at 110 Buford Hill Road from AR-2 to AR-1 to allow for the 
placement of a second home for an immediate family member  Map# 302 Parcel# 
15A in the First District 

2. [2022-594 Second Reading] 

Consideration to approve the Second Reading of an application by Allen Cote to rezone 
23.38 acres located at 110 Buford Hill Road from AR-2 to AR-1 to allow for the 
placement of a second home for an immediate family member  Map# 302 Parcel# 
15A in the First District 

3. [2022-595 Public Hearing] Katie Dunnigan 

The Planning Board recommends approving an application by Wendall A. Kessler as 
Agent for Amby Development to rezone 23.3 acres located off Old River Road from PD 
to AR-1 to allow for a home site Map# 329 Parcel# 26 in the First District 

4. [2022-596 Second Reading] 

Consideration to approve the Second Reading of an application by Wendall A. Kessler 
as Agent for Amby Development requests to rezone 23.3 acres located off Old River 
Road from PD to AR-1 to allow for a home site Map# 329 Parcel# 26 in the First 
District 

5. [2022-597 Public Hearing] Katie Dunnigan 

The Planning Board recommends approving an application by Effingham County 
Industrial Development Authority as Agent for Effingham County Board of 
Commissioners for a variance located on Savannah Portside Industrial Parkway from 
section 3.38.9 Freestanding Sign Size, to allow for a sign size in excess of the 100 square 
foot maximum for a sign on an I-1 zoned parcel  Map# 329D Parcel# 1C in the First 
District 

6. [2022-598 Second Reading]  

Consideration to approve the Second Reading of an application by Effingham County 
Industrial Development Authority as Agent for Effingham County Board of 
Commissioners requests a variance located on Savannah Portside Industrial 
Parkway from section 3.38.9 Freestanding Sign Size, to allow for a sign size in excess of 
the 100 square foot maximum for a sign on an I-1 zoned parcel Map# 329D Parcel# 
1C in the First District 

7. [2022-599 Public Hearing] Katie Dunnigan 

The Planning Board recommends approving an application by Scott B. Eishen to rezone 
4.72 acres located at 7083 Clyo-Kildare Road from AR-1 to AR-2 to allow for the 
separation of a home site Map# 229A Parcel# 1 in the Third District 

8. [2022-600 Second Reading] 

4



(Tentative) Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting – November 01, 2022 

Consideration to approve the Second Reading of an application by Scott B. Eishen 
requests to rezone 4.72 acres located at 7083 Clyo-Kildare Road from AR-1 to AR-2 to 
allow for the separation of a home site Map# 229A Parcel# 1 in the Third District 

9. [2022-601 Public Hearing] Katie Dunnigan 

The Planning Board recommends approving an application by Terry Griner to rezone 
0.23 acres located on Go Cart Road & Pound Road from B-3 to AR-1 to allow for a 
recombination of parcels Map# 296 Parcel# 46F in the Third District 

10. [2022-602 Second Reading] 

Consideration to approve the Second Reading of an application by Terry Griner 
requests to rezone 0.23 acres located on Go Cart Road & Pound Road from B-3 to AR-1 
to allow for a recombination of parcels Map# 296 Parcel# 46F in the Third District 

11. [2022-603 Public Hearing] Katie Dunnigan 

The Planning Board recommends approving an application by The McGraley Co. as 
Agent for Charles Layton to rezone 65.29 of 97.36 acres located on McCall Road and 
Racepath Road from AR-1 to I-1, to allow for a surface mine Map# 391 Parcels# 11C 
& 11F Map# 412 Parcel# 24 in the Fourth District 

12. [2022-604 Second Reading] 

Consideration to approve the Second Reading of an application by The McGraley Co. as 
Agent for Charles Layton requests to rezone 65.29 of 97.36 acres located on McCall 
Road from AR-1 to I-1, to allow for a surface mine Map# 391 Parcels# 11C & 11F Map# 
412 Parcel# 24 in the Fourth District 

13. [2022-605 Public Hearing] Katie Dunnigan 

The Planning Board recommends approving an application by The McGraley Co. as 
Agent for Richard Hall to rezone 27.17 of 64.8 acres located on Horse Pen Road from 
AR-1 to I-1, to allow for a surface mine Map# 394 Parcels# 29 & 30 in the Fourth 
District 

14. [2022-606 Second Reading] 

Consideration to approve the Second Reading of an application by The McGraley Co. as 
Agent for Richard Hall to rezone 27.17 of 64.8 acres located on Horse Pen Road from 
AR-1 to I-1, to allow for a surface mine Map# 394 Parcels# 29 & 30 in the Fourth 
District 

15. [2022-607 Public Hearing] Katie Dunigan 

The Planning Board recommends approval of an application by Daniel Ben-Yisrael as 
Agent for Effingham IDA for a Sketch Plan for a Parker's Convenience Store, located on 
Old River Road. Zoned B-3 [Map# 330 Parcel# 46] in the First District 

XVII. Adjournment 

5



Staff Report 

 
Subject:  Request to Ratify a Recruitment Marketing Plan 

Author:  Clint Hodges, Fire Chief & EMA Director 

Department:  55-FIRE 

Meeting Date: 11-01-2022 

Item Description: Request to Ratify a Recruitment Marketing Plan 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approving the ratification of a Recruitment 

Marketing Plan for recruitment of Firefighters. 

 

Executive Summary/Background:  

Effingham Fire has been extensively recruiting for new Firefighter positions for the next recruit 

school. In order to reach a larger audience, staff have discussed and implemented several 

recruitment campaigns in the community, at community events, and on social media.  

In order to reach a larger group of people, staff approached the County Manager about running a 

campaign via WTOC in the month of November. Staff met with WTOC staff, who developed a 

plan to reach the specific markets, in regards to age brackets and relative pay scale. 

This plan includes WTOC producing the commercials and digital advertising, and guarantees 61 

thirty second commercials per day for the month, targeted at specific times and types of 

programming to focus in on the target audience. Additionally, they will send out 25k targeted 

emails. 

 

Options/Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 

 

Recommended: Approval of the ratification of a Recruitment Marketing Plan for recruitment of     

       Firefighters. 

 

Other Alternative(s): Deny  

 

Department Review: Fire, Purchasing, County Manager 

 

Funding Source: Dept 55-FIRE, $5,125 

 

Attachments: Quote 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6

Item X. 1.



7

Item X. 1.



8

Item X. 1.



9

Item X. 1.



10

Item X. 1.



11

Item X. 1.



12

Item X. 1.



13

Item X. 1.



14

Item X. 1.



15

Item X. 1.



16

Item X. 1.



17

Item X. 1.



18

Item X. 1.



19

Item X. 1.



20

Item X. 1.



Staff Report 
Subject: Ratification of Approval of Enterprise vehicle orders for the ECSO 

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: ECSO 

Meeting Date: November 1, 2022  

Item Description: Approval of Enterprise vehicle orders for the ECSO 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approval for these vehicles.   

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 The vehicles included in this order are as follows: 

o 2023 Dodge Durango Pursuit (11 vehicles) 

 We won’t take possession until July 1, 2023 

o 2023 Ford Expedition (1 vehicle) 

 Expected delivery April/May 2023 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Ratification of Approval of Enterprise vehicle orders for multiple departments 

2. Take no action 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2 

Department Review: County Manager, Purchasing, Finance, Department Heads 

Funding Source: Budget amendment will be needed if vehicles received this fiscal year 

Attachments: 

1. Proposal P794284 – Durangos 

2. Proposal P781929 – Expedition 

 

21

Item X. 2.



Open-End (Equity) Lease Proposal Date: 10/12/2022

Prepared For: Effingham County Board of Commissioners (505556) Proposal Summary Proposal #: P794284

Prepared For: Bruton, Alison Quantity: 11

Driver Information Base Lease Payment Initial Charges Billed upon Delivery

Quote Driver ST Use Tax Rate

Expected
Annual
Mileage

Capitalized
Amount

(Delivered
Price per
Vehicle)

Lease
Term

Depr
Rate

Depr
Amount

Lease
Charge1

Monthly
Use Tax

Full
 Maint

 Program2
Additional
Services3

Total Monthly
Payment inc.
Tax and Addl

Services
Book Value at

Term
Initial

Charges4

License,
Registration,
Certain Other

Charges and Tax

Total Initial
Charges Billed
upon Delivery

2023 Dodge Durango Pursuit 4dr All-Wheel Drive - US           (0 P) Destroyer Gray Clearcoat  /  (0 I) Black w/Cloth Bucket Seats w/Shift Insert or Cloth Bucket Seats w/Rear Vinyl

6790332 GA 0.0000% 25,000 $48,848.00 60 1.6660% $813.81 $211.87 $0.00 $1,025.68 $19.40 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

6790333 GA 0.0000% 25,000 $48,848.00 60 1.6660% $813.81 $211.87 $0.00 $1,025.68 $19.40 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

6790334 GA 0.0000% 25,000 $48,848.00 60 1.6660% $813.81 $211.87 $0.00 $1,025.68 $19.40 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

6790335 GA 0.0000% 25,000 $48,848.00 60 1.6660% $813.81 $211.87 $0.00 $1,025.68 $19.40 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

2023 Dodge Durango Pursuit 4dr All-Wheel Drive - US           Silver Metallic Clearcoat  /  Black w/Cloth Bucket Seats w/Shift Insert or Cloth Bucket Seats w/Rear Vinyl

6790325 GA 0.0000% 25,000 $48,848.00 60 1.6660% $813.81 $211.87 $0.00 $1,025.68 $19.40 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

6790326 GA 0.0000% 25,000 $48,848.00 60 1.6660% $813.81 $211.87 $0.00 $1,025.68 $19.40 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

6790327 GA 0.0000% 25,000 $48,848.00 60 1.6660% $813.81 $211.87 $0.00 $1,025.68 $19.40 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

6790328 GA 0.0000% 25,000 $48,848.00 60 1.6660% $813.81 $211.87 $0.00 $1,025.68 $19.40 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

6790329 GA 0.0000% 25,000 $48,848.00 60 1.6660% $813.81 $211.87 $0.00 $1,025.68 $19.40 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

6790330 GA 0.0000% 25,000 $48,848.00 60 1.6660% $813.81 $211.87 $0.00 $1,025.68 $19.40 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

6790331 GA 0.0000% 25,000 $48,848.00 60 1.6660% $813.81 $211.87 $0.00 $1,025.68 $19.40 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

Total Monthly Payment for 11 vehicles: $11,282.48 Total Initial Charges for 11 vehicles: $429.00

%intial1

Initials

Printed On 10/12/2022 02:30:58 PM Page 1 of 12

22

Item X. 2.



1Monthly Lease Charge will be adjusted to reflect the interest rate on the delivery date (subject to a floor)

2See the following pages for details of Full Maintenance Service

3Additional Services may include Commercial Automotive Liability Enrollment or Physical Damage Management

4Excludes License, Registration, Certain Charges, and Tax

Current market and vehicle conditions may also affect value of vehicles.

Proposal is subject to Customer's Credit Approval.

Enterprise FM Trust will be the owner of the vehicles covered by this Proposal. Enterprise FM Trust (not Enterprise Fleet Management) will be the Lessor of such vehicles under the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement and shall have all rights and obligations of the Lessor
under the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement with respect to such vehicles.

Lessee hereby authorizes this vehicle order, agrees to lease the vehicles on the terms set forth herein and in the Master Equity Lease Agreement and agrees that Lessor shall have the right to collect damages in the event Lessee fails or refuses to accept delivery of the ordered
vehicles. Lessee certifies that it intends that more than 50% of the use of the vehicles is to be in a trade or business of the Lessee.

Lessee: Effingham County Board of Commissioners

%signature1 %date1

Signature Title Date

Open-End (Equity) Lease Proposal Date: 10/12/2022

Prepared For: Effingham County Board of Commissioners (505556) Proposal Summary Proposal #: P794284

Prepared For: Bruton, Alison Quantity: 11

Printed On 10/12/2022 02:30:58 PM Page 2 of 12

October 12, 2022
23

Item X. 2.



Open-End (Equity) Lease Proposal Date: 10/12/2022

Prepared For: Effingham County Board of Commissioners (505556) Capitalized Amount Calculations Proposal #: P794284

Prepared For: Bruton, Alison Quantity: 11

Quote
Capitalized Prices/
Billed on Delivery

Capitalized Price
of Vehicle1

Certain
Other

Charges

Initial
License &

Registration
Fee

Capitalized
Price

Reduction

Certain Other
Charges on

CPR

Gain
Applied

from Prior
Unit

Certain Other
Charges on

GOP
Tax on

Incentives
Aftermarket
Equipment

Courtesy
 Delivery /

Dealer
Prep Fee

Delivery
Charge

Other
Costs Total

2023 Dodge Durango Pursuit 4dr All-Wheel Drive - US           (0 P) Destroyer Gray Clearcoat  /  (0 I) Black w/Cloth Bucket Seats w/Shift Insert or Cloth Bucket Seats w/Rear Vinyl

6790332

Capitalized Price $48,648.00 $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,848.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

6790333

Capitalized Price $48,648.00 $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,848.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

6790334

Capitalized Price $48,648.00 $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,848.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

6790335

Capitalized Price $48,648.00 $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,848.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

2023 Dodge Durango Pursuit 4dr All-Wheel Drive - US           Silver Metallic Clearcoat  /  Black w/Cloth Bucket Seats w/Shift Insert or Cloth Bucket Seats w/Rear Vinyl

6790325

Capitalized Price $48,648.00 $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,848.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

6790326

Capitalized Price $48,648.00 $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,848.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

6790327

Capitalized Price $48,648.00 $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,848.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

6790328

Capitalized Price $48,648.00 $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,848.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

6790329

Capitalized Price $48,648.00 $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,848.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

%intial1

Initials

Printed On 10/12/2022 02:30:58 PM Page 3 of 12

24

Item X. 2.



Quote
Capitalized Prices/
Billed on Delivery

Capitalized Price
of Vehicle1

Certain
Other

Charges

Initial
License &

Registration
Fee

Capitalized
Price

Reduction

Certain Other
Charges on

CPR

Gain
Applied

from Prior
Unit

Certain Other
Charges on

GOP
Tax on

Incentives
Aftermarket
Equipment

Courtesy
 Delivery /

Dealer
Prep Fee

Delivery
Charge

Other
Costs Total

6790330

Capitalized Price $48,648.00 $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,848.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

6790331

Capitalized Price $48,648.00 $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,848.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

ALL TAX AND LICENSE FEES TO BE BILLED TO LESSEE AS THEY OCCUR.

1Capitalized price of vehicles may be adjusted to reflect final manufacturer’s invoice. Lessee hereby assigns to Lessor any manufacturer rebates and/or manufacturer incentives intended for the Lessee, which rebates and/or incentives have been used by Lessor to reduce the
capitalized price of the vehicles.

All language and acknowledgments contained in the signed proposal apply to all vehicles listed on the ‘Equity Lease Proposal Summary’ page of this document. In addition, you may incur additional fees required to register and operate these vehicles in accordance with various state,
county, and city titling, registration, and tax laws.

%intial1

Initials

Printed On 10/12/2022 02:30:58 PM Page 4 of 12

25

Item X. 2.



 

VEHICLE INFORMATION:

 

2023 Dodge Durango Pursuit 4dr All-Wheel Drive - US

Series ID: WDEE75

 

 

SELECTED COLOR:

 

 

SELECTED OPTIONS:

 

 

Quantity: 4

Pricing Summary:

INVOICE MSRP

Base Vehicle $ 41,228.00 $ 41,415.00

Total Options $ 5,765.00 $ 6,405.00

Destination Charge $ 1,595.00 $ 1,595.00

Total Price $ 48,588.00 $ 49,415.00

Exterior: PDN - (0 P) Destroyer Gray Clearcoat

Interior: X9 - (0 I) Black w/Cloth Bucket Seats w/Shift Insert or Cloth Bucket Seats w/Rear Vinyl

CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

22Z Quick Order Package 22Z NC NC

A7 Cloth Bucket Seats w/Rear Vinyl $ 121.00 $ 135.00

ADG Technology Group $ 2,412.00 $ 2,680.00

APA Monotone Paint Application STD STD

BCF 800 Amp Maintenance Free Battery Included Included

BGG Advanced Brake Assist Included Included

C1J #7 Seat Foam Cushion Included Included

CDS Vinyl 2nd Row Seat Included Included

CW6 Deactivate Rear Doors/Windows $ 77.00 $ 85.00

DFD Transmission: 8-Speed Automatic (8HP70) NC NC

DKA 2 Speed On Demand Transfer Case Included Included

DPM 3.09 Rear Axle Ratio Included Included

DR1 230MM Rear Axle Included Included

EZH Engine: 5.7L V8 HEMI MDS VVT $ 2,696.00 $ 2,995.00

JHC Rain Sensitive Windshield Wipers Included Included

LAS Lane Departure Warning Plus Included Included

LSU Full Speed Forward Collision Warning Plus Included Included

NAS 50 State Emissions NC NC

NEX Dual Rear Exhaust w/Bright Tips Included Included

NH3 Adaptive Cruise Control w/Stop Included Included

NHA Engine Oil Cooler Included Included

PDN_01 (0 P) Destroyer Gray Clearcoat $ 356.00 $ 395.00

TXQ Tires: 255/60R18 On/Off Road STD STD

UAM Radio: Uconnect 4 w/8.4" Display STD STD

WARANT FCA 5 yr/100,000 Mile Powertrain Limited Warranty NC NC

WBN Wheels: 18" x 8.0" Black Steel STD STD

X9_01 (0 I) Black w/Cloth Bucket Seats w/Shift Insert or Cloth Bucket Seats w/Rear Vinyl NC NC

XCS 4 Additional Key Fobs $ 103.00 $ 115.00

Z6J GVWR: 7,100 lbs Included Included

Printed On 10/12/2022 02:30:58 PM Page 5 of 12

26

Item X. 2.



CONFIGURED FEATURES:

 
Body Exterior Features:

      Number Of Doors  4

      Rear Cargo Door Type:  liftgate

      Driver And Passenger Mirror:  power remote heated manual folding side-view door mirrors

      Spoiler:  rear lip spoiler

      Door Handles:  body-coloured

      Front And Rear Bumpers:  body-coloured front and rear bumpers with coloured rub strip

      Rear Step Bumper:  rear step bumper

      Front License Plate Bracket:  front license plate bracket

      Body Material:  galvanized steel/aluminum body material

      :  class IV trailering with harness, hitch

      Grille:  black grille

      Exhaust Tip:  chrome tip exhaust

Convenience Features:

      Air Conditioning  automatic dual-zone front air conditioning

      Air Filter:  air filter

      Rear Air Conditioning:  rear air conditioning with separate controls

      Console Ducts:  console ducts

      Cruise Control:  cruise control with steering wheel controls, Adaptive Cruise Control w/Stop distance pacing

      Fuel Remote Release:  power fuel remote release

      Power Windows:  power windows with driver and passenger 1-touch down

      1/4 Vent Rear Windows:  power rearmost windows

      Remote Keyless Entry:  keyfob (all doors) remote keyless entry

      Illuminated Entry:  illuminated entry

      Integrated Key Remote:  integrated key/remote

      Auto Locking:  auto-locking doors

      Passive Entry:  proximity key

      Valet Key:  valet function

      Trunk FOB Controls:  keyfob trunk/hatch/door release

      Window FOB Controls:  remote window controls

      Steering Wheel:  steering wheel with manual tilting, manual telescoping

      Day-Night Rearview Mirror:  day-night rearview mirror

      Auto-dimming Rearview Mirror:  auto-dimming rearview mirror

      Driver and Passenger Vanity Mirror:  driver and passenger-side visor mirrors

      Front Cupholder:  front and rear cupholders

      Floor Console:  partial floor console with covered box

      Overhead Console:  mini overhead console with storage

      Glove Box:  illuminated locking glove box

      Driver Door Bin:  driver and passenger door bins

      Rear Door Bins:  rear door bins

      Driver Footrest:  driver's footrest

      Retained Accessory Power:  retained accessory power

      Power Accessory Outlet:  3 12V DC power outlets

Entertainment Features:

      radio  SiriusXM AM/FM/Satellite with seek-scan

      Radio Data System:  radio data system

      Voice Activated Radio:  voice activated radio

      Speed Sensitive Volume:  speed-sensitive volume

      Steering Wheel Radio Controls:  steering-wheel mounted audio controls

      Speakers:  6 speakers

      1st Row LCD:  2 1st row LCD monitor

      Wireless Connectivity:  wireless phone connectivity

      Antenna:  integrated roof antenna

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation Features:

      Headlamp Type  delay-off projector beam LED low/high beam headlamps

      Front Wipers:  variable intermittent rain detecting wipers speed-sensitive wipers wipers

      Rear Window wiper:  fixed interval rear window wiper

      Rear Window Defroster:  rear window defroster

Printed On 10/12/2022 02:30:58 PM Page 6 of 12

27

Item X. 2.



      Tinted Windows:  deep-tinted windows

      Dome Light:  dome light with fade

      Front Reading Lights:  front and rear reading lights

      Door Curb/Courtesy Lights:  2 door curb/courtesy lights

      Variable IP Lighting:  variable instrument panel lighting

      Display Type:  digital/analog appearance

      Tachometer:  tachometer

      Voltometer:  voltmeter

      Compass:  compass

      Exterior Temp:  outside-temperature display

      Low Tire Pressure Warning:  tire specific low-tire-pressure warning

      Park Distance Control:  ParkSense with Stop rear parking sensors

      Trip Computer:  trip computer

      Trip Odometer:  trip odometer

      Lane Departure Warning:  lane departure

      Blind Spot Sensor:  blind spot

      Forward Collision Alert:  forward collision

      Oil Pressure Gauge:  oil pressure gauge

      Water Temp Gauge:  water temp. gauge

      Oil Temp Gauge:  oil temperature gauge

      Transmission Oil Temp Gauge:  transmission oil temp. gauge

      Engine Hour Meter:  engine hour meter

      Clock:  in-radio display clock

      Systems Monitor:  systems monitor

      Check Control:  redundant digital speedometer

      Rear Vision Camera:  rear vision camera

      Oil Pressure Warning:  oil-pressure warning

      Water Temp Warning:  water-temp. warning

      Battery Warning:  battery warning

      Lights On Warning:  lights-on warning

      Low Fuel Warning:  low-fuel warning

      Low Washer Fluid Warning:  low-washer-fluid warning

      Bulb Failure Warning:  bulb-failure warning

      Door Ajar Warning:  door-ajar warning

      Trunk Ajar Warning:  trunk-ajar warning

      Brake Fluid Warning:  brake-fluid warning

      Turn Signal On Warning:  turn-signal-on warning

      Transmission Fluid Temperature Warning:  transmission-fluid-temperature warning

Safety And Security:

      ABS  four-wheel ABS brakes

      Number of ABS Channels:  4 ABS channels

      Brake Assistance:  brake assist

      Brake Type:  four-wheel disc brakes

      Vented Disc Brakes:  front and rear ventilated disc brakes

      Daytime Running Lights:  daytime running lights

      Spare Tire Type:  full-size spare tire

      Spare Tire Mount:  underbody mounted spare tire w/crankdown

      Driver Front Impact Airbag:  driver and passenger front-impact airbags

      Driver Side Airbag:  seat-mounted driver and passenger side-impact airbags

      Overhead Airbag:  curtain 1st, 2nd and 3rd row overhead airbag

      Knee Airbag:  knee airbag

      Occupancy Sensor:  front passenger airbag occupancy sensor

      Height Adjustable Seatbelts:  height adjustable front seatbelts

      Seatbelt Pretensioners:  front seatbelt pre-tensioners

      3Point Rear Centre Seatbelt:  3 point rear centre seatbelt

      Side Impact Bars:  side-impact bars

      Perimeter Under Vehicle Lights:  remote activated perimeter/approach lights

      Tailgate/Rear Door Lock Type:  tailgate/rear door lock included with power door locks

      Rear Child Safety Locks:  rear child safety locks

      Ignition Disable:  Sentry Key immobilizer

Printed On 10/12/2022 02:30:58 PM Page 7 of 12

28

Item X. 2.



      Panic Alarm:  panic alarm

      Electronic Stability:  electronic stability stability control with anti-roll

      Traction Control:  ABS and driveline traction control

      Front and Rear Headrests:  manual adjustable front head restraints with tilt

      Rear Headrest Control:  3 rear head restraints

      Break Resistant Glass:  break resistant glass

Seats And Trim:

      Seating Capacity  max. seating capacity of 5

      Front Bucket Seats:  front bucket seats

      Number of Driver Seat Adjustments:  8-way driver and passenger seat adjustments

      Reclining Driver Seat:  power reclining driver and manual reclining passenger seats

      Driver Lumbar:  power 4-way driver and passenger lumbar support

      Driver Height Adjustment:  power height-adjustable driver and passenger seats

      Driver Fore/Aft:  power driver and passenger fore/aft adjustment

      Driver Cushion Tilt:  power driver and passenger cushion tilt

      Fold Flat Passenger Seat:  fold flat passenger seat

      Front Centre Armrest Storage:  front centre armrest with storage

      Rear Seat Type:  rear 60-40 split-bench seat

      Rear Folding Position:  rear seat fold-forward seatback

      Rear Seat Armrest:  rear seat centre armrest

      Leather Upholstery:  cloth front seat upholstery

      Rear Seat Material:  vinyl rear seat upholstery

      Headliner Material:  full cloth headliner

      Floor Covering:  full vinyl/rubber floor covering

      Dashboard Console Insert, Door Panel Insert Combination:  leatherette instrument panel insert, door panel insert, console insert

      LeatherSteeringWheel:  leather/metal-look steering wheel

      Interior Accents:  chrome interior accents

      Cargo Space Trim:  carpet cargo space

      Trunk Lid:  plastic trunk lid/rear cargo door

      Cargo Tie Downs:  cargo tie-downs

      Cargo Light:  cargo light

      Concealed Cargo Storage:  concealed cargo storage

Standard Engine:

      Engine 360-hp, 5.7-liter V-8 (regular gas)

Standard Transmission:

      Transmission  8-speed automatic w/ OD and auto-manual

Printed On 10/12/2022 02:30:58 PM Page 8 of 12

29

Item X. 2.



 

VEHICLE INFORMATION:

 

2023 Dodge Durango Pursuit 4dr All-Wheel Drive - US

Series ID: WDEE75

 

 

SELECTED COLOR:

 

 

SELECTED OPTIONS:

 

 

Quantity: 7

Pricing Summary:

INVOICE MSRP

Base Vehicle $ 41,228.00 $ 41,415.00

Total Options $ 5,765.00 $ 6,405.00

Destination Charge $ 1,595.00 $ 1,595.00

Total Price $ 48,588.00 $ 49,415.00

Exterior: PSE - Silver Metallic Clearcoat

Interior: X9 - Black w/Cloth Bucket Seats w/Shift Insert or Cloth Bucket Seats w/Rear Vinyl

CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

22Z Quick Order Package 22Z NC NC

A7 Cloth Bucket Seats w/Rear Vinyl $ 121.00 $ 135.00

ADG Technology Group $ 2,412.00 $ 2,680.00

APA Monotone Paint Application STD STD

BCF 800 Amp Maintenance Free Battery Included Included

BGG Advanced Brake Assist Included Included

C1J #7 Seat Foam Cushion Included Included

CDS Vinyl 2nd Row Seat Included Included

CW6 Deactivate Rear Doors/Windows $ 77.00 $ 85.00

DFD Transmission: 8-Speed Automatic (8HP70) NC NC

DKA 2 Speed On Demand Transfer Case Included Included

DPM 3.09 Rear Axle Ratio Included Included

DR1 230MM Rear Axle Included Included

EZH Engine: 5.7L V8 HEMI MDS VVT $ 2,696.00 $ 2,995.00

JHC Rain Sensitive Windshield Wipers Included Included

LAS Lane Departure Warning Plus Included Included

LSU Full Speed Forward Collision Warning Plus Included Included

NAS 50 State Emissions NC NC

NEX Dual Rear Exhaust w/Bright Tips Included Included

NH3 Adaptive Cruise Control w/Stop Included Included

NHA Engine Oil Cooler Included Included

PSE_01 Silver Metallic Clearcoat $ 356.00 $ 395.00

TXQ Tires: 255/60R18 On/Off Road STD STD

UAM Radio: Uconnect 4 w/8.4" Display STD STD

WARANT FCA 5 yr/100,000 Mile Powertrain Limited Warranty NC NC

WBN Wheels: 18" x 8.0" Black Steel STD STD

X9_01 Black w/Cloth Bucket Seats w/Shift Insert or Cloth Bucket Seats w/Rear Vinyl NC NC

XCS 4 Additional Key Fobs $ 103.00 $ 115.00

Z6J GVWR: 7,100 lbs Included Included

Printed On 10/12/2022 02:30:58 PM Page 9 of 12

30

Item X. 2.



CONFIGURED FEATURES:

 
Body Exterior Features:

      Number Of Doors  4

      Rear Cargo Door Type:  liftgate

      Driver And Passenger Mirror:  power remote heated manual folding side-view door mirrors

      Spoiler:  rear lip spoiler

      Door Handles:  body-coloured

      Front And Rear Bumpers:  body-coloured front and rear bumpers with coloured rub strip

      Rear Step Bumper:  rear step bumper

      Front License Plate Bracket:  front license plate bracket

      Body Material:  galvanized steel/aluminum body material

      :  class IV trailering with harness, hitch

      Grille:  black grille

      Exhaust Tip:  chrome tip exhaust

Convenience Features:

      Air Conditioning  automatic dual-zone front air conditioning

      Air Filter:  air filter

      Rear Air Conditioning:  rear air conditioning with separate controls

      Console Ducts:  console ducts

      Cruise Control:  cruise control with steering wheel controls, Adaptive Cruise Control w/Stop distance pacing

      Fuel Remote Release:  power fuel remote release

      Power Windows:  power windows with driver and passenger 1-touch down

      1/4 Vent Rear Windows:  power rearmost windows

      Remote Keyless Entry:  keyfob (all doors) remote keyless entry

      Illuminated Entry:  illuminated entry

      Integrated Key Remote:  integrated key/remote

      Auto Locking:  auto-locking doors

      Passive Entry:  proximity key

      Valet Key:  valet function

      Trunk FOB Controls:  keyfob trunk/hatch/door release

      Window FOB Controls:  remote window controls

      Steering Wheel:  steering wheel with manual tilting, manual telescoping

      Day-Night Rearview Mirror:  day-night rearview mirror

      Auto-dimming Rearview Mirror:  auto-dimming rearview mirror

      Driver and Passenger Vanity Mirror:  driver and passenger-side visor mirrors

      Front Cupholder:  front and rear cupholders

      Floor Console:  partial floor console with covered box

      Overhead Console:  mini overhead console with storage

      Glove Box:  illuminated locking glove box

      Driver Door Bin:  driver and passenger door bins

      Rear Door Bins:  rear door bins

      Driver Footrest:  driver's footrest

      Retained Accessory Power:  retained accessory power

      Power Accessory Outlet:  3 12V DC power outlets

Entertainment Features:

      radio  SiriusXM AM/FM/Satellite with seek-scan

      Radio Data System:  radio data system

      Voice Activated Radio:  voice activated radio

      Speed Sensitive Volume:  speed-sensitive volume

      Steering Wheel Radio Controls:  steering-wheel mounted audio controls

      Speakers:  6 speakers

      1st Row LCD:  2 1st row LCD monitor

      Wireless Connectivity:  wireless phone connectivity

      Antenna:  integrated roof antenna

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation Features:

      Headlamp Type  delay-off projector beam LED low/high beam headlamps

      Front Wipers:  variable intermittent rain detecting wipers speed-sensitive wipers wipers

      Rear Window wiper:  fixed interval rear window wiper

      Rear Window Defroster:  rear window defroster

Printed On 10/12/2022 02:30:58 PM Page 10 of 12

31

Item X. 2.



      Tinted Windows:  deep-tinted windows

      Dome Light:  dome light with fade

      Front Reading Lights:  front and rear reading lights

      Door Curb/Courtesy Lights:  2 door curb/courtesy lights

      Variable IP Lighting:  variable instrument panel lighting

      Display Type:  digital/analog appearance

      Tachometer:  tachometer

      Voltometer:  voltmeter

      Compass:  compass

      Exterior Temp:  outside-temperature display

      Low Tire Pressure Warning:  tire specific low-tire-pressure warning

      Park Distance Control:  ParkSense with Stop rear parking sensors

      Trip Computer:  trip computer

      Trip Odometer:  trip odometer

      Lane Departure Warning:  lane departure

      Blind Spot Sensor:  blind spot

      Forward Collision Alert:  forward collision

      Oil Pressure Gauge:  oil pressure gauge

      Water Temp Gauge:  water temp. gauge

      Oil Temp Gauge:  oil temperature gauge

      Transmission Oil Temp Gauge:  transmission oil temp. gauge

      Engine Hour Meter:  engine hour meter

      Clock:  in-radio display clock

      Systems Monitor:  systems monitor

      Check Control:  redundant digital speedometer

      Rear Vision Camera:  rear vision camera

      Oil Pressure Warning:  oil-pressure warning

      Water Temp Warning:  water-temp. warning

      Battery Warning:  battery warning

      Lights On Warning:  lights-on warning

      Low Fuel Warning:  low-fuel warning

      Low Washer Fluid Warning:  low-washer-fluid warning

      Bulb Failure Warning:  bulb-failure warning

      Door Ajar Warning:  door-ajar warning

      Trunk Ajar Warning:  trunk-ajar warning

      Brake Fluid Warning:  brake-fluid warning

      Turn Signal On Warning:  turn-signal-on warning

      Transmission Fluid Temperature Warning:  transmission-fluid-temperature warning

Safety And Security:

      ABS  four-wheel ABS brakes

      Number of ABS Channels:  4 ABS channels

      Brake Assistance:  brake assist

      Brake Type:  four-wheel disc brakes

      Vented Disc Brakes:  front and rear ventilated disc brakes

      Daytime Running Lights:  daytime running lights

      Spare Tire Type:  full-size spare tire

      Spare Tire Mount:  underbody mounted spare tire w/crankdown

      Driver Front Impact Airbag:  driver and passenger front-impact airbags

      Driver Side Airbag:  seat-mounted driver and passenger side-impact airbags

      Overhead Airbag:  curtain 1st, 2nd and 3rd row overhead airbag

      Knee Airbag:  knee airbag

      Occupancy Sensor:  front passenger airbag occupancy sensor

      Height Adjustable Seatbelts:  height adjustable front seatbelts

      Seatbelt Pretensioners:  front seatbelt pre-tensioners

      3Point Rear Centre Seatbelt:  3 point rear centre seatbelt

      Side Impact Bars:  side-impact bars

      Perimeter Under Vehicle Lights:  remote activated perimeter/approach lights

      Tailgate/Rear Door Lock Type:  tailgate/rear door lock included with power door locks

      Rear Child Safety Locks:  rear child safety locks

      Ignition Disable:  Sentry Key immobilizer

Printed On 10/12/2022 02:30:58 PM Page 11 of 12

32

Item X. 2.



      Panic Alarm:  panic alarm

      Electronic Stability:  electronic stability stability control with anti-roll

      Traction Control:  ABS and driveline traction control

      Front and Rear Headrests:  manual adjustable front head restraints with tilt

      Rear Headrest Control:  3 rear head restraints

      Break Resistant Glass:  break resistant glass

Seats And Trim:

      Seating Capacity  max. seating capacity of 5

      Front Bucket Seats:  front bucket seats

      Number of Driver Seat Adjustments:  8-way driver and passenger seat adjustments

      Reclining Driver Seat:  power reclining driver and manual reclining passenger seats

      Driver Lumbar:  power 4-way driver and passenger lumbar support

      Driver Height Adjustment:  power height-adjustable driver and passenger seats

      Driver Fore/Aft:  power driver and passenger fore/aft adjustment

      Driver Cushion Tilt:  power driver and passenger cushion tilt

      Fold Flat Passenger Seat:  fold flat passenger seat

      Front Centre Armrest Storage:  front centre armrest with storage

      Rear Seat Type:  rear 60-40 split-bench seat

      Rear Folding Position:  rear seat fold-forward seatback

      Rear Seat Armrest:  rear seat centre armrest

      Leather Upholstery:  cloth front seat upholstery

      Rear Seat Material:  vinyl rear seat upholstery

      Headliner Material:  full cloth headliner

      Floor Covering:  full vinyl/rubber floor covering

      Dashboard Console Insert, Door Panel Insert Combination:  leatherette instrument panel insert, door panel insert, console insert

      LeatherSteeringWheel:  leather/metal-look steering wheel

      Interior Accents:  chrome interior accents

      Cargo Space Trim:  carpet cargo space

      Trunk Lid:  plastic trunk lid/rear cargo door

      Cargo Tie Downs:  cargo tie-downs

      Cargo Light:  cargo light

      Concealed Cargo Storage:  concealed cargo storage

Standard Engine:

      Engine 360-hp, 5.7-liter V-8 (regular gas)

Standard Transmission:

      Transmission  8-speed automatic w/ OD and auto-manual

Printed On 10/12/2022 02:30:58 PM Page 12 of 12

33

Item X. 2.



Open-End (Equity) Lease Proposal Date: 10/06/2022

Prepared For: Effingham Sheriff's Department (620358) Proposal Summary Proposal #: P781929

Prepared For: Harrington, Danny Quantity: 1

Driver Information Base Lease Payment Initial Charges Billed upon Delivery

Quote Driver ST Use Tax Rate

Expected
Annual
Mileage

Capitalized
Amount

(Delivered
Price per
Vehicle)

Lease
Term

Depr
Rate

Depr
Amount

Lease
Charge1

Monthly
Use Tax

Full
 Maint

 Program2
Additional
Services3

Total Monthly
Payment inc.
Tax and Addl

Services
Book Value at

Term
Initial

Charges4

License,
Registration,
Certain Other

Charges and Tax

Total Initial
Charges Billed
upon Delivery

2023 Ford Expedition Limited 4dr 4x2 - US           (0 P) Infinite Blue Metallic Tinted Clearcoat  /  (0 I) Sandstone w/Heated & Ventilated Leather Front Captain's Chairs

6768743 GA 0.0000% 25,000 $64,530.00 60 1.6660% $1,075.07 $311.32 $0.00 $1,386.39 $25.80 $1,500.00 $39.00 $1,539.00

Total Monthly Payment for 1 vehicles: $1,386.39 Total Initial Charges for 1 vehicles: $1,539.00

1Monthly Lease Charge will be adjusted to reflect the interest rate on the delivery date (subject to a floor)

2See the following pages for details of Full Maintenance Service

3Additional Services may include Commercial Automotive Liability Enrollment or Physical Damage Management

4Excludes License, Registration, Certain Charges, and Tax

Current market and vehicle conditions may also affect value of vehicles.

Proposal is subject to Customer's Credit Approval.

Enterprise FM Trust will be the owner of the vehicles covered by this Proposal. Enterprise FM Trust (not Enterprise Fleet Management) will be the Lessor of such vehicles under the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement and shall have all rights and obligations of the Lessor
under the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement with respect to such vehicles.

Lessee hereby authorizes this vehicle order, agrees to lease the vehicles on the terms set forth herein and in the Master Equity Lease Agreement and agrees that Lessor shall have the right to collect damages in the event Lessee fails or refuses to accept delivery of the ordered
vehicles. Lessee certifies that it intends that more than 50% of the use of the vehicles is to be in a trade or business of the Lessee.

Lessee: Effingham Sheriff's Department

%signature1 %date1

Signature Title Date

Printed On 10/06/2022 05:08:28 AM Page 1 of 7

October 6, 2022
34

Item X. 2.



Open-End (Equity) Lease Proposal Date: 10/06/2022

Prepared For: Effingham Sheriff's Department (620358) Capitalized Amount Calculations Proposal #: P781929

Prepared For: Harrington, Danny Quantity: 1

Quote
Capitalized Prices/
Billed on Delivery

Capitalized Price
of Vehicle1

Certain
Other

Charges

Initial
License &

Registration
Fee

Capitalized
Price

Reduction

Certain Other
Charges on

CPR

Gain
Applied

from Prior
Unit

Certain Other
Charges on

GOP
Tax on

Incentives
Aftermarket
Equipment

Courtesy
 Delivery /

Dealer
Prep Fee

Delivery
Charge

Other
Costs Total

2023 Ford Expedition Limited 4dr 4x2 - US           (0 P) Infinite Blue Metallic Tinted Clearcoat  /  (0 I) Sandstone w/Heated & Ventilated Leather Front Captain's Chairs

6768743

Capitalized Price $64,530.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $64,530.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,539.00

ALL TAX AND LICENSE FEES TO BE BILLED TO LESSEE AS THEY OCCUR.

1Capitalized price of vehicles may be adjusted to reflect final manufacturer’s invoice. Lessee hereby assigns to Lessor any manufacturer rebates and/or manufacturer incentives intended for the Lessee, which rebates and/or incentives have been used by Lessor to reduce the
capitalized price of the vehicles.

All language and acknowledgments contained in the signed proposal apply to all vehicles listed on the ‘Equity Lease Proposal Summary’ page of this document. In addition, you may incur additional fees required to register and operate these vehicles in accordance with various state,
county, and city titling, registration, and tax laws.

%intial1

Initials

Printed On 10/06/2022 05:08:28 AM Page 2 of 7

35

Item X. 2.



 

Open-End (Equity) Lease Proposal Date: 10/06/2022

Prepared For: Effingham Sheriff's Department (620358) Aftermarket & Other Costs Proposal #: P781929

Prepared For: Harrington, Danny Quantity: 1

Aftermarket Equipment

Quote Driver Description Capitalized Price Billed Price

2023 Ford Expedition Limited 4dr 4x2 - US           (0 P) Infinite Blue Metallic Tinted Clearcoat  /  (0 I) Sandstone w/Heated & Ventilated Leather Front Captain's Chairs

6768743 Custom Equipment 39 - Upfit $1,500.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment $0.00 $1,500.00

%intial1

Initials

Printed On 10/06/2022 05:08:28 AM Page 3 of 7

36

Item X. 2.



 

VEHICLE INFORMATION:

 

2023 Ford Expedition Limited 4dr 4x2 - US

Series ID: U1K

 

 

SELECTED COLOR:

 

 

SELECTED OPTIONS:

 

 

Quantity: 1

Pricing Summary:

INVOICE MSRP

Base Vehicle $ 64,430.00 $ 67,115.00

Total Options $ 507.00 $ 540.00

Destination Charge $ 1,795.00 $ 1,795.00

Total Price $ 66,732.00 $ 69,450.00

Exterior: AB - (0 P) Infinite Blue Metallic Tinted Clearcoat

Interior: EN - (0 I) Sandstone w/Heated & Ventilated Leather Front Captain's Chairs

CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

122WB 122" Wheelbase STD STD

19L Second Row Power Windows Removal $ -47.00 $ -50.00

301A Equipment Group 301A Mid Package NC NC

425 50 States Emissions System STD STD

44U Transmission: 10-Speed Automatic w/SelectShift Included Included

47B 1st & 2nd Row Floor Liners w/Carpet Mats $ 188.00 $ 200.00

52L Auto Start-Stop Removal $ -47.00 $ -50.00

62S SiriusXM w/360L Included Included

98D Hands-Free Foot-Activated Liftgate Feature Removal $ -52.00 $ -55.00

998 Engine: 3.5L EcoBoost V6 Included Included

AB_02 (0 P) Infinite Blue Metallic Tinted Clearcoat $ 465.00 $ 495.00

E Heated & Ventilated Leather Front Captain's Chairs Included Included

EN_01 (0 I) Sandstone w/Heated & Ventilated Leather Front Captain's Chairs NC NC

PAINT Monotone Paint Application STD STD

STDGV GVWR: 7,200 lbs Included Included

STDRD Radio: B&O Sound System by Bang & Olufsen Included Included

STDTR Tires: P275/55R20 AS BSW Included Included

STDWL Wheels: 20" Bright Machined Aluminum Included Included

SYNC SYNC 4 w/Enhanced Voice Recognition Included Included

X15 3.31 Axle Ratio Included Included

Printed On 10/06/2022 05:08:28 AM Page 4 of 7

37

Item X. 2.



CONFIGURED FEATURES:

 
Body Exterior Features:

      Number Of Doors  4

      Driver And Passenger Mirror:  auto dimming power remote heated power folding side-view door mirrors with turn signal indicator

      Spoiler:  rear lip spoiler

      Running Boards:  running boards

      Door Handles:  chrome

      Front And Rear Bumpers:  body-coloured front and rear bumpers with grey rub strip

      Rear Step Bumper:  rear step bumper

      Body Material:  galvanized steel/aluminum body material

      Roof Rack:  rails only

      :  class IV trailering with harness, hitch

      Body Side Cladding:  body-coloured bodyside cladding

      Grille:  chrome grille

Convenience Features:

      Air Conditioning  automatic dual-zone front air conditioning

      Air Filter:  air filter

      Rear Air Conditioning:  rear air conditioning with separate controls

      Power Sunroof:  front and rear express open sliding and tilting glass sunroof

      Sunroof Sunshade:  sunshade

      Seat Memory:  3 driver memory seat settings (includes door mirrors, steering wheel, pedals,)

      Cruise Control:  cruise control with steering wheel controls, distance pacing

      Trunk/Hatch/Door Remote Release:  power cargo access remote release

      Rear Window Remote Release:  keyfob rear window remote release

      Power Windows:  power windows with driver and passenger 1-touch down

      1/4 Vent Rear Windows:  power rearmost windows

      Remote Keyless Entry:  keyfob (all doors) remote keyless entry

      Illuminated Entry:  illuminated entry

      Key Pad:  keypad locking

      Integrated Key Remote:  integrated key/remote

      Auto Locking:  auto-locking doors

      Passive Entry:  proximity key

      Trunk FOB Controls:  keyfob trunk/hatch/door release

      Remote Engine Start:  remote engine start - keyfob and smart device (subscription required)

      Steering Wheel:  heated steering wheel with power tilting, power telescoping

      Adjustable Pedals:  power adjustable pedals

      Day-Night Rearview Mirror:  day-night rearview mirror

      Auto-dimming Rearview Mirror:  auto-dimming rearview mirror

      Driver and Passenger Vanity Mirror:  illuminated auxiliary driver and passenger-side visor mirrors

      Garage Door Opener:  garage door transmitter

      Emergency SOS:  emergency communication system

      Navigation System:  navigation system with voice activation

      Front Cupholder:  front and rear cupholders

      Floor Console:  full floor console with covered box

      Overhead Console:  mini overhead console with storage

      Glove Box:  locking glove box

      Driver Door Bin:  driver and passenger door bins

      Rear Door Bins:  rear door bins

      Seatback Storage Pockets:  2 seatback storage pockets

      Dashboard Storage:  dashboard storage

      Retained Accessory Power:  retained accessory power

      Power Accessory Outlet:  4 12V DC power outlets

      AC Power Outlet:  1 120V AC power outlet

Entertainment Features:

      radio  AM/FM/HD/Satellite with seek-scan

      Radio Data System:  radio data system

      Amplifier:  amplifier

      Equalizer:  automatic equalizer

      Digital Signal Processor:  digital signal processor

Printed On 10/06/2022 05:08:28 AM Page 5 of 7

38

Item X. 2.



      Voice Activated Radio:  voice activated radio

      Speed Sensitive Volume:  speed-sensitive volume

      Steering Wheel Radio Controls:  steering-wheel mounted audio controls

      Speakers:  12 brand-name speakers

      Internet Access:  internet access

      1st Row LCD:  2 1st row LCD monitor

      Wireless Connectivity:  wireless phone connectivity

      Antenna:  window grid antenna

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation Features:

      Headlamp Type  delay-off aero-composite LED low/high beam headlamps

      Auto-Dimming Headlights:  auto high-beam headlights

      Front Fog Lights:  front fog lights

      Front Wipers:  variable intermittent rain detecting wipers speed-sensitive wipers wipers

      Rear Window wiper:  fixed interval rear window wiper

      Rear Window Defroster:  rear window defroster

      Rear Window:  flip-up rear windshield

      Tinted Windows:  deep-tinted windows

      Dome Light:  dome light with fade

      Front Reading Lights:  front and rear reading lights

      Variable IP Lighting:  variable instrument panel lighting

      Display Type:  digital/analog appearance

      Tachometer:  tachometer

      Voltometer:  voltmeter

      Compass:  compass

      Exterior Temp:  outside-temperature display

      Low Tire Pressure Warning:  tire specific low-tire-pressure warning

      Park Distance Control:  Forward and Reverse Sensing System front and rear parking sensors

      Trip Computer:  trip computer

      Trip Odometer:  trip odometer

      Lane Departure Warning:  lane departure

      Blind Spot Sensor:  blind spot

      Front Pedestrian Braking:  pedestrian detection

      Following Distance Indicator:  following distance alert

      Forward Collision Alert:  forward collision

      Oil Pressure Gauge:  oil pressure gauge

      Water Temp Gauge:  water temp. gauge

      Clock:  in-radio display clock

      Systems Monitor:  systems monitor

      Rear Vision Camera:  rear vision camera

      Oil Pressure Warning:  oil-pressure warning

      Water Temp Warning:  water-temp. warning

      Battery Warning:  battery warning

      Lights On Warning:  lights-on warning

      Key in Ignition Warning:  key-in-ignition warning

      Low Fuel Warning:  low-fuel warning

      Low Washer Fluid Warning:  low-washer-fluid warning

      Door Ajar Warning:  door-ajar warning

      Trunk Ajar Warning:  trunk-ajar warning

      Brake Fluid Warning:  brake-fluid warning

Safety And Security:

      ABS  four-wheel ABS brakes

      Number of ABS Channels:  4 ABS channels

      Brake Assistance:  brake assist

      Brake Type:  four-wheel disc brakes

      Vented Disc Brakes:  front and rear ventilated disc brakes

      Daytime Running Lights:  daytime running lights

      Spare Tire Type:  full-size spare tire

      Spare Tire Mount:  underbody mounted spare tire w/crankdown

      Driver Front Impact Airbag:  driver and passenger front-impact airbags

      Driver Side Airbag:  seat-mounted driver and passenger side-impact airbags

Printed On 10/06/2022 05:08:28 AM Page 6 of 7

39

Item X. 2.



      Overhead Airbag:  curtain 1st, 2nd and 3rd row overhead airbag

      Occupancy Sensor:  front passenger airbag occupancy sensor

      Height Adjustable Seatbelts:  height adjustable front seatbelts

      Seatbelt Pretensioners:  front seatbelt pre-tensioners

      Side Impact Bars:  side-impact bars

      Perimeter Under Vehicle Lights:  remote activated perimeter/approach lights

      Tailgate/Rear Door Lock Type:  tailgate/rear door lock included with power door locks

      Rear Child Safety Locks:  rear child safety locks

      Ignition Disable:  immobilizer

      Security System:  security system

      Panic Alarm:  panic alarm

      Tracker System:  tracker system

      Electronic Stability:  electronic stability stability control with anti-roll

      Traction Control:  ABS and driveline traction control

      Front and Rear Headrests:  manual adjustable front head restraints

      Rear Headrest Control:  2 rear head restraints

      3rd Row Headrests:  3 power adjustable third row head restraints

Seats And Trim:

      Seating Capacity  max. seating capacity of 7

      Front Bucket Seats:  front bucket seats

      Front Heated Cushion:  driver and passenger heated-cushions

      Front Heated Seatback:  driver and passenger heated-seatbacks

      Heated Rear Seat:  heated rear seat

      Ventilated Seats:  ventilated front seats

      Number of Driver Seat Adjustments:  8-way driver and passenger seat adjustments

      Reclining Driver Seat:  power reclining driver and passenger seats

      Driver Lumbar:  power 2-way driver and passenger lumbar support

      Driver Height Adjustment:  power height-adjustable driver and passenger seats

      Driver Fore/Aft:  power driver and passenger fore/aft adjustment

      Driver Cushion Tilt:  power driver and passenger cushion tilt

      Front Centre Armrest Storage:  front centre armrest

      Rear Seat Type:  rear power reclining bucket seat

      Rear Seat Fore/Aft:  manual rear seat fore/aft adjustment

      Rear Folding Position:  rear seat fold-forward seatback

      Rear Seat Mounted Armrests:  rear seat mounted armrest

      3rd Row Seat Type:  fixed third row power 60-40 split-bench seat

      3rd Row Electric Control:  fold into floor third row seat

      Leather Upholstery:  leather front and rear seat upholstery

      Door Trim Insert:  leather door panel trim

      Headliner Material:  full cloth headliner

      Floor Covering:  full carpet floor covering

      Dashboard Console Insert, Door Panel Insert Combination:  simulated wood/metal-look instrument panel insert, door panel insert, console insert

      Shift Knob Trim:  metal-look shift knob

      LeatherSteeringWheel:  leather steering wheel

      Floor Mats:  carpet front and rear floor mats

      Interior Accents:  chrome interior accents

      Cargo Space Trim:  carpet cargo space

      Trunk Lid:  plastic trunk lid/rear cargo door

      Cargo Light:  cargo light

Standard Engine:

      Engine 400-hp, 3.5-liter V-6 (premium)

Standard Transmission:

      Transmission  10-speed automatic w/ OD and PowerShift automatic

Printed On 10/06/2022 05:08:28 AM Page 7 of 7

40

Item X. 2.



Staff Report 

 
Subject:   Low-Income Household Water Assistance Program Agreement  

Author:  Mark W. Barnes, Finance Director 

Department:  Finance Department 

Meeting Date: 11/1/22 

Item Description: Consideration to renew an agreement between the Georgia 
Department of Human Services, Division of Family and Children 
Services (DHS-DFCS) and the Effingham County Board of 
Commissioners. 

 

Summary Recommendation:   

Staff recommends approval of the agreement renewal. 
 

Executive Summary: 

Staff received the original agreement from the Director at Action-Pact, an organization 
which provides, in part, utility assistance to low income households. This initiative is 
being administered by Georgia DHS-DFCS to provide funds to cover and/or reduce 
arrearages, rates and fees associated with reconnection or preventions of disconnection 
of service and rate reduction to assist low-income holds with water and wastewater 
reconnection and ongoing services. 
 
Background: 
1. The County originally entered into this agreement at the February 15th, 2022 public 

meeting.  
2. The initial term of the original agreement was from February 15th, 2022 until 

September 30th, 2022. 
3. This renewal’s term will be from October 1st, 2022 until September 30th, 2023. 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 

1. Approve the agreement between the Georgia Department of Human Services, 
Division of Family and Children Services. 

2. Do not approve the agreement. 

 

Recommended Alternative: 

Staff recommends Alternative number 1 – Approve to renew the LIHWAP agreement 

with Georgia DHS-DFCS. 

 

Other Alternatives: 

N/A  

 

 

41

Item X. 3.



Department Review: (list departments) 

Finance 

 

Funding Source: 

No funding required 

 

Attachments: 

1. LIHWAP agreement 

 

42

Item X. 3.



43

Item X. 3.



44

Item X. 3.



45

Item X. 3.



46

Item X. 3.



47

Item X. 3.



48

Item X. 3.



49

Item X. 3.



50

Item X. 3.



51

Item X. 3.



52

Item X. 3.



53

Item X. 3.



54

Item X. 3.



55

Item X. 3.



56

Item X. 3.



57

Item X. 3.



58

Item X. 3.



59

Item X. 3.



60

Item X. 3.



61

Item X. 3.



62

Item X. 3.



63

Item X. 3.



Staff Report 
Subject:  Rezoning (First & Second Districts)       
Author:  Teresa Concannon, AICP, Planning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: November 1, 2022 
Item Description: Cindy Howze as Agent for Ansgarhay, LLC requests to rezone 72.15 acres from AR-
1 to I-1, to allow for future industrial use. Located at 108 Godley Road. Map# 419 Parcel# 1A 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends denial of the request to rezone 72.15 acres from AR-1 
to I-1, to allow for future industrial use. 
Executive Summary/Background 
 The request for rezoning is a requirement of Appendix C, Article IX-Amendments to Map or Text, Section 9.  Zoning 

districts are described in Appendix C, Article V-Uses Permitted in Districts. 

 This rezoning application was not referred for regional review, as no proposed use or site plan was submitted, and 

the acreage is below the threshold requiring a regional review for industrial rezoning.   

 Other I-1 zoned parcels in the area have been rezoned for use as surface mines accessing Godley Road. 

An 8-acre portion of this property was rezoned to I-1 for use as a surface mine in November 2020. 

 This parcel is partially located in Chatham County (Port Wentworth). Port Wentworth submitted a letter 

certifying that the portion in their jurisdiction is zoned for surface mining. 

 No concept plan has been submitted. The parcel has no direct access to Godley Road in Effingham 

County. 399A-4 is also owned by the applicant, and has been used in the past as access for 419-1A.  

 399A-4 is zoned AR-2, and is not part of this application. 

 According to the Future Land Use map, the area is proposed for residential and agricultural use.  

 The Effingham County portions of the parent parcel are narrow, and would be substantially covered by 

300’ buffers if the proposed use is I-1 heavy industrial. In the absence of a development plan, we cannot 

determine whether there is adequate space for an industrial use, or if Effingham roads are impacted. 

 Godley Road is not a designated truck route. In recent months, the City of Bloomingdale has submitted 

letters of opposition to rezoning and sketch plan applications for heavy industrial uses on Godley Road. 

 Road improvements, road maintenance agreements, and/or bonds may be necessary to address the 

concerns of all affected jurisdictions.  

 At the August 15, 2022 Planning Board meeting, Ryan Thompson made a motion to deny the request to rezone 

72.15 acres from AR-1 to I-1. 

 The motion was seconded by Alan Zipperer, and approved by four members. Dave Burns opposed. 

 On September 6, the applicant requested postponement. At the September 6, 2022 meeting, the Board postponed 

this item until November 1. 

Alternatives  
1. Approve the request to rezone 72.15 acres from AR-1 to I-1, with conditions: 

1. The parcel must be combined with a parcel that has frontage on Godley Road. 

2. The applicant shall meet and develop agreements with affected jurisdictions, to address road 

maintenance concerns. 

3. A Sketch Plan must be submitted for approval by the Board of Commissioners. 

4. Development plans must comply with the Effingham County Water Resources Protection 

Ordinance, and the Stormwater Management Local Design Manual. 

5. All wetland impacts must be approved and permitted by USACE. 

6. A traffic study will be required, pursuant to Effingham County Traffic Study Requirements. 

7. Business operator shall meet the requirements of Sec. 74-8 Designated Truck Routes. 

2. Deny the request to rezone 72.15 acres from AR-1 to I-1. 
Recommended Alternative:  2   Other Alternatives:  1 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
Attachments:  1.   Rezoning application and checklist 3. Plat   5. Deed 

2. Ownership certificate/authorization 4. Aerial photograph 
64

Item XI. 1.



65

Item XI. 1.



66

Item XI. 1.



67

Item XI. 1.



68

Item XI. 1.



69

Item XI. 1.



70

Item XI. 1.



71

Item XI. 1.



72

Item XI. 1.



73

Item XI. 1.



74

Item XI. 1.



75

Item XI. 1.



76

Item XI. 1.



77

Item XI. 1.



78

Item XI. 1.



79

Item XI. 1.



80

Item XI. 1.



81

Item XI. 1.



82

Item XI. 1.



83

Item XI. 1.



84

Item XI. 1.



85

Item XI. 1.



86

Item XI. 1.



87

Item XI. 1.



88

Item XI. 1.



89

Item XI. 1.



90

Item XI. 1.



91

Item XI. 1.



92

Item XI. 1.



93

Item XI. 1.



Staff Report 
Subject:  2nd Reading Zoning Map Amendment 
Author:  Teresa Concannon, AICP, Planning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: November 1, 2022 
Item Description: Cindy Howze as Agent for Ansgarhay, LLC requests to rezone 72.15 acres from AR-1 to I-1, 
to allow for future industrial use. Located at 108 Godley Road. Map# 419 Parcel# 1A 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends denial of the request to rezone 72.15 acres from AR-1 to I-1, to 
allow for future industrial use. 
Executive Summary/Background 

 The request for rezoning is a requirement of Appendix C, Article IX-Amendments to Map or Text, Section 9.  Zoning 

districts are described in Appendix C, Article V-Uses Permitted in Districts. 

 This rezoning application was not referred for regional review, as no proposed use or site plan was submitted, and 

the acreage is below the threshold requiring a regional review for industrial rezoning.   

 Other I-1 zoned parcels in the area have been rezoned for use as surface mines accessing Godley Road. 

An 8-acre portion of this property was rezoned to I-1 for use as a surface mine in November 2020. 

 This parcel is partially located in Chatham County (Port Wentworth). Port Wentworth submitted a letter 

certifying that the portion in their jurisdiction is zoned for surface mining. 

 No concept plan has been submitted. The parcel has no direct access to Godley Road in Effingham 

County. 399A-4 is also owned by the applicant, and has been used in the past as access for 419-1A.  

 399A-4 is zoned AR-2, and is not part of this application. 

 According to the Future Land Use map, the area is proposed for residential and agricultural use.  

 The Effingham County portions of the parent parcel are narrow, and would be substantially covered by 

300’ buffers if the proposed use is I-1 heavy industrial. In the absence of a development plan, we cannot 

determine whether there is adequate space for an industrial use, or if Effingham roads are impacted. 

 Godley Road is not a designated truck route. In recent months, the City of Bloomingdale has submitted 

letters of opposition to rezoning and sketch plan applications for heavy industrial uses on Godley Road. 

 Road improvements, road maintenance agreements, and/or bonds may be necessary to address the 

concerns of all affected jurisdictions.  

 At the August 15, 2022 Planning Board meeting, Ryan Thompson made a motion to deny the request to rezone 

72.15 acres from AR-1 to I-1. 

 The motion was seconded by Alan Zipperer, and approved by four members. Dave Burns opposed. 

 On September 6, the applicant requested postponement. At the September 6, 2022 meeting, the Board postponed 

this item until November 1. 

Alternatives  
1. Approve the request to rezone 72.15 acres from AR-1 to I-1, with conditions: 

1. The parcel must be combined with a parcel that has frontage on Godley Road. 

2. The applicant shall meet and develop agreements with affected jurisdictions, to address road 

maintenance concerns. 

3. A Sketch Plan must be submitted for approval by the Board of Commissioners. 

4. Development plans must comply with the Effingham County Water Resources Protection 

Ordinance, and the Stormwater Management Local Design Manual. 

5. All wetland impacts must be approved and permitted by USACE. 

6. A traffic study will be required, pursuant to Effingham County Traffic Study Requirements. 

7. Business operator shall meet the requirements of Sec. 74-8 Designated Truck Routes. 

2. Deny the request to rezone 72.15 acres from AR-1 to I-1. 
 
Recommended Alternative:  2   Other Alternatives:  1 
 
Department Review:  Development Services FUNDING: N/A   Attachments: 1. Zoning Map Amendment   

94

Item XI. 2.



 STATE OF GEORGIA 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY 

 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO. 

419-1A 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO.  

419-1A 

 

 AND TO REPEAL ALL OTHER ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH. 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Effingham County Board of Commissioners in regular meeting assembled and pursuant to lawful 

authority thereof: 

WHEREAS CINDY HOWZE AS AGENT FOR ANSGARHAY, LLC has filed an application to rezone seventy-two and 

fifteen hundredth (72.15) +/- acres; from AR-1 to I-1 to allow for industrial use; map and parcel number 419-1A, located in the 1st & 

2nd commissioner district, and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on September 6, 2022 and notice of said hearing having been published in the 

Effingham County Herald on August 17, 2022; and 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Effingham County Planning Board, notice of said hearing having been 

published in the Effingham County Herald on July 27, 2022; and 

IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED THAT seventy-two and fifteen hundredth (72.15) +/- acres; map and parcel number 419-1A, 

located in the 1st & 2nd commissioner district is rezoned from AR-1 to I-1, with the following conditions: 

1. The parcel must be combined with a parcel that has frontage on Godley Road. 

2. The applicant shall meet and develop agreements with affected jurisdictions, to address road maintenance concerns. 

3. A Sketch Plan must be submitted for approval by the Board of Commissioners. 

4. Development plans must comply with the Effingham County Water Resources Protection Ordinance, and the Stormwater 

Management Local Design Manual. 

5. All wetland impacts must be approved and permitted by USACE. 

6. A traffic study will be required, pursuant to Effingham County Traffic Study Requirements. 

7. Business operator shall meet the requirements of Sec. 74-8 Designated Truck Routes. 

All ordinances or part of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

This ______ day of ________________, 20____ 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

      EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

      BY:  _______________________________ 

               WESLEY CORBITT, CHAIRMAN 

 

 

ATTEST:       FIRST/SECOND READING:  ______________  

  

___________________________ 

STEPHANIE JOHNSON 

COUNTY CLERK 

95

Item XI. 2.



Staff Report 
 
Subject: Amendments to Article II – Definitions; Article V - Uses Permitted in Districts, Section 

5.6. R-3 Multifamily; and Section 5.8. R-6 Single Family Residential 
Author:  Teresa Concannon, AICP, Planning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: November 1, 2022  
Item Description: Consideration to amend Article II – Definitions; Section 5.6. R-3 Multifamily; and 
Section 5.8. R-6 Single Family Residential; and add a new Section 5.13. R-5 Single Family Traditional 
Neighborhood Design residential district. 
 
Summary Recommendation: In order to accommodate development proposals while promoting growth 
that is orderly and predictable, with the least amount of disturbance to landowners and to the citizens of the 
county, staff recommends approval of the revised Definitions, and R-3 and R-6 zoning districts, and the new 
R-5 zoning district. 
  
Executive Summary/Background:  

 The revisions include an update and expansion of Zoning Ordinance definitions, to clarify the 

county’s interest in promoting growth that is orderly and predictable, with the least amount of 

disturbance to landowners and to the citizens of the county: 

 Expanded information and guidance for development in the R-3 zoning district: 

o Define townhouse development standards 

 Eliminate future rezoning to R-6. 

 Create new R-5 single family TND zoning district: 

o Planned single family home communities (build to rent) requirements 

o Design requirements including street width requirements, curb and gutter requirement; buffer 

and landscaping requirement for lots parallel to existing arterial, collector, and local roads. 

o Development standards for exterior materials, design, and landscaping. 

 
Alternatives for Commission to Consider 
1 – Approve amendments to Article II – Definitions; Article V - Uses Permitted in Districts, Sections 5.6. R-3 
Multifamily Residential; 5.8. R-6 Single Family Residential, and new zoning district Section 5.13. R-5 Single 
Family Traditional Neighborhood Design residential district. 
2 – Take no action. 
 
Recommended Alternative: 1   Other Alternatives: N/A 
 
Department Review: Development Services; County Attorney 
 
Funding Source: N/A 
 
Attachments: 

1. Proposed revisions to Definitions 
2. Proposed revisions to Section 5.6. R-3 Multifamily 
3. Proposed revisions to Section 5.8. R-6 Single Family 
4. Proposed Section 5.13. R-5 Single Family Traditional Neighborhood Design residential district. 

 
 

96

Item XI. 3.



ARTICLE II. - DEFINITIONS  

2.25 Dwelling. A building or portion of a building arranged or designed to provide living quarters for one or 

more families on a permanent or long-term basis.  

2.25.1 Condominium. A building or series of buildings on the same lot or portions thereof containing 

more than one dwelling unit under separate ownership with joint ownership of common open spaces.  

2.25.2 Duplex. A residential building designed for, or used as, the separate homes or residences of two 

separate and distinct families, but having the appearance of a single-family dwelling unit. Each 

individual unit in the duplex shall comply with the definition of single-family detached dwelling.  

2.25.3 Single-family detached dwelling. A building or structure designed for and occupied as a 

residence exclusively by one family.  

2.25.4 Site-built single-family detached dwelling. A single-family detached dwelling constructed on the 

building site from basic materials delivered to the site and constructed in accordance with all 

requirements of the building codes as adopted by the county.  

2.25.5 Class A single-family detached dwelling. A site-built single-family detached dwelling, a one-family 

manufactured home, or a one-family industrialized home that meets or exceeds the compatibility 

standards for single-family dwellings under article III of the ZoningHousing Ordinance of Effingham 

County, Georgia.  

2.25.6 Class B single-family detached dwelling. A site-built single-family detached dwelling, a one-family 

manufactured home, or a one-family industrialized home that does not meet the compatibility 

standards for single-family dwellings under article III of the ZoningHousing Ordinance of Effingham 

County, Georgia.  

2.25.7 Garden Apartment Community.  A low intensity, low-rise, apartment community comprised of two 

or three story buildings, each containingThree or more attached dwelling units in a two- or three-story 

building Typically characterized by a garden-like setting, surrounded by lawns, trees, shrubbery, and gardens 

and/or interior courtyards. 

2.25.8 Multifamily. A building or collection of buildings that are designed for andor occupied by three 

or more families and located on a single parcel. 

2.25. 9 Mixed-Use Residential. The mixing of principal residential uses with non-residential uses. Mixed 

use residential may occur by the following:  

a.  Non-residential and multifamily in the same building (e.g., retail on ground floor, multifamily 

above), or 

b. Multifamily and another primary non-residential use located in different buildings sited on the 

same lot or parcel (e.g., multifamily located on the same parcel as an office building).  

c. Both options shall be designed, located, and oriented on the site so that non-residential uses are 

directly accessible to residents of the development. For the purposes of this section, "directly 

accessible" shall mean pedestrian access by way of improved sidewalks or paths and streets that do 

not involve leaving the development or using a major thoroughfare. "Directly accessible" does not 

necessarily mean that non-residential uses need to be located in a particular location, but that the 

siting of such uses considers the accessibility of the residential component of the development to 

the non-residential use. Parking areas shall be designed to minimize distances between uses.  

97

Item XI. 3.



2.25.10 Townhouse. A unit in a building with three or more dwelling units, where each unit is on an 

individual lot, shares a common sidewall, and is two to three stories in height.  

2.60B Planned single-family home community. A subdivision used or intended for use as a residential 

area occupied by single-family homes; conforming to an approved development plan with 

appropriate and adequate community services, recreation facilities, utilities, streets, and sidewalks 

provided by the developer; and in which the subdivision is under single ownership or control. 

 

98

Item XI. 3.



5.6 - R-3 Multifamily residential districts.  

This zoning district will only be allowed if municipal or county water and sewer service is 

adjacent to the parcel and capacity is available, or a state permitted, privately owned community 

water and sewer system is constructed or available, and can provide assurance of capacity. In 

addition, development must be located in proximity to a school, public park or facility, 

retail/commercial development, and/or urban service area. 

5.6.1 Permitted uses.  

5.6.1.1 All permitted uses in the R-1 single-family residential district and R-2 two-family 

residential district.  

5.6.1.2 Multiple-family dwellings, Garden apartment communities or buildings, 

roominghouses, fraternities, sororities, and dormitories.  

5.6.1.3 Government-owned utilities, except publicly-owned treatment plants permitted by 

the State of Georgia and water storage facilities in excess of 1,000,000 gallon capacity, 

provided that wells, pump stations, meter stations, and water storage facilities must be 

enclosed by a painted or chain-link fence or wall at least six feet in height above 

finished grade and provided there is neither office nor commercial operation nor 

storage of vehicles or equipment on the premises.  

5.6.1.3 Customary accessory buildings incidental to the above permitted uses.  

5.6.1.4 Townhouses, subject to the following requirements: 

a. A row of townhouses shall not contain more than six (6) dwelling units. 

b. Maximum lot coverage required in this section (40%) shall be applied per lot on 

which each individual townhouse sits.  

c. In order to provide visual diversity, no more than four contiguous townhouse units 

shall be allowed with the same setback and the same façade treatment. Variations 

in setback shall be at least three feet.  

d. Townhouses shall have a front, side, or rear privacy yard having a minimum area of 

100 square feet on each lot. 

e. Streets shall have sidewalks with a minimum four (4) foot width on any side of any 

street that contains townhouses. A tree no less than two inches dbh must be planted 

at a rate of at least one for every fifty (50) feet between the sidewalk and the street.  

f. If permissible pursuant to Access Management and Encroachment Regulations for 

Effingham County Roads, these standards apply: 

a. For developments with 60 or fewer dwelling units, at least one point of 

access to the roadway network shall be provided.  

b. For developments with 61 or more dwelling units, at least two point of 

access to the roadway network shall be provided.   

5.6.2 Conditional uses. The following uses may be permitted in accordance with the provisions 

of section 7.1.6 in the multifamily residential (R-3) district on a conditional basis upon 

approval of the county commission after review by the planning board.  

5.6.2.1 Clubs and private recreational facilities.  

99

Item XI. 3.



5.6.2.2 Nursing homes.  

5.6.2.3 Day care facilities.  

5.6.3 Lot and building requirements.  

 

Density (applicable to single familytownhouses and multifamily)  
Maximum 9 per 

acre  

Minimum lot width at building line  150 feet  

Minimum setback from public street  35 15 feet  

Minimum front yardlength of driveway  10 20 feet  

Minimum rear yard  15 feet  

Minimum side yard (interior) for townhouse buildings or single apartment 

building on a lot 
15 feet  

Minimum side yard (street) for townhouse buildings or single apartment 

building on a lot 
35 feet  

Maximum building height  35 feet  

Maximum percent of [lot coverage]  40 percent  

  

5.6.4 Amenity requirements.  

5.6.4.1 All multi-family and townhouse residential projects must provide 150 square feet of on-

site common outdoor open space per multi-family dwelling unit or 15% of net usable area as 

common outdoor open space, whichever is greater. Open space calculations must be shown on 

the Sketch Plan and subdivision plat.  Common outdoor open space shall be intentionally 

designed as such and may include landscaped courtyards, shared decks, gardens with pathways, 

children’s play areas, pools, water features, multipurpose recreational or green spaces to which 

all residents have access, as defined by Article II, Ddefinitions. The following requirements apply 

to common outdoor open space:  

a. The required setback areas may count toward the open space requirement if it is 

integrated into a common open space amenity.   

100

Item XI. 3.



b. Common outdoor open space shall feature paths or walkable areas, landscaping, 

seating, lighting and other amenities to make the area more functional and enjoyable for 

a range of users, taking into consideration potential noise issues due to the 

configuration of the site.  

c. Common outdoor open space shall generally be designed so it is oriented at the front 

of dwelling units and/or community building(s). 

d. 10% of net usable area allocated as common open space shall be greenspace. The 

implementation of a conservation easement is encouraged.  

5.6.4.2 A maintenance association, homeowners association, condominium association or some 

other entity acceptable to the County Administration must be created to maintain all amenities 

and common areas in good condition.  

 

101

Item XI. 3.



5.8 - R-6 Single-family residential district (four and a half (4.5) dwellings per acre).  

This zoning district is no longer available. All single family residential development shall be subject to R-1 

and R-5 zoning district requirements. 

 [5.8.1] Where applicable.  

This zoning district will only be allowed if municipal or county water and sewer service is adjacent to 

the parcel and capacity is available or a state permitted, privately owned community water and sewer 

system is constructed or available.  

[5.8.2] Required utilities.  

All properties in the R-6 zoning district shall be connected to water and sewer systems. No individual 

septic systems shall be permitted.  

[5.8.3] Maximum density.  

Four and a half (4.5) dwelling units per acre.  

[5.8.4] Permitted uses.  

Site-built and Class A single-family detached dwellings.  

Unlighted regulation size, or par three golf courses, consisting of nine holes or more, including 

normal clubhouses and pro shop activities, and other business activity associated with country clubs.  

Home occupations and residential business, as provided in Article III, sections 3.15 and 3.15A.  

Government owned utilities, except publicly owned treatment plants permitted by the State of 

Georgia and water storage facilities in excess of 1,000,000 gallon capacity, provided that wells, pump 

stations, meter stations, and water storage facilities must be enclosed by a painted or chain link 

fence or wall at least six feet in height above the finished grade and provided there is neither office 

nor commercial operation nor storage of vehicles or equipment on the premises.  

Parks, recreational areas, playgrounds, public or private swimming pools.  

Libraries or museums.  

[5.8.5] Conditional uses.  

The following uses may be permitted in accordance with the provisions of section 7.1.6 in the single-

family residential (R-6) district on a conditional basis upon approval by the county commission after 

review by the planning board.  

Churches, synagogues, mosques, temples, or other places of worship provided that:  

Such use is housed in a permanent structure;  

No structure on the lot is closer than 25 feet to any abutting residential property line.  

Public and private school engaged in teaching general curriculum for educational advancement, 

provided the structure are placed not less than 50 feet from any residential property line. Such 

schools shall be day schools only and have no rooms regularly used for housing or sleeping 

purposes.  

102

Item XI. 3.



Public utilities substation or subinstallation including water towers provided that:  

1.  Such use is enclosed by a painted or chain link fence or wall at least six feet in height above 

finished grade;  

2.  There is neither office nor commercial operation nor storage of vehicles or equipment on the 

premises;  

3.  A landscaped strip not less than five feet in width is planted and suitably maintained around the 

facility.  

Day care facilities.  

Nursing homes  

[5.8.6] Lot and building requirements.  

Lot size:  

 Area  8,500 sq. ft. (0.19 acres)  

 Width  Minimum 60 feet  

Principle buildings:  

 Maximum height  35 feet  

 Minimum front setback  15 feet  

  Stairs (but not porches) may encroach up to five feet into front yard setback  

 Maximum front setback  The average of the house on either side or 20 feet, whichever is less.  

 Minimum side setback 

(interior)  

7.5 feet (or 3 feet provided minimum building separation of 15 feet is 

maintained)  

 Minimum side setback 

(street)  
15 feet  

 Minimum rear setback  25 feet  

 Maximum lot coverage  45%  

Accessory buildings:  

103

Item XI. 3.



 Maximum height  
20 feet and not to exceed the height of the principle  

building  

 Minimum rear and side 

setback  
5 feet  

 Lot coverage  15%  

  

**All building setbacks shall be show on final plat**  

[5.8.7] Open space requirements.  

All developments in the R-6 zoning district must provide 15 percent of net usable area as 

common outdoor open space. Open space calculations must be on the subdivision plat. Common 

outdoor open space shall mean areas accessible to all residents of the development. Common 

outdoor open space can include passive or active recreation areas, pathways, swimming pools, 

and open areas for congregating, per Article II definition . 10% of common open space shall be 

greenspace. The implementation of a conservation easement is strongly encouraged. 

A homeowners association or some other entity acceptable to the administrator must be created to 

maintain the amenities and open space in good condition.  

[5.8.8] Sidewalk requirement.  

Streets in the R-6 zoning district shall have sidewalks on any side of any street that contains houses. 

A tree no less than two inches dbh must be planted at a rate of one for every two houses between the 

sidewalk and the street.  

[5.8.9] Parking requirements.  

Two off street parking spaces shall be provided for each single-family dwelling.  

These spaces can be in a garage, carport, or driveway accessed from the front or rear of the parcel.  

104

Item XI. 3.



5.13 - R-5 Single-family Traditional Neighborhood Design residential district  

5.13.1 Where applicable.  

This zoning district will only be allowed if municipal or county water and sewer service is adjacent to 

the parcel and capacity is available or a state permitted, privately owned community water and sewer 

system is constructed or available, and can provide assurance of capacity.  Development must be located 

in close proximity to a school, public park or facility, retail/commercial development, and/or urban service 

area. 

5.13.2 Required utilities.  

All properties in the R-5 zoning district shall be connected to water and sewer systems. No individual 

septic systems shall be permitted.  

5.13.3 Maximum density.  

Minimum .15-acre lot, with no more than five (5) dwelling units per net usable acre.  

5.13.4 Permitted uses.  

5.13.4.1 Site-built and Class A single-family detached dwellings.  

5.13.4.2 Home occupations and residential business, as provided in Article III, sections 3.15 and 

3.15A.  

5.13.4.3 Customary accessory buildings incidental to the above permitted uses.  

5.13.4.4 Government owned utilities, except publicly owned treatment plants permitted by the State 

of Georgia and water storage facilities in excess of 1,000,000 gallon capacity, provided that wells, 

pump stations, meter stations, and water storage facilities must be enclosed by a painted or chain 

link fence or wall at least six feet in height above the finished grade and provided there is neither 

office nor commercial operation nor storage of vehicles or equipment on the premises.  

5.13.4.5 Parks, recreational areas, playgrounds, public or private swimming pools.  

5.13.4.6 Planned single-family home communities with the following requirements:  

a) A homeowners’ association must be established, or management company identified. Said 

association or company shall operate pursuant to subdivision covenants, which are submitted 

to county with the final plat.  It is the intent that said association or company will provide 

oversight of the development standards and maintenance of common areas and amenities. 

1. Covenants must include a provision that no more than 20% of homes in the 

community may be rented until at least twelve (12) months has elapsed since issuance 

of the certificate of occupancy.  

b) The management company overseeing rentals shall pay an occupation tax and register with 

the County annually, pursuant to Article II – Business and Occupation Tax, for a license to 

operate a planned single-family home community.   

c) Walls in excess of twenty feet in length facing a street shall be broken up with entry elements, 

windows or wall offsets at least two feet deep. 

105

Item XI. 3.



d) A minimum of two decorative elements shall be added to the front façade including but not 

limited to decorative shutters, decorative lighting, trellises, cornices, or similar architectural 

elements.  

e) Lot coverage required in this section (45%) shall be applied per lot on which each individual 

single-family residence sits 

5.13.5 Reserved.  

  

5.13.6 Lot and building requirements.  

Lot size:  

 Area  6,600 sq. ft. (0.15 acres)  

 Width  Minimum 50 feet  

Principle buildings:  

 Maximum height  35 feet  

 Minimum front setback  15 feet  

  Stairs (but not porches) may encroach up to five feet into front yard setback  

 Minimum side setback 

(interior)  

7.5 feet (or 3 feet provided minimum building separation of 15 feet is 

maintained)  

 Minimum side setback 

(street)  
15 feet  

 Minimum rear setback  25 feet  

 Maximum lot coverage  45%  

**All building setbacks shall be show on final subdivision plat**  

5.13.7 Open space requirements.  

All developments in the R-5 zoning district must provide 15% of net usable area as common 

outdoor open space. Open space calculations must be shown on the Sketch Plan and subdivision 

plat. Common outdoor open space shall mean areas accessible to all residents of the 

development. Common outdoor open space can include passive or active recreation areas, 

pathways, swimming pools, and open areas for congregating, per Article II, Definitions.  

106

Item XI. 3.



a) Common outdoor open space shall feature paths or walkable areas, landscaping, seating, 

lighting and other amenities to make the area more functional and enjoyable for a range of 

users, taking into consideration potential noise issues due to the configuration of the site. 

b) 10% of net usable area allocated as common open space shall be greenspace. The 

implementation of a conservation easement is strongly encouraged. 

c) A homeowners association or some other entity acceptable to the county must be created to 

maintain the amenities and open space in good condition.  

5.13.8 Subdivision Design Requirements. 

5.13.8.1 Roads and Rights-of-Way 

a) Roads in R-5 developments shall have a minimum of sixty (60) foot right-of-way, with a 

minimum paved area as follows: 

1. Twenty-two (22) foot road pavement width is only permitted if homes have rear alley 

access. Signage is required indicating that on-street parking is prohibited. 

2. Twenty-eight (28) foot road pavement width, with parking on one side, is permitted if 

parking side is clearly delineated. Signage indicating parking side is required. 

3. Thirty-six (36) foot road pavement width, with parking permitted on both sides. 

b) R-5 developments shall have curb and gutter throughout. 

c) Streets in the R-5 developments shall have four (4) foot wide sidewalks on any side of any 

street that contains houses. A tree no less than two inches dbh must be planted at a rate of 

one for every two houses in the two (2) foot section of grass between the sidewalk and the 

curb.  

d) If lots are platted parallel to arterial, collector, or local (if outside of existing platted 

subdivision) road right-of-way, the following is required: 

1. Provide minimum twenty (20) foot landscaped strip and a residential street, with 

residential lot facing arterial, collector, or local road right-of-way. 

2. Provide minimum thirty (30) foot vegetative buffer and residential lot may have rear 

yard facing arterial, collector, or local road right-of-way. 

5.13.8.2 Parking requirements.  

Two off street parking spaces shall be provided for each single-family dwelling. These spaces can be 

in a garage, carport, or driveway accessed from the front or rear of the parcel.  One additional space per 

five (5) units must be provided for overflow off-street parking.  

5.13.9 Development Standards. 

The follow design elements shall be included:  

a) Exterior finished material shall be constructed with a combination of clay masonry brick, 

natural stone including granite, marble, sandstone, field stone or other similar natural stone, 

107

Item XI. 3.



manufactured stone including imitation field stone, marble terrazzo, and other similar 

manufactured finish stone; wood, traditional three coat stucco, or other materials of like 

appearance.  

b) Buildings shall utilize design features from the following list, totaling at least four (4) points, to 

provide visual relief along the front of the dwelling unit. Unless otherwise specified, features 

are worth one (1) point:  

1. Dormers (functional or false)  

2. Gables    

3. Recessed entries   

4. Covered front porches, at least six (6) feet in depth (2 points)   

5. Pillars or posts    

6. Two or more brick masonry pattern bond treatments    

7. Side or rear loaded garage or carport (3 points)   

8. Bay windows (minimum 24‐inch projection)   

9. Multi-season porch or sunroom on rear of house (3 points) 

c) The garage shall not occupy more than 40% of the total building façade.  

d) At least 20% of the wall space of the front façade shall be windows and doors. Windows shall 

be provided with trim.  

e) The minimum roof overhang shall be twelve (12) inches, exclusive of porches and patios.   

f) The minimum landscaping shall be as follows   

1. (2) Large Trees (one in the front yard, one in the rear yard)  

Mature size = 40’-60’  

Planted size = 2” cal.  

2. (2) Small Trees (one in the front yard, one in the rear yard)  

Mature size = 15’-40’   

Planted size = 2”cal.  

3. (4) Large Shrubs (near foundation; 25% in rear yard)  

108

Item XI. 3.



Mature size = 5’-8’  

Planted size = 30”   

4. (8) Small Shrubs (near foundation; 25% in rear yard)  

Mature size = 2’-4’  

Planted size = 20”   

5.13.10 R-5 Rezoning Application Requirements. 

Applicant shall submit the following documentation in addition to the Rezoning Application:  

a) A completed Development Standards Submittal Form and Checklist. 

b) A subdivision concept plan showing the lots and road configuration.  

c) A timeline delineating when the development will begin and estimated time of completion. 

d) Exhibits and descriptions of materials that clearly demonstrate the intent of the developer to 

meet the requirements of Sec. 5.8.10 Development Standards.   

 

109

Item XI. 3.



 

 

Staff Report 

 
Subject:   Retired Educators Day Proclamation   

Author:  Stephanie Johnson, County Clerk 

Department:  Administration 

Meeting Date: 11/01/2022 

Item Description: Consideration to approve a Proclamation celebrating November 6, 2022 

as Retired Educators Day 
 

Summary Recommendation: 

Staff recommends approval of the request.  
 

Executive Summary: 

A request was received from Pam Anderegg, President of the Effingham Retired Educators 
Association.  
 

Background: 

Each year the Governor proclaims Retired Educators Day. Governor Kemp signed a 

proclamation for this cause on August 23, 2022.  

 

According to reports there are approximately 141,000 retired educators in Georgia, 32,000 of 

those retirees belong to the Georgia Retired Educators Association.  

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 

1. Approve a Proclamation celebrating November 6, 2022 as Retired Educators Day 
2. To not approve the Proclamation.   

 
 

Recommended Alternative: Staff recommends Alternative 1  
 

Other Alternatives: N/A  Department Review: Administration 
 

Funding Source: No funding is required related to this request.  
 

Attachments: 

1. Proclamation_county 
2. Proclamation-Gov. Kemp 

 

110

Item XII. 1.



 

 

 

 
 

 P R O C L A M A T I O N  
 

 

CELEBRATING NOVEMBER 6, 2022 AS 

RETIRED EDUCATORS DAY 

 
 

WHEREAS:    The Governor of the State of Georgia has proclaimed the day of Sunday, November 

6, 2022 as Retired Educators Day in Georgia; and 

WHEREAS:  There are more than 141,000 retired educators in Georgia, 32,000 plus of whom 

are members of the Georgia Retired Educators Association; and, 

WHEREAS:  The retired educators of Georgia donate thousands of hours of volunteer service 

and make invaluable contributions to the welfare of their respective communities 

across the state; and 

WHEREAS:  It is appropriate that a day be designated for citizens to express their appreciation 

for the contributions that retired educators have made and continue to make for 

the betterment of human lives and for society; and 

WHEREAS:  Local churches will recognize those lasting contributions made by retired 

educators in this community; now 

THEREFORE, the EFFINGHAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS do hereby 

proclaim the day of November 6, 2022 as “RETIRED EDUCATORS DAY” and call upon the 

citizens of Effingham County to observe said day in an appropriate manner honoring retired 

educators. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the County to be 

affixed this 1st day of November in the year of our Lord, Two Thousand and Twenty-two. 

 
 

  ___________________________________ 

   WESLEY M. CORBITT, CHAIRMAN 

 

                                                                                  ATTEST: 

 

                                                                                 _______________________________________ 

STEPHANIE D. JOHNSON, COUNTY CLERK 

                                                                                

 

111

Item XII. 1.



112

Item XII. 1.



v1 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF EFFINGHAM 

COUNTY TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTION OF A SECOND AMENDED 

AND RESTATED INTERGOVERNMENTAL CONTRACT BETWEEN 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA AND THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY 

HOSPITAL AUTHORITY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the Hospital Authorities Law of Georgia, 

codified in Official Code of Georgia Annotated § 31-7-70, et seq. (the “Hospital Authorities 

Law”), the Board of Commissioners of Effingham County (the “Board of Commissioners”), the 

governing body of Effingham County, Georgia (the “County”), a political subdivision of the 

State of Georgia, was authorized to establish, and pursuant thereto did duly establish, by 

resolution adopted on February 6, 1968, the Effingham County Hospital Authority (the 

“Authority”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Authority owns Effingham Hospital, which includes four family 

medicine locations, two imaging centers, a women’s health center, a skilled nursing facility, and 

other related facilities (together the “System” or “Health Care System”) in Effingham County, 

and leases the System to Effingham Hospital, Inc., a Georgia non-profit corporation, which 

operates said Health Care System on behalf of the Authority and provides medical services for 

the residents of the County and portions of surrounding counties; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Authority issued its EFFINGHAM COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

REFUNDING AND IMPROVEMENT REVENUE ANTICIPATION CERTIFICATE, SERIES 2022 in a principal 

amount of $29,785,000 (the “Series 2022 Certificate”) to provide funds together with other 

available funds, for the purpose of (i) currently refunding and redeeming the outstanding 

HOSPITAL AUTHORITY OF EFFINGHAM COUNTY FEDERALLY TAXABLE RECOVERY ZONE 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BONDS – DIRECT PAY (GNMA COLLATERALIZED – EFFINGHAM 

HOSPITAL PROJECT), SERIES 2010A, (ii) providing funds to acquire a building for a pediatric 

center and approximately 33 acres of undeveloped real property for future expansion of the 

Health Care System from Effingham Hospital, Inc., (iii) certain additions and improvements to 

the Health Care System, and (iv) paying the costs of issuance of the Series 2022 Certificate, all 

in accordance with the provisions of a resolution adopted by the Authority on June 21, 2022 (the 

“Authority Resolution”), a copy of which has been filed in the office of the Board of 

Commissioners; and  

 

 WHEREAS, on June 21, 2022, the Board of Commissioners adopted its own resolution 

(“County Resolution”) which provided, in addition to the “Gross Revenues” of the ownership of 

the System, as such term is defined in the Authority Resolution, that as additional security for 

payment of the Series 2022 Certificate, the Authority and the County would enter into an 

Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Contract, which would supplement and amend an 

intergovernmental contract with the Authority entered into on October 19, 2010, effective 

December 30, 2010 (together, the “Contract”), pursuant to which the County agreed, among 

other things, to pay to or for the benefit of the Authority amounts to be derived from an ad 

valorem tax levy, if required, sufficient to enable the Authority to provide for the payment of the 

principal of and interest on the Series 2022 Certificate as the same became due and payable, and 

to make such additional payments to the Authority as may be necessary from time to time to 

113

Item XII. 2.



 

v1 2 

assure the continued operation, maintenance and repair of the Heath Care System, the 

consideration for which to the County shall be the provision of health services to its citizens; and  

 

 WHEREAS, consistent with the Authority Resolution and the County Resolution, the 

County and the Authority entered into the Contract as of July 20, 2022; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the County and the Authority desire to execute a second amendment to the 

Contract and any other documents (collectively, the “Documents”) necessary so that the Health 

Care System can enter into a variable rate revolving line of credit loan (“LOC”) with a bank of 

the System’s choosing for the System to have access to additional funds necessary for and 

relating to, among other things, the System’s implementation of an electronic health record 

system; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the System has selected Truist Bank to provide the LOC in an amount not to 

exceed Three Million Five Hundred Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($3,500,000.00) upon terms 

and conditions acceptable to the System; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the County, in order to allow the Authority, through the System, to obtain 

the LOC for the purposes stated herein, is willing to approve this resolution for benefit of the 

System; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the County and the Authority are specifically authorized to execute the 

Documents to permit the LOC to be included as part of the security for the Series 2022 

Certificate pursuant to the provisions of Article IX, Section III, paragraph I(a) of the Constitution 

of the State of Georgia and the provisions of the Hospital Authorities Law; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is proper that the Board of Commissioners authorize the execution and 

delivery of the Documents and to authorize the Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Board of 

Commissioners and such other proper officials of the County including the county manager to do 

all such acts and things and to execute the Documents as may be necessary for the issuance and 

delivery of the LOC. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Effingham 

County in public meeting assembled as follows: 

 

 1. Approval of Execution of Documents. The execution, delivery, and performance 

of the Documents in their final form, by the Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Board of 

Commissioners and the attestation thereof by the County Clerk be and the same hereby is 

authorized subject to such changes, insertions or omissions as may be approved by the Chairman 

or the Vice-Chairman, and the execution of said Contract by the Chairman or Vice-Chairman 

shall be conclusive evidence of any such approval. 

 

 2. General Authorization. The Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Board of 

Commissioners and such other proper officials of the County including the county manager 

required therefor are authorized, empowered, and directed to do all acts and to execute all such 

documents as shall be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of this resolution in 

114

Item XII. 2.



 

v1 3 

relation to the execution of the Documents and further are authorized and directed to take any 

and all further actions as are necessary to provide security for payment of the LOC and to fulfill 

the obligations of the County pursuant to the Contract, as the same may be delivered, 

supplemented, or amended, and to take such other actions as may be required in accordance with 

the intents and purposes of this resolution. 

 

 Approved and adopted in public meeting this ____________, 2022. 

 

 

 

      _______________________________________ 

      Chairman 

Board of Commissioners of Effingham County 

115

Item XII. 2.



 

v1 

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE 

 

 

 Now comes the undersigned County Clerk of Effingham County (the “County”), keeper 

of the records and seal thereof, and certifies that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a 

resolution approved and adopted by the Board of Commissioners of Effingham County in public 

meeting properly and lawfully held and assembled on ____________, 2022, the original of 

which resolution has been entered in the official records of the County under my supervision and 

is in my official possession, custody and control. 

 I further certify that the meeting was held in conformity with the requirements of Title 

50, Chapter 14 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated. 

 

(S E A L) 

       ________________________________ 

       County Clerk, Effingham County 

116

Item XII. 2.



 

     

Jeff Joyner 
Senior Vice President 
 

 Truist Bank 
33 Bull Street  
Savannah, Ga  31401 
Tel 912.660.9398 
jeff.joyner@truist.com 

 

 
 

October 11, 2022 
 
 
Effingham Hospital, Inc. 
459 GA-119 
Springfield, GA 31329 
Attn: Dr. Fran Witt; Al Allred 
 
 
Dr. Witt and Mr. Allred – 
 
I am writing to inform you the Truist line of credit has formally matured and is no longer available to the 
hospital, but it is my understanding this financing is still needed for ongoing working capital and, more 
specifically, to support the Cerner integration commencing November 14, 2022. In an effort to reestablish this 
line of credit for the hospital, we will need to align the underwriting structure of the line of credit with the 
bond financing to conform with a municipal underwrite. Ideally this requirement would have been addressed 
during the bond closing but was overlooked as were focused on the bond financing and had a residual tail on 
the prior line of credit maturity. With the line of credit not matured, we will need to address this issue as a 
post-closing item in order to reestablish the facility. 
 
In talking with my credit partner, we will need an acknowledgement or opinion that the Effingham County 
millage pledge referenced in the Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement between Effingham 
County and Effingham County Hospital Authority dated July 10, 2022, applies to the contemplated line of 
credit financing. To be clear and avoid any confusion, Truist is not requesting or requiring a higher millage 
pledge but needs confirmation this pledge can be applied to the line of credit, albeit in a subordinated 
position, should the hospital be unable to repay this obligation. Can you reach out to your Effingham County 
contact to discuss this item so we can move this forward expeditiously in an effort to meet your timeline?  
 
Should you or anyone else on the team have questions or want to discuss, please don’t hesitate to reach out 
via e-mail (jeff.joyner@truist.com) or cell (912-660-9398).  
 
 
      Sincerely, 
 
 
 

Jeff Joyner 
Senior Vice President

 

117

Item XII. 2.

mailto:jeff.joyner@truist.com


Staff Report 

 

Subject:  Final Plat Approval (Fifth District) 

Author:  Teresa Concannon, AICP, Planning & Zoning Manager 

Department:  Development Services 

Meeting Date: November 1, 2022 

Item Description: Toss Allen, for Construction Development Investors, LLC, requests 

approval of the final plat and infrastructure agreement for Oglethorpe Landing ph 1. Map# 446 

Parcel# 13 

 

Summary Recommendation:  

Staff have reviewed the final plat, and inspected the roads and stormwater infrastructure 

identified in the warranty deed, and recommend approval. 

 

Executive Summary/Background:  

 Construction Development Investors, LLC’s contractors have built roads and stormwater 

infrastructure for phase 1. In order to sell the 31 lots of phase 1 for home construction, the 

final plat must be approved, and the roads and stormwater infrastructure accepted by the 

Board of Commissioners. 

 Water and sewer is provided by the City of Springfield. An infrastructure agreement 

confirming Springfield’s ownership of the water and sewer infrastructure that is located in 

the right of way is included in this final plat approval. The Springfield City Manager has 

verified that staff will be recommending acceptance of the water and sewer infrastructure.  

 EOM inspected the right of way and stormwater infrastructure of phase 5B, and 
recommend approval.  

 Development Services staff reviewed the final plat and checklist. All documents are in 
order, and consistent with zoning, plans, and plats approved previously. 

 EOM reviewed the bond recommendation, and approved the bond for $50,332.82, which 

is 10% of the total cost of drainage, concrete work, and paving in phase 1. The applicant 

has submitted a water-sewer infrastructure bond to the City of Springfield. 

 The County Attorney reviewed and approved the warranty deed and infrastructure 

agreement. The utility easement agreement is between the developer and the city, and is 

referenced in the Warranty Deed. 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1 - Approve the final plat and infrastructure agreement for Oglethorpe Landing ph 1, and accept 

the roads and stormwater infrastructure identified in the warranty deed. 

2 – Take no action 

 

Recommended Alternative: Alternative 1  Other Alternatives: N/A 

Department Review: Development Services; EOM; County Attorney 

Funding Source: No new funding requested. 

 

Attachments: 

1. Final Plat for Oglethorpe Landing ph 1  4. Bond  
2. Final Plat Submittal Form & Checklist  5. Infrastructure Agreement 
3. Warranty Deed 

118

Item XII. 3.



119

Item XII. 3.



120

Item XII. 3.



121

Item XII. 3.



122

Item XII. 3.



123

Item XII. 3.



124

Item XII. 3.



125

Item XII. 3.



126

Item XII. 3.



127

Item XII. 3.



128

Item XII. 3.



129

Item XII. 3.



130

Item XII. 3.



131

Item XII. 3.



132

Item XII. 3.



133

Item XII. 3.



134

Item XII. 3.



135

Item XII. 3.



Staff Report 
 
Subject: Approval and publication of two job descriptions for GIS. 
Author:  Sarah Mausolf, Director 
Department:  Human Resources and Risk Management 
Presented By: Tim Callanan, County Manager 
Meeting Date: November 1, 2022 
Item Description: Approval and publication of two job descriptions for GIS. 
Summary Recommendation: 
Staff is requesting authorization to approve and publish two job descriptions for GIS. 
 
 
Executive Summary/Background 
GIS Manager – The purpose of this position is to oversee and supervise the management 
of the County’s enterprise GIS including, but not limited to database management, 
tangible deliverables, increased efficiencies, and technology transfers to non-GIS staff. 
 
This will be a promotion for the current GIS Coordinator, Ms. Pamela Melser, who has 
been with the County since April 2021.  
 
GIS Coordinator- The purpose of this position is to create, maintain, manipulate, and plot 
spatial data and associated databases by using a variety of software and hardware 
products according to the needs of the County agencies and municipalities, as well as the 
general public. 
 
This will be a promotion for the current GIS Technician, Mr. Danny Frazier, who has been 
with the County since November 2020. 
 
 
Alternatives for Commission to Consider 
1.  Approve the job descriptions; authorize publication and distribution. 
2.  Disapprove the job descriptions and provide guidance to staff. 
 
 
Recommended Alternative: Staff recommends Alternative 1. 
 
Other Alternatives: None. 
 
Department Review: County Manager, GIS, and Human Resources. 
 
Funding Source: Funding through Fiscal Year 23 turnover savings.  
 
Attachments: GIS Manager Job Description 
    GIS Coordinator Job Description  

136

Item XII. 4.



 
 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

Job Title: GIS Manager Job Code: ##### 

Reports to: Director of Development 

Services FLSA Status: Exempt 

Department: GIS  

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties 

performed by employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all 

duties performed within the job. 

Purpose of Classification: 

Under limited administrative direction, this position oversees and supervises the 

management of the County’s enterprise GIS including, but not limited to database 

management, tangible deliverables, increased efficiencies, and technology transfers to 

non-GIS staff. Supervision Responsibilities: Oversees the recruitment, employment, 

evaluation, and release of staff and temporary personnel in the GIS Department. 

Principal Duties and Responsibilities (Essential Functions**): 

The following duties are typical for this classification. Incumbents may not perform all 

of the listed duties and/or may be required to perform additional or different duties 

from those set forth below to address business needs and changing business practices. 

Overall responsibility for ensuring that key GIS work elements and integrated solutions 

are managed, maintained, and enhanced to meet County needs and requests 

Develops workflows to ensure that data collection and updates are being recorded 

and published in a timely manner 

Oversees all enterprise GIS operations including database management and 

administration, design and implementation, data development, system administration, 

and technical consulting 

Negotiates consulting and service contracts, ensuring terms are met, writes staff reports, 

and makes presentations to the Board of Commissioners 

Manages and leads GIS initiatives with internal and external agencies, adjacent 

jurisdictions, and the State 

Manages enterprise GIS projects and work programs by planning, prioritizing, 

scheduling, and providing leadership to GIS staff 

Trains GIS staff to assist with plat review for internal departments to meet County 

requirements  

137

Item XII. 4.



 
 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Job Title: GIS Manager Job Code:  ##### 

  

 

Office of Human Resources  Page 2 of 5 

 

Principal Duties and Responsibilities (Essential Functions**) Continued: 

Reviews and submits invoices for payment of GIS Department contracts 

Creates and cultivates cartographic standards for County map production 

Researches solutions for County utilization of GIS data including web application 

development, new software solutions, and mapping integration with existing datasets  

Creates field solutions for data collection 

Implements addressing policies and approves road names for the Planning Board 

according to ordinances and with Planning staff 

Attends training, seminars, workshops and meetings to maintain current knowledge of 

industry trends and technology 

Manages GIS staff; trains, assigns, direst, supervises, evaluates, and disciplines personnel 

within the department 

Develops budget and capital recommendations for the department and administers 

approved funds; approves department purchases 

Able to work independently, with little supervision, and be self-driven 

Additional Functions 

Attends meeting with other departments and County administration to plan, 

recommend, and/or discuss upcoming projects and policies as required 

Responds to public information requests and develops public information policies and 

procedures 

Provides assistance to other employees or departments as needed. 

Completes tasks of the GIS Coordinator in their absence. 

Performs other related duties as required. 

138

Item XII. 4.



 
 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Job Title: GIS Manager Job Code:  ##### 

  

 

Office of Human Resources  Page 3 of 5 

 

 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 

Bachelor’s degree in GIS, Geography, Cartography, Earth Science, or closely related 

field; supplemented by 8 (eight) years previous experience and/or training that includes 

knowledge of and skill in the ArcGIS Platform including Desktop, Enterprise, 

Collector/Field Maps, Online, and Web App Builder; with at least 2 (two) years in a 

management/administrator role; or any equivalent combination of education, training, 

and experience which provides the requisite knowledge, skills, and abilities for this job.   

Preferred certifications: 

 GIS Certified Professional GISP 

 ESRI ArcGIS Desktop Professional 

 ESRI ArcGIS Pro Associate or Professional 

 ESRI Enterprise System Design Associate or Professional 

 ESRI Enterprise Geodata Management Professional 

 ESRI Enterprise Administration Professional 

 ESRI Enterprise Administration Professional 

 

PERFORMANCE APTITUDES 

Data Utilization:  Requires the ability to review, classify, categorize, prioritize, and/or 

analyze data.  Includes exercising discretion in determining data classification, and in 

referencing such analysis to established standards for the purpose of recognizing 

actual or probable interactive effects and relationships.   

Human Interaction:  Requires the ability to function in a managerial capacity for a 

division or organizational unit. Includes the ability to make decisions on procedural and 

technical levels. 

Equipment, Machinery, Tools, and Materials Utilization:  Requires the ability to operate, 

maneuver and/or control the actions of equipment, machinery, tools, and/or materials 

used in performing essential functions.  

Verbal Aptitude:  Requires the ability to utilize a wide variety of reference, descriptive, 

advisory and/or design data and information. 

 

139

Item XII. 4.



 
 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Job Title: GIS Manager Job Code:  ##### 

  

 

Office of Human Resources  Page 4 of 5 

 

PERFORMANCE APTITUDES CONTINUED: 

Mathematical Aptitude:  Requires the ability to perform addition, subtraction, 

multiplication and division; ability to calculate decimals and percentages; may 

include ability to perform mathematical operations involving basic algebraic principles 

and formulas, and basic geometric principles and calculations. 

Functional Reasoning:  Requires the ability to apply principles of influence systems, such 

as motivation, incentive, and leadership, and to exercise independent judgment to 

apply facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to resolve 

problems. 

Situational Reasoning:  Requires the ability to exercise judgment, decisiveness and 

creativity in situations involving the evaluation of information against sensory, 

judgmental, or subjective criteria, as opposed to that which is clearly measurable. 

 

ADA COMPLIANCE 

Physical Ability:  Tasks require the ability to exert moderate, though not constant 

physical effort, typically involving some combination of climbing and balancing, 

stooping, kneeling, crouching, and crawling, and which may involve some lifting, 

carrying, pushing and/or pulling of objects and materials of moderate weight (12-20 

pounds). 

Sensory Requirements: Some tasks require the ability to perceive and discriminate colors 

or shades of colors, sounds, depth, texture, and visual cues or signals.  Some tasks require 

the ability to communicate orally. 

Environmental Factors: Essential functions are regularly performed without exposure to 

adverse environmental conditions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Effingham County, Georgia, is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with the 

Americans with Disabilities Act, the County will provide reasonable accommodations to 

140

Item XII. 4.



 
 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Job Title: GIS Manager Job Code:  ##### 

  

 

Office of Human Resources  Page 5 of 5 

 

qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 

employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 

141

Item XII. 4.



 
 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

Job Title: GIS Coordinator Job Code: ##### 

Reports to: GIS Manager FLSA Status: Non-Exempt 

Department: GIS  

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties 

performed by employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all 

duties performed within the job. 

Position Overview: 

The purpose of this classification is to create, maintain, manipulate, and plot spatial data 

and associated databases by using a variety of software and hardware products 

according to the needs of the County agencies and municipalities, as well as the 

general public. 

Principal Duties and Responsibilities (Essential Functions**): 

The following duties are typical for this classification. Incumbents may not perform all 

of the listed duties and/or may be required to perform additional or different duties 

from those set forth below to address business needs and changing business practices. 

Creates and QA/QCs GIS data and acquired digital data according to specific requests 

from County departments using ESRI’s Arc suite of products and associated commands 

needed to process data into a useable format 

Coordinates the exchange of GIS datasets to meet contractual obligations 

Integrates incoming datasets and maintains data integrity to align with established 

schemas, coordinate systems, and relational datasets and tables 

Maintains field solutions for data collection 

Maintains logins and licenses for GIS software users including ArcGIS Online, Eagle 

View/Pictometry, and RightSpot 

Maintains zoning updates in GIS data; makes comparisons and/or corrections 

referencing zoning maps, deeds, plats, and the Tax Assessor’s digest. 

Maintains software; loads, reviews, and learns software revisions and upgrades for new 

software; renews licenses for users, educates coworkers on use of spatial software or 

operating systems necessary to manipulate, back up, or purge files, hard drive 

maintenance, configuration, and customization 

Coordinates and maintains GIS Licensing agreements 

142

Item XII. 4.



 
 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Job Title: GIS Coordinator Job Code:  ##### 

  

 

Office of Human Resources  Page 2 of 4 

 

Principal Duties and Responsibilities (Essential Functions**) Continued: 

Fields mapping requests from County departments and the public and aligns map 

production with the cartographic standards of the department 

Operates a computer to enter, retrieve, review or modify data; verifies accuracy of 

entered data and makes corrections; utilizes word processing, spreadsheets, or other 

software programs 

Updates GIS soil classification and CAMA cloud data for the Tax Assessor’s office 

Updates and coordinates data layers to be consistent across all GIS software and 

mapping platforms 

Assists in plat review for internal departments  

Coordinates addressing with postal officials, Planning and Zoning Departments, E911, 

and Tax Assessors in alignment with addressing policies and procedures 

Implements GIS training under the supervision of the GIS Manager 

Attend training, seminars, workshops and meetings to maintains current knowledge of 

industry trends and technology 

Well versed in the use of modeling, and scripting languages (Python, Arcade) 

Maintains modeling routines for increased efficiency 

Communicates with supervisor, employees, other departments, the public, and other 

individuals as needed to coordinate GIS data, maintenance, exchange of information, 

or resolve problems 

Able to work independently, with little supervision, and be self-driven 

 

ADDITIONAL FUNCTIONS 

Provides assistance to other employees or departments as needed. 

Completes tasks of the GIS Technician in their absence. 

Performs other related duties as required. 

143

Item XII. 4.



 
 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Job Title: GIS Coordinator Job Code:  ##### 

  

 

Office of Human Resources  Page 3 of 4 

 

 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 

Bachelor’s degree in GIS, Geography, Cartography, Earth Science, or closely related 

field; supplemented by six (6) years previous experience and/or training that includes 

ESRI’s software suite and computer experience; or any equivalent combination of 

education, training, and experience which provides the requisite knowledge, skills, and 

abilities for this job.   

Preferred certifications: 

 GIS Certified Professional GISP 

 GIS Fundamentals Foundation 

 ESRI ArcGIS Desktop Professional 

 ESRI ArcGIS Pro Associate or Professional 

PERFORMANCE APTITUDES 

Data Utilization:  Requires the ability to review, classify, categorize, prioritize, and/or 

analyze data.  Includes exercising discretion in determining data classification, and in 

referencing such analysis to established standards for the purpose of recognizing 

actual or probable interactive effects and relationships.   

Human Interaction:  Requires the ability to exchange information for the purpose of 

clarifying details within well-established policies, procedures and standards. 

Equipment, Machinery, Tools, and Materials Utilization:  Requires the ability to operate, 

maneuver and/or control the actions of equipment, machinery, tools, and/or materials 

used in performing essential functions.  

Verbal Aptitude:  Requires the ability to utilize a wide variety of reference, descriptive, 

advisory and/or design data and information. 

Mathematical Aptitude:  Requires the ability to perform addition, subtraction, 

multiplication and division; ability to calculate decimals and percentages; may 

include ability to perform mathematical operations involving basic algebraic principles 

and formulas, and basic geometric principles and calculations. 

144

Item XII. 4.



 
 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Job Title: GIS Coordinator Job Code:  ##### 

  

 

Office of Human Resources  Page 4 of 4 

 

Functional Reasoning:  Requires the ability to apply principles of influence systems, such 

as motivation, incentive, and leadership, and to exercise independent judgment to 

apply facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to resolve 

problems. 

Situational Reasoning:  Requires the ability to exercise judgment, decisiveness and 

creativity in situations involving evaluation of information against measurable or 

verifiable criteria. 

 

ADA COMPLIANCE 

Physical Ability:  Tasks require the ability to exert moderate, though not constant 

physical effort, typically involving some combination of climbing and balancing, 

stooping, kneeling, crouching, and crawling, and which may involve some lifting, 

carrying, pushing and/or pulling of objects and materials of moderate weight (12-20 

pounds). 

Sensory Requirements: Some tasks require the ability to perceive and discriminate colors 

or shades of colors, sounds, depth, texture, and visual cues or signals.  Some tasks require 

the ability to communicate orally. 

Environmental Factors: Essential functions are regularly performed without exposure to 

adverse environmental conditions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Effingham County, Georgia, is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with the 

Americans with Disabilities Act, the County will provide reasonable accommodations to 

qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 

employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 

145

Item XII. 4.



STAFF REPORT 
 
Subject: 2023 Stop Loss Renewal- Sun Life  
Author:  Sarah Mausolf, Director 
Department: Human Resources and Risk Management 
Presented By: Tim Callanan, County Manager 
Meeting Date:  November 1, 2022 
Item Description: Stop Loss Insurance Renewal for Calendar Year 2023.  
 
Summary Recommendation:  
Staff recommends renewal of the Stop Loss Insurance with Sun Life for Calendar Year 2023. 
The County has had Sun Life Stop Loss Insurance since 1/1/2021. The County’s broker, USI, 
marketed stop loss coverage to seven carriers. They received one quote and four declines. Two 
carriers’ quotes are pending. Initially the 2023 renewal from Sun Life was a 16.2% increase to 
stop loss premiums and 7% increase to claim factors. After final review, Sun Life’s stop loss 
premium increase was lowered to 7.3% with no increase to claim factors. Overall increase to plan 
expected to cost 1.5%. 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES FOR COMMISSION TO CONSIDER: 
1. Approve Staff recommendation as noted above and continue contract with Sun Life for Stop 
Loss Insurance through 12/31/2023. 
2. Disapprove recommendation as noted above and provide staff guidance. 
 
FUNDING: Budget projections for Calendar Year 2023 are sufficient to cover costs if Staff 
recommendations are approved.  Costs associated with the recommendations are flat. 
 
RECOMMENDED ALTERNATIVE: Alternative #1 
 
DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 2023 Effingham County Stop Loss Presentation 
      

146

Item XII. 5.



2023 Stop Loss Marketing Results

Effingham County BOC

O
c

to
b

e
r 

1
7

, 
2

0
2

2

Jeff Pyatt| Tracy Demarest| Lisa Parker Fort
www.usi.com 147

Item XII. 5.



Key Report Highlights

 The medical administration with Meritain is in a rate guarantee until January 2024.

 The preliminary Sun Life stop loss renewal increase to ISL premiums is 16%. Final increase was

 Current medical plan designs are presented and will be updated after Board approval.

 Current Premium Equivalent medical rates are presented and will be updated after the stop

loss renewal is finalized.

 Open enrollment dates to be discussed.

 Renewal Timelines & Next Steps will be reviewed and adjusted, if necessary.

4

lowered to 7.3% with no increase to claim factors.

148

Item XII. 5.



Executive Summary

The following summarizes actions and strategies related to the 2023 Effingham County Board of 

Commissioners employee benefit program renewal.

Summary of January 1, 2023 Renewal 

Renewal Carrier Status Decision Factors

Meritain

TPA

COBRA Administration

EAP Services

Under rate guarantee N/A

Sun Life

Stop Loss

Renewal received Preliminary SL renewal increase was 16%. 

Final rate increase is 7.3% with no 

increase to claims factors. USI marketed 

but received no competitive quotes.

MetLife

Dental

Vision 

Dental and Vision renewals received MetLife renewal increase for dental was 

25.1%.  USI negotiated a 15% increase.  

Vison renewal was flat. MetLife rates are 

below proposals USI obtained from the 

market.

Mutual of Omaha

Basic Life/AD&D

Voluntary Life/AD&D

Short-Term Disability

Long Term Disability

All lines under rate guarantee until 1/1/24 N/A

iSolved

FSA Administration

Under rate guarantee N/A

Renewal Financial Impact TBD
5

149

Item XII. 5.



Marketing Results

Stop Loss Marketing Results

Benefits & Rates Illustrations

6

150

Item XII. 5.



Stop Loss Marketing Results

Stop Loss coverage is currently with Sun Life. This is the second renewal with Sun Life.

2022 Renewal: 

• 2021 was first year self-funded for Effingham County and claims were higher than prior years.

• One high-cost claimant had claims near $2M.

• Overall claims increased due to high inpatient utilization and COVID-19 claims.

• The Sun Life renewal for 2022 was held in check due to USI policy provisions of no new lasers at

renewal and 40% renewal cap.  The ISL renewal increase for 2022 was 40%.

2023 Renewal:

• The preliminary 2023 renewal from Sun Life was a 16.2% increase to stop loss premiums and 7%

increase to claims factors.

• After final review, Sun Life’s stop loss premium increase was lowered to 7.3% with no increase to

claims factors.  Overall increase to plan expected costs is 1.5%.

• Sun Life will lock in renewal without review of September claims.

• USI received September claims and they were extremely high. Best to lock in now.

• USI marketed stop loss coverage to seven carriers. We received one quote and four declines. Two

carriers’ quotes are pending.

• Symetra quote:  7.3% above current on SL premiums and 7.9% higher on claims factors.

Expected costs are $385k higher than Sun Life renewal

7

151

Item XII. 5.



Effingham County Board of Commissioners

Medical/Rx Plan - Meritain

2022 Cost Summary

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12) (13) (14)

3+4 7+8+9 10/2 5+6 5+10 10/6

Total 

Members

Total 

Ees

Admin 

Fees

Stop Loss 

Premium
Total 

Budgeted 

Claims

Medical 

Claims

Rx 

Claims

Over 

SSL 

Net Total 

Claims

Net Claims/ 

Ee
Budgeted

Actual 

Net

Net Claims / 

Budgeted

Jan-22 703   365 $13,323 $111,673 $124,996 $387,356 $210,566 $79,509 -  $290,075 $795 $512,352 $415,071 74.9%

Feb-22 675   356 $12,994 $108,238 $121,232 $375,498 $167,108 $87,856 -  $254,963 $716 $496,730 $376,195 67.9%

Mar-22 671   359 $13,104 $108,504 $121,607 $377,614 $554,187 $114,397 ($56,777) $611,807 $1,704 $499,221 $733,414 162.0%

Apr-22 670   360 $13,140 $109,396 $122,536 $380,578 $165,383 $87,415 ($3,919) $248,879 $691 $503,114 $371,415 65.4%

May-22 668   357 $13,031 $109,298 $122,329 $379,741 $224,873 $81,395 ($1,596) $304,673 $853 $502,069 $427,001 80.2%

Jun-22 668   357 $13,031 $109,024 $122,055 $378,481 $214,980 $69,659 ($3,961) $280,678 $786 $500,536 $402,733 74.2%

Jul-22 659   353 $12,885 $108,121 $121,005 $375,022 $186,074 $114,385 ($520) $299,939 $850 $496,027 $420,944 80.0%

Aug-22 662   355 $12,958 $108,733 $121,691 $377,333 $224,871 $129,362 -  $354,233 $998 $499,024 $475,924 93.9%

Sep-22 669   366 $13,359 $110,925 $124,284 $385,790 $421,999 $125,195 $547,194 $1,495 $510,073 $671,478 141.8%

Oct-22

Nov-22

Dec-22

Totals 6,045   3,228 $117,822 $983,912 $1,101,734 $3,417,413 $2,370,042 $889,171 ($66,773) $3,192,441 $989 $4,519,147 $4,294,175 93.4%

Notes

1. Aggregate corridor is 125%. Specific Stop Loss is $125,000.

2. Stop Loss Contract- Specific Stop Loss: 12/15 / Aggregate Stop Loss: 12/12 w/ TLO.

Total Plan CostPaid ClaimsEnrollment Fixed Costs PositionForecasted Claims

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22

Budgeted vs. Net Claims

Budgeted

Claims

Net Total

Claims

CONFIDENTIAL | © 2022 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved. 8

152

Item XII. 5.

Tracy.Demarest
Highlight

Tracy.Demarest
Highlight



Effingham County Board of Commissioners

Medical Plan

Administrative Fees

January 1, 2023 Renewal Date

Stop Loss Outline Current

Third Party Administrator Meritain

USI Preferred TPA Preferred

Network Name Aetna Choice POS II

Pharmacy Benefit Manager CVS

Stop Loss Carrier Sun Life

Per Employee Per Month Fees

Medical Administration $31.00

COBRA Administration Included

PBM Interface Fee Included

Stop Loss Interface Fee Included

UR / Case Management Included

Disease Management $2.10

Network Access Fee Included

Telemedicine $1.55

EAP $1.85

Rate Guarantee Until 1/1/2024

Additional Fees & Revenue Share

ATLAS - Arrow Reporting Included

SBC Preparation Waived

NYHCRA/HCRA Surcharge Reporting $105/Month

Wellness Allowance N/A

Monthly Administration Fee Waiver N/A

Total Cost Ee

Total PEPM Fees 355   $36.50

Annual Total $155,490

Annual Total $155,490 

Notes

1. Enrollment source: Meritain June 2022 Enrollment Report

CONFIDENTIAL | © 2022 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved. 9

153

Item XII. 5.



Effingham County Board of Commissioners

Medical Plan

Self Funded Rates & Factors

January 1, 2023 Renewal Date

Stop Loss Outline Current Renewal Renewal Alt 1 Renewal Alt 2 Option 1

TPA/Network Name Meritain Meritain Meritain Meritain Meritain

Stop Loss Carrier Sun Life Sun Life Sun Life Sun Life Symetra

Specific Stop Loss (SSL) $125,000 $125,000 $150,000 $175,000 $125,000

Lasers $0 $0 $0 $0 TBD

Contract Basis 12/15 12/15 12/15 12/15 24/12

Coverages Included Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx

Automatic SSL reimbursement? Included Included Included Included Included

Annual Reimbursement Max Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited

No New Laser at Renewal Included Included Included Included Included

% Rate Cap at Renewal 40% 40% 40% 40% 50%

Aggregate Stop Loss (ASL) 125% 125% 125% 125% 125%

Contract Basis 12/12 w/ TLO 12/12 w/ TLO 12/12 w/ TLO 12/12 w/ TLO 24/12

Coverages Included Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx

Annual Reimbursement Max $1 million $1 million $1 million $1 million $1 million

Monthly Accommodation Included Included Included Included Not Included

Minimum Attachment 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Rates firm w/ data Firm Thru 10/7/22 Firm Thru 10/7/22 Firm Thru 10/7/22 Claims thru 9/30/22

Fixed Costs Employees

Administration 355   $36.50 $36.50 $36.50 $36.50 $36.50

Annual Total (with credits) $155,490 $155,490 $155,490 $155,490 $155,490

Specific SL Premium- Employee 207   $173.46 $186.50 $165.84 $146.06 $209.09

Specific SL Premium- Employee + Spouse 36   $421.62 $453.33 $403.09 $355.00 $416.52

Specific SL Premium- Employee + Child(ren) 58   $361.40 $388.57 $345.52 $304.30 $368.84

Specific SL Premium- Family 54   $622.40 $669.21 $595.04 $524.05 $625.63

Aggregate SL Premium 355   $8.67 $8.67 $8.67 $8.67 $8.98

Annual Total $1,304,798 $1,400,132 $1,249,083 $1,104,484 $1,399,692

Percentage Change 7.3% -4.3% -15.4% 7.3%

Annual Total Fixed Costs $1,460,288 $1,555,622 $1,404,573 $1,259,974 $1,555,182

Percentage Change 6.5% -3.8% -13.7% 6.5%

Claims Liability

Maximum Claims- Employee 207   $753.53 $753.53 $777.43 $799.22 $811.67

Maximum Claims- Employee + Spouse 36   $1,529.68 $1,529.68 $1,577.22 $1,620.34 $1,616.85

Maximum Claims- Employee + Child(ren) 58   $1,318.02 $1,318.02 $1,359.13 $1,396.41 $1,430.97

Maximum Claims- Family 54   $2,235.29 $2,235.29 $2,304.27 $2,366.83 $2,428.52

Maximum Annual Total $4,898,400 $4,898,400 $5,051,617 $5,190,857 $5,284,304

Percentage Change 0.0% 3.1% 6.0% 7.9%

Expected Annual Total $3,918,720 $3,918,720 $4,041,293 $4,152,685 $4,227,443

0.0% 3.1% 6.0% 7.9%

Total Cost

Annual Total Expected Costs $5,379,008 $5,474,342 $5,445,867 $5,412,660 $5,782,625

Change from Current $95,333 $66,858 $33,651 $403,616

Percentage Change 1.8% 1.2% 0.6% 7.5%

Annual Total Maximum Costs $6,358,688 $6,454,022 $6,456,190 $6,450,831 $6,839,485

Change from Current $95,333 $97,502 $92,143 $480,797

Percentage Change 1.5% 1.5% 1.4% 7.6%

CONFIDENTIAL | © 2022 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved. 10

154

Item XII. 5.



Effingham County Board of Commissioners

Medical Plan

Benefit Outline and Cost Summary

January 1, 2023 Renewal Date

Current

Benefit Outline Base Buy-up

Carrier Meritain Meritain

Plan Type, Name, Network Aetna Choice POS II Aetna Choice POS II

Deductible (Individual / Family) $2,500 / $5,000 $1,500 / $3,000

Non-network Deductible (Individual / Family) $7,500 / $15,000 $4,500 / $9,000

Deductible Embedded / Non-embedded Embedded Embedded

$7,350 / $14,700 $7,150 / $14,300

 Non-network OOP Max (Individual / Family) $21,450 / $42,900 $21,450 / $42,900

Prescription OOP Max (Individual / Family) Included w/ Medical Included w/ Medical

Coinsurance (In/Out) 80% / 50% 90% / 50%

Wellness / Preventive Care 100% 100%

Primary Care Office Visit $35 copay $25 copay

Specialist Office Visit $70 copay $50 copay

Walk-In / Urgent Care Visit $60 copay $60 copay

Emergency Room $250 copay + 80% (dw) $150 copay + 90% (dw)

Outpatient Lab / X-Ray 80% (ad) 90% (ad)

Complex Imaging (MRI, CAT, PET, et.al.) 80% (ad) 90% (ad)

Outpatient Surgical Facility 80% (ad) 90% (ad)

Inpatient Hospital Facility 80% (ad) 90% (ad)

Prescription Deductible (Individual / Family) $400 / $800 $200 / $400

Retail Prescription Drug Copays $15 / $45 / $85 $15 / $45 / $85

Mail Order Prescription Drug Copays $15 / $90 / $255 $15 / $90 / $255

Specialty Prescription Drugs 20% (ad) up to $300 max 20% (ad) up to $300 max

Rates & Total Cost Base Buy-up

Employee 122   85  $910.17 $994.15

Employee + Spouse 28  8  $2,002.40 $2,187.15

Employee + Child(ren) 47  11  $1,510.88 $1,650.29

Employee + Spouse & Child(ren) 32  22  $2,512.09 $2,743.84

Total Employees 229   126   

Annual Total $5,988,286

Notes

1. (dw) = deductible waived

2. (ad) = after deductible

3. Enrollment source: Meritain August 2022 Enrollment Report.

Out-of-Pocket Maximum (Individual / Family)

CONFIDENTIAL | © 2022 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved. 11

155

Item XII. 5.



Stop Loss Marketing Results

Sun Life is offering a new program for Effingham County called Health Navigator

Enhanced Stop Loss Contract

• “Step Down Deductible”:  Reduces spec deductible by 10% for engaged members

• 3% reduction in aggregate factors lowers aggregate claims burden.

Member Advantages:

• Health Navigator is a concierge medical intelligence organization. Personal health advisors provide high-touch

support to members when faced with a medical condition.

• Access 130 COEs (national and regional institutions) and over 30,000 vetted physicians, as well as 4,500

experts for virtual consultations.

• In operation for 21 years with an NPS score of 93 (extremely high)

Employer Advantages:

• Employers mitigate risk and manage high-cost claims through member health advisory, treatment decision

support, expert medical opinions, and fast access to top physicians.

• White glove service provided to employees

• Employers achieve 3:1 ROI resulting in  hundreds of thousands to millions saved in unnecessary health care

spend. (Based on program cost of $3.80 pepm. USI is negotiating cost of program for increased ROI.)

• Whiteboard Video: Health Navigator Video

• Interactive Website: https://view.ceros.com/sun-life/health-navigator-success-story/p/1

12

156

Item XII. 5.

https://share.vidyard.com/watch/Utzbsa2ttps9Losg6nTVaB
https://view.ceros.com/sun-life/health-navigator-success-story/p/1


Staff Report 
Subject: Old Augusta Road Corridor Study 

Author: Angela Stanley, Project Manager 

Department: County Engineering  

Meeting Date: November 1, 2022 

Item Description: Approval of Old Augusta Road Corridor Study 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends Approval of the Old Augusta Road 

Corridor Study 

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 Old Augusta Road is a north-south roadway in southeastern Effingham County 

and is home to a number of sites that have substantial planned developments, 

with further sites available and anticipated to be developed in the future. As such, 

the County has pursued a transportation study along the roadway from SR 21 to 

Chimney Road, with a focus on access management and long-term needs of the 

corridor. The study will serve as a more detailed study of the Old Augusta Road 

corridor, building off of the work that was completed as part of the Effingham 

County Transportation Master Plan.  

 The study is looking at Old Augusta Road from SR 21 to Chimney Road, 

Chimney Road from Old Augusta Road to SR 21, and SR 21 between Old 

Augusta Road and Chimney Road.  

 The Old Augusta Road Corridor study has all data collection, developer 

coordination, needs analysis for existing and future conditions, physical 

improvements, policy recommendations, conceptual roundabout designs. 

 This study was done to summarize the findings and preliminary 

recommendations regarding Old Augusta Road in respects to SR 21 and 

Chimney Road. 

 Study needed to evaluate the impacts of planned developments along Old 

Augusta Road, as well as future growth in the area. 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Approval of the Old Augusta Road Corridor Study 

2. Take no action 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2 

Department Review: County Manager 

Funding Source:  

Attachments: Pond summarized study 

157

Item XII. 6.



158

Item XII. 6.



159

Item XII. 6.



160

Item XII. 6.



161

Item XII. 6.



162

Item XII. 6.



163

Item XII. 6.



164

Item XII. 6.



165

Item XII. 6.



166

Item XII. 6.



167

Item XII. 6.



168

Item XII. 6.



169

Item XII. 6.



170

Item XII. 6.



171

Item XII. 6.



172

Item XII. 6.



173

Item XII. 6.



174

Item XII. 6.



175

Item XII. 6.



176

Item XII. 6.



177

Item XII. 6.



178

Item XII. 6.



179

Item XII. 6.



180

Item XII. 6.



181

Item XII. 6.



182

Item XII. 6.



183

Item XII. 6.



184

Item XII. 6.



Staff Report 
Subject: Approval of Change Order #3 for Task Order 22-006 with Pond & Company 

for the Stormwater Master Plan 

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: Public Works 

Meeting Date: November 1, 2022 

Item Description: Change Order #3 for Task Order 22-006 with Pond & Company for 

the Stormwater Master Plan 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of Change Order #3 for 

Task Order 22-006 with Pond & Company for the Stormwater Master Plan in the 

amount of $30,000 

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 In 2021, the County received a Coastal Incentive Grant for the Stormwater Master Plan.   

 The scope of the grant and the contract awarded to Pond and Company to prepare the 

Masterplan in May 2022. This agreement was based on modeling the 8 southern HUC 

12 watersheds. This change order request is to add the northern 7 HUC 12 watersheds 

that were not included in the original scope.  

 Original Contract = $220,600.00 

 Previous change orders = $24,954.48 

 This change order = $30,000.00 

 New Task Order Total = $275,554.48 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 

1. Approval of Change Order #3 for Task Order 22-006 with Pond & Company for 

the Stormwater Master Plan in the amount of $30,000 

2. Take no action 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2 

Department Review: County Manager, Project Manager, Finance 

Funding Source: Fund #560-4910-560-54-3000 

Attachments: Change Order 3 Request from Pond & Company  

 

 

 

 

185

Item XII. 7.



All Pond marketing materials are printed on papers containing post-consumer recycled fibers and are FSC Certified. 

 

October 19, 2022 

 

Mr. Tim Callanan 

County Manager 

Effingham County Board of Commissioners 

601 N. Laurel Street 

Springfield, Georgia 31329 

 

RE:  Stormwater Master Plan | Task Order No. 22-005 – Change Order No. 3: Northern HUC 12 Watershed Modeling 

 

Dear Mr. Callanan:  

 

Pond respectfully requests your approval of Change Order No. 3 as it relates to the Stormwater Master Plan | Task Order 

No. 22-005.  The approved budget for Task 2 – Stormwater Flow Projections was based modeling the 8 southern HUC 12 

watersheds. The northern seven HUC 12 watersheds were not included in the original scope and fee.  Pond is requesting 

an additional $30,000 to complete the modeling of the seven northern HUC 12 watersheds.  The breakdown is as follows: 

 

Project:    Stormwater Master Plan | Task Order No. 22-005  

Contract Date:    May 19, 2022       

Change Order Effective Date:  _______________      

Change Order Issued to:  Pond & Company      

    49 Park of Commerce Way, Suite 203    

    Savannah, Georgia 31405     

     

ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION UNITS BID QTY UNIT PRICE TOTAL 

1 Stormwater Flow Projections – Northern Part of 

County 

Hours 200 $150 $30,000.00 

 TOTAL    $30,000.00 

 

The original Contract Sum was ............................................................................................................... $220,600.00 

Net change by previously authorized Change Orders .............................................................................. $24,954.48 

The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was................................................................................. $245,554.48 

The Contract Sum will be increased by this Change Order ...................................................................... $30,000.00 

The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be .................................................................. $275,554.48 

The Contract Time will be increased by _0_ days 

The Time allowed for completion is therefore __N/A  _ 

  

186

Item XII. 7.



 

 

 

Page 2 

 

We thank you for your consideration of this Change Order and look forward to the opportunity to continue to partner with 

Effingham County on this and future projects. 

 

Pond & Company 

 

 

 

Chris Fagerstrom, PE     Melissa Phillips 

Associate Principal | Director of Water Resources  Business Development Manager 

Project Manager       Client Liaison 

 

 

Please indicate your ACCEPTANCE below to approve the authorized changes to this Contract. 

 

Owner 

Effingham County Board of Commissioners   

601 N. Laurel Street  

Springfield, Georgia 31329      

 

Name:  Wesley Corbitt, Chairman    

 

Signature:        

 

Date:         

 

Attested by: 

 

Name: Stephanie Johnson, County Clerk   

 

Signature:        

 

Date:         

 

 

Consultant 

Pond & Company 

49 Park of Commerce Way, Suite 203 

Savannah, Georgia 31405 

 

Name:         

 

Signature:        

 

Date:         

 

187

Item XII. 7.



Staff Report 
Subject: Approval of Change Order #1 to Task Order 21-25-004 with Roberts Civil 

Engineering for the FDRE for Ash Roads Design and Construction Management  

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: Public Works 

Meeting Date: November 1, 2022 

Item Description: Change Order #1 to Task Order 21-25-004 with Roberts Civil 

Engineering for the FDRE for Ash Roads Design and Construction Management 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of Change Order #1 to Task 

Order 21-25-004 with Roberts Civil Engineering for the FDRE for Ash Roads Design 

and Construction Management 

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 The original agreement with RCE for the FDRE of Ash Roads included 13 

different roads/areas. Six (6) of the roads were moved from the FDRE project 

and moved to the LMIG 2022 project.  

 Change Order 1 reflects the engineering costs of those six roads and moves 

them to the LMIG 2022 Agreement with RCE, which will result in a deduction of  

(-$65,000). The road breakdown is as follows: 

o Scuffletown Road 

o Courthouse Road Ext.  

o Corinth Church Road 

o Old Dixie Highway 

o Mt. Pleasant Road 

o Old Augusta Road 1 

o Archer Road 

o Old August Road 2 

o Whitaker Road 

o Floyd Avenue 

o Clark Road 

o Bethany Road 

o Bird Road 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Approval of Change Order #1 to Task Order 21-25-004 with Roberts Civil 

Engineering for the FDRE for Ash Roads Design and Construction Management 

2. Take no action. 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2 

Department Review: County Manager, Project Manager, Purchasing 

Funding Source: Deduction, no additional funding 

Attachments: 

1. Change Order #1  

2. Request from Roberts Civil Engineering 

188

Item XII. 8.



Change Order # 1

 
 

Project: 21-25-004 – Engineering for FDRE for Ash Roads - TSPLOST 

Contract Date: June 15, 2021 

Change Order Effective Date: November 1, 2021 

Change Order Issued to: Roberts Civil Engineering 

    301 Sea Island Rd., Suite 10 

    St. Simons Island, GA. 31522 

 
You are directed to make the following changes to this Contract. 

 
ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION Unit Price Total 

1 Deduction to Agreement (- $65,000) (- $65,000) 

 - Roads moved to LMIG Agreement   

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 TOTAL  (- $65,000) 

 
The original Contract Sum was............................................................................$ 449,285.00 

Net change by previously authorized Change Orders....................................$ 0 

The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was...........................................$ 449,285.00 

The Contract Sum will be decreased by this Change Order.......................... (-$ 65,000) 

The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be..........................$ 384,285.00 

 

 

 

Owner       Contractor 

Effingham County Board of Commissioners  Roberts Civil Engineering 

804 S. Laurel Street     301 Sea Island Rd., Suite 10 

Springfield, GA 31329     St. Simons Island, GA. 31522 

 

 

By: ______________________________________  By: ________________________________ 

 

 

Date: ___________________________________  Date: ______________________________ 

189

Item XII. 8.



Roberts Civil Engineering Municipal Team  

Additional Service Proposal #1 

to 

Effingham County Full Depth Reclamation (FDRE) Project 

October 5, 2022 

190

Item XII. 8.



P a g e  | 2 

   Add Service Proposal #1 to Full Depth Reclamation (FDRE) Project 

Table of Contents 

Letter of Interest ........................................................................................................................................... 3 

Fee Proposal .................................................................................................................................................. 4 

191

Item XII. 8.



P a g e  | 3 

   Add Service Proposal #1 to Full Depth Reclamation (FDRE) Project 

Ms. Angela Stanley 

Effingham County  

804 South Laurel Street 

Springfield, Georgia 31329 

Re: Add Service Proposal #2 to Full Depth Reclamation (FDRE) Project 

Dear Ms. Stanley, 

Following up on our various conversations regarding our Effingham County FDRE and 2022 LMIG Projects, 

we respectfully request an adjustment of our FDRE Project Not to Exceed Fee for shifting the work 

scheduled to be performed on Bethany Road, Bird Road, Clark Road, Floyd Avenue, Old Augusta Road II, 

and Whitaker Road to our 2022 LMIG Project. As discussed, this FDRE Project Not to Exceed Fee Reduction 

is a simple Fee Shift to follow the enhancements on these former FDRE roads that were shifted to our 

2022 LMIG Project. We will simultaneously submit a separate balancing Fee Increase Proposal to our 

Effingham 2022 LMIG Project.  

Thank you again for the opportunity to serve Effingham County on both of these important projects. 

Sincerely, 

Johnathan Roberts, P.E. 

President 

192

Item XII. 8.



P a g e  | 4 

   Add Service Proposal #1 to Full Depth Reclamation (FDRE) Project 

FEE PROPOSAL 

PreConstruction Phase and Construction Phase Services: 

Shift Fee to Effingham 2022 LMIG Project: ($ 65,000.) Not to Exceed Fee 

Total:  ($ 65,000.) Not to Exceed Fee 

The Hourly Billable Rates we have used in this Proposal to project our Not to Exceed Fees are tied to our 

existing May 11, 2021 Indefinite Delivery Contract with Effingham County. In accordance with the Terms 

and Conditions of that agreement, we will only invoice for Hours actually worked. RCE believes that the 

Hours allowed for within this Proposal are sufficiently ample to properly and efficiently complete the 

Project, and that there is the potential for Fee Savings assuming normally anticipated paving repairs.  

193

Item XII. 8.



Staff Report 
Subject: Approval of Change Order #1 to LMIG 2022 Support and CM Services 

Agreement with Roberts Civil Engineering 

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: Public Works 

Meeting Date: November 1, 2022 

Item Description: Change Order #1 to LMIG 2022 Support and CM Services 

Agreement with Roberts Civil Engineering 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of Change Order #1 to 

LMIG 2022 Support and CM Services Agreement with Roberts Civil Engineering 

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 Request 1 included in this Change Order is for the design and construction 

management for improvements to the Sandhill Complex. These improvements 

will improve the parking/line-up situation for parents picking up their children from 

the school.  

 Request 2 included in the Change Order is the $65,000 that was deducted from 

the FDRE Design/CM Agreement. Six (6) of the roads from the FDRE project 

were moved to the LMIG 2022 project.  

 The total for this change order is $78,200.00 bringing the overall agreement total 

to $136,227.00. 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Approval of Change Order #1 to LMIG 2022 Support and CM Services 

Agreement with Roberts Civil Engineering for $78,200 

2. Take no action 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2 

Department Review: Public Works 

Funding Source: Req 1- There is no funding for the Sandhill Improvements at this 

time. A budget amendment will be necessary. Req 2- TSPLOST already budgeted. 

Attachments: 

1. Change Order 

2. RCE Request 1 

3. RCE Request 2 

 

 

 

194

Item XII. 9.



Change Order # 1

 
 

Project: 2022 LMIG Support and CM Services 

Contract Date: December 15, 2021 

Change Order Effective Date: November 1, 2021 

Change Order Issued to: Roberts Civil Engineering 

    301 Sea Island Rd., Suite 10 

    St. Simons Island, GA. 31522 

 
You are directed to make the following changes to this Contract. 

 
ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION Unit Price Total 

1 Driveway Improvements for the Sandhill Complex   

 - PreConstruction Phase Services $6,600.00 $6,600.00 

 - Construction Phase Services $6,600.00 $6,600.00 

    

2 Roads moved to LMIG Agreement from FDRE 

Agreement  
$65,000.00 $65,000.00 

    

    

    

    

 TOTAL   

 
The original Contract Sum was............................................................................$ 58,027.00 

Net change by previously authorized Change Orders....................................$ 0 

The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was...........................................$ 58,027.00 

The Contract Sum will be increased by this Change Order............................$ 78,200.00 

The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be..........................$ 136,227.00 

 

 

 

Owner       Contractor 

Effingham County Board of Commissioners  Roberts Civil Engineering 

804 S. Laurel Street     301 Sea Island Rd., Suite 10 

Springfield, GA 31329     St. Simons Island, GA. 31522 

 

 

By: ______________________________________  By: ________________________________ 

 

 

Date: ___________________________________  Date: ______________________________ 

195

Item XII. 9.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Roberts Civil Engineering Municipal Team  

Additional Service Proposal #1 

to 

Effingham County 2022 LMIG Support and CM Services Project 

 

October 5, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

196

Item XII. 9.



P a g e  | 2 

 

 

   Add Service Proposal #1 to 2022 LMIG Support and CM Services Project 

 

 

 

Table of Contents 
 

Letter of Interest ........................................................................................................................................... 3 

Proposed Work Plan ..................................................................................................................................... 4 

Fee Proposal .................................................................................................................................................. 5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

197

Item XII. 9.



P a g e  | 3 

 

 

   Add Service Proposal #1 to 2022 LMIG Support and CM Services Project 

 

 

 

Ms. Angela Stanley 

Effingham County  

804 South Laurel Street 

Springfield, Georgia 31329 

 

Re: Add Service Proposal #1 to 2022 LMIG Support and CM Services Project 

 

Dear Ms. Stanley,  

The Roberts Civil Engineering Municipal Team is pleased to submit this Add Service Proposal to Effingham 

County for the Design and Construction Administration of the Driveway Improvements at your Sand Hill 

Sports Complex. We appreciate this additional opportunity to serve Effingham County.  

We are prepared to commence Design Phase Services immediately upon your authorization to begin.   

My Team and I look forward to meeting with you at your convenience to discuss how we can best serve 

Effingham County.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

Johnathan Roberts, P.E. 

President 

 

 

 

198

Item XII. 9.



P a g e  | 4 

 

 

   Add Service Proposal #1 to 2022 LMIG Support and CM Services Project 

PROPOSED WORK PLAN 

Planning, Design, Specification 
Upon your authorization to begin, the Roberts Civil Engineering Municipal Team will meet with 

representatives of the Effingham County Parks and Landscape Department and with you to define and 

study the Driveway access and egress issues at the Sports Complex, and will work to design an appropriate 

solution. Upon County approval of a Design Concept, we will generate a basic Design for the necessary 

improvements.   

Contract Document Packaging  
It is our understanding that the improvements at the Sports Complex will be contracted for and 
constructed as part of our existing 2022 LMIG Project, and that it is the County’s intention for our 2022 
LMIG Project Contractor, McLendon Enterprises, Inc., to be included on the Sports Complex Team. We will 
oversee and manage the process of adjusting McLendon’s existing 2022 LMIG Agreement to incorporate 
the scope of these improvements. 

Construction Management 
The Roberts Civil Engineering Municipal Team will provide comprehensive Construction Management 
services during the Sports Complex Driveway improvements. RCE will plan and lead pre-construction 
planning meetings, plan and lead weekly onsite meetings with all stakeholders, provide RFI review and 
responses, facilitate scheduling and access coordination, provide and document weekly site quality 
control inspections, evaluate Contractor pay requests, review Contractor materials testing results, 
conduct final punch list inspections, and support final project close- out approvals. The RCE team 
understands the vital importance of clear and open lines of communication between Effingham County 
staff, the Construction Management team, and the Contractor. RCE will provide the documentation of the 
weekly onsite meetings and weekly site quality control inspections necessary to keeping the Contractor 
successfully on schedule. RCE will proactively address unforeseen challenges. Ensuring the success of the 
Project for the Residents of Effingham County is our mission.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

199

Item XII. 9.



P a g e  | 5 

 

 

   Add Service Proposal #1 to 2022 LMIG Support and CM Services Project 

FEE PROPOSALS 

 

PreConstruction Phase Services: 

Planning, Design Support (40 Hour Allow): $ 6,600. Not to Exceed Fee 

 PreConstruction Phase Services Total:   $ 6,600. Not to Exceed Fee 

 

Construction Phase Services: 

 Contracting, CM Support (40 Hour Allow): $ 6,600. Not to Exceed Fee 

 Construction Phase Services Total:   $ 6,600. Not to Exceed Fee 

 

Project Total:         $ 13,200. Not to Exceed Fee 

 

The Hourly Billable Rates we have used in this Proposal to project our Not to Exceed Fees for LMIG 

Application Support and Project Management are tied to our existing May 11, 2021 Indefinite Delivery 

Contract with Effingham County. In accordance with the Terms and Conditions of that agreement, we will 

only invoice for Hours actually worked. RCE believes that the Hours allowed for within this Proposal are 

sufficiently ample to properly and efficiently manage the PreConstruction and Construction Phases of the 

Project, and that there is the potential for Fee Savings within each of our Not to Exceed Fees assuming 

normally anticipated paving repairs. If it is determined that the scope of the work at the Sand Hill Sports 

Complex is to be expanded, RCE reserves the right to negotiate mutually- equitable adjustments to our 

proposed Construction Phase Services Not to Exceed Fee. 

The Roberts Civil Engineering Municipal Team would be honored to serve Effingham County with both 

PreConstruction Phase and Construction Phase Services. RCE proposes to earn the future Construction 

Phase award by first delivering superior PreConstruction Phase service. Effingham County may purchase 

PreConstruction Services alone without any obligation to purchase future Construction Phase Services.  

200

Item XII. 9.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Roberts Civil Engineering Municipal Team  

Additional Service Proposal #2 

to 

Effingham County 2022 LMIG Support and CM Services Project 

 

October 5, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

201

Item XII. 9.



P a g e  | 2 

 

 

   Add Service Proposal #2 to 2022 LMIG Support and CM Services Project 

 

 

 

Table of Contents 
 

Letter of Interest ........................................................................................................................................... 3 

Fee Proposal .................................................................................................................................................. 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

202

Item XII. 9.



P a g e  | 3 

 

 

   Add Service Proposal #2 to 2022 LMIG Support and CM Services Project 

 

 

 

 

Ms. Angela Stanley 

Effingham County  

804 South Laurel Street 

Springfield, Georgia 31329 

 

Re: Add Service Proposal #2 to 2022 LMIG Support and CM Services Project 

 

Dear Ms. Stanley,  

Following up on our various conversations regarding our Effingham County FDRE and 2022 LMIG Projects, 

we respectfully request an adjustment of our 2022 LMIG Project Not to Exceed Fee for managing the work 

scheduled to be performed on Bethany Road, Bird Road, Clark Road, Floyd Avenue, Old Augusta Road II, 

and Whitaker Road. As discussed, this adjustment is not a Fee Increase, but rather a simple Fee Shift from 

our FDRE Project Not to Exceed Fee to follow the enhancements on these former FDRE roads that were 

shifted to our 2022 LMIG Project. We will simultaneously submit a separate balancing Fee Reduction 

Proposal to our Effingham FDRE Project.  

Thank you again for the opportunity to serve Effingham County on both of these important projects.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

Johnathan Roberts, P.E. 

President 

 

 

 

 

 

203

Item XII. 9.



P a g e  | 4 

 

 

   Add Service Proposal #2 to 2022 LMIG Support and CM Services Project 

 

 

FEE PROPOSAL 

 

PreConstruction Phase and Construction Phase Services: 

Shift Fee from Effingham FDRE Project:   $ 65,000. Not to Exceed Fee 

 Total:       $ 65,000. Not to Exceed Fee 

 

 

The Hourly Billable Rates we have used in this Proposal to project our Not to Exceed Fees are tied to our 

existing May 11, 2021 Indefinite Delivery Contract with Effingham County. In accordance with the Terms 

and Conditions of that agreement, we will only invoice for Hours actually worked. RCE believes that the 

Hours allowed for within this Proposal are sufficiently ample to properly and efficiently complete the 

Project, and that there is the potential for Fee Savings assuming normally anticipated paving repairs.  

204

Item XII. 9.



Staff Report 
Subject: Approval of Change Order #1 for Task Order 22-25-006 for the TSPLOST 

Intersections Design and Construction Management with Roberts Civil Engineering 

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: Public Works  

Meeting Date: November 1, 2022 

Item Description: Change Order #1 for Task Order 22-25-006 for the TSPLOST 

Intersections Design and Construction Management with Roberts Civil Engineering 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approval for Change Order #1 for 

Task Order 22-25-006 for the TSPLOST Intersections Design and Construction 

Management with Roberts Civil Engineering in the amount of $148,484.00 

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 Staff requested a change order from Roberts Civil Engineering for the design and 

construction management of two additional intersections: 

o Hodgeville Road @ Scuffletown Road - $74,242 

o Hodgeville Road @ Forest Haven Road - $74,242 

 The original contract amount is $742,423.00 

 The change order amount is $148,484.00 

 The new contract total is $890,907.00 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Approval for Change Order #1 for Task Order 22-25-006 for the TSPLOST 

Intersections Design and Construction Management with Roberts Civil 

Engineering in the amount of $148,484.00 

2. Take no action. 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2 

Department Review: County Manager, Project Manager, Purchasing, Finance  

Funding Source: TSPLOST 

Attachments:  

1. Change Order #1 

2. RCE Request 

 

 

 

 

205

Item XII. 10.



Change Order # 1

 
 

Project: 22-25-006 – Engineering/Design of TSPLOST Intersections 

Contract Date: December 7, 2021 

Change Order Effective Date: November 1, 2021 

Change Order Issued to: Roberts Civil Engineering 

    301 Sea Island Rd., Suite 10 

    St. Simons Island, GA. 31522 

 
You are directed to make the following changes to this Contract. 

 
ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION Unit Price Total 

1 Hodgeville Road and Scuffletown Road. $74,242.00 $74,242.00 

2 Hodgeville Road and Forest Haven Drive $74,242.00 $74,242.00 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 TOTAL  $148,484.00 

 
The original Contract Sum was............................................................................$ 742,423.00 

Net change by previously authorized Change Orders....................................$ 0 

The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was...........................................$ 742,423.00 

The Contract Sum will be increased by this Change Order............................$ 148,484.00 

The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be..........................$ 890,907.00 

 

 

 

Owner       Contractor 

Effingham County Board of Commissioners  Roberts Civil Engineering 

804 S. Laurel Street     301 Sea Island Rd., Suite 10 

Springfield, GA 31329     St. Simons Island, GA. 31522 

 

 

By: ______________________________________  By: ________________________________ 

 

 

Date: ___________________________________  Date: ______________________________ 

206

Item XII. 10.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Roberts Civil Engineering Municipal Team  

Additional Service Proposal #1 

to 

Effingham County TSPLOST Intersections Design and CM Services Project 

 

October 20, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

207

Item XII. 10.



P a g e  | 2 

 

 

   Add Service Proposal #1 to TSLOST Design and CM Services Project 

 

 

 

Table of Contents 
 

Letter of Interest ........................................................................................................................................... 3 

Fee Proposal .................................................................................................................................................. 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

208

Item XII. 10.



P a g e  | 3 

 

 

   Add Service Proposal #1 to TSLOST Design and CM Services Project 

 

 

 

 

Ms. Angela Stanley 

Effingham County  

804 South Laurel Street 

Springfield, Georgia 31329 

 

Re: Add Service Proposal #1 to TSPLOST Intersections Design and CM Services Project 

 

Dear Ms. Stanley,  

Following up on our various conversations regarding the addition of two new Hodgeville Road Intersection 

Designs to our Effingham County TSPLOST Intersections Project, we respectfully request an adjustment of 

our Project Not to Exceed Fee to provide the requested Design and CM Services for these additional 

Intersections. The new Intersections will be at the Hodgeville Road intersections with Forest Haven Drive 

and with Scuffletown Road.  

Thank you again for this additional opportunity to serve Effingham County on both of these important 

projects.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

Johnathan Roberts, P.E. 

President 

 

 

 

 

 

209

Item XII. 10.



P a g e  | 4 

 

 

   Add Service Proposal #1 to TSLOST Design and CM Services Project 

 

 

FEE PROPOSAL 

 

Design and CM Services: 

Hodgeville Road at Forest Haven Drive:  $ 74,242.  

Hodgeville Road at Scuffletown Drive:      74,242. 

 

 Total:       $ 148,484. Not to Exceed Fee 

 

 

The Hourly Billable Rates we have used in this Proposal to project our Not to Exceed Fees are tied to our 

existing May 11, 2021 Indefinite Delivery Contract with Effingham County. In accordance with the Terms 

and Conditions of that agreement, we will only invoice for Hours actually worked. RCE believes that the 

Hours allowed for within this Proposal are sufficiently ample to properly and efficiently complete the 

Project, and that there is the potential for Fee Savings assuming normally anticipated paving repairs.  

210

Item XII. 10.



Staff Report 
Subject: Award of PO 23-REQ-011 to Dobbs Equipment for the purchase of a tractor 

and boom ax for the Public Works Department 

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: Public Works 

Meeting Date: November 1, 2022 

Item Description: PO 23-REQ-011 to Dobbs Equipment for the purchase of a tractor 

and boom ax for the Public Works Department 

 

Summary Recommendation: Award of PO 23-REQ-011 to Dobbs Equipment for the 

purchase of a tractor and boom ax for the Public Works Department in the amount of 

$191,644.67 

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 Staff published an RFQ to obtain quotes for the purchase of a tractor and boom 

ax for the Public Works Department. 372 vendors were notified through the 

OpenGov site, and three (3) quotes were submitted. 

 
 All submittals were reviewed by EOM staff and the recommendation is award to 

Dobbs Equipment, LLC in the amount of $191,644.67. 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

 Award of PO 23-REQ-011 to Dobbs Equipment for the purchase of a tractor and 

boom ax for the Public Works Department in the amount of $191,644.67 

 Take no action  

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2 

Department Review: Finance, Public Works/EOM, Purchasing 

Funding Source: $185,000 budgeted, amendment will be needed for remainder 

Attachments: 

1. PO 23-REQ-011 

 

 

#1 Dobbs Equipment, LLC.

$191,644.67

#2 Blanchard Equipment Co.

$196,127.44

#3 Atlantic and Southern Equipment LLC

$199,880.56

211

Item XII. 11.



804 S LAUREL STREET DATE:

SPRINGFIELD, GA 31329 P.O. #

Phone: 912-754-2159

Fax: 912-754-8413

VENDOR SHIP TO

Dobbs Equipment, LLC Effingham County Board of Commissioners

1206 Blaylock St. 804 S. Laurel Street

Albany, GA 31705 Springfield, GA 31329

ATTN : Alison Bruton

ATTN : John Padgett 912-754-2159

(912) 677-7601, arthur.padgett@dobbsequipment.com

ITEM # QTY

1 1

OTHER COMMENTS OR SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS

ECBOC is a tax exempt entity.  Tax ID# is 58-6000821

  

Dobbs Equipment, LLC. - SIGNATURE TITLE

  

Dobbs Equipment, LLC. - PRINT NAME DATE

 

  

AUTHORIZED BY - SIGNATURE AUTHORIZED BY - TITLE

 

AUTHORIZED BY - PRINT NAME AUTHORIZED DATE

 

 

WESLEY CORBITT

-$                 

-$                 

-$                 

Dobbs Equipment, LLC.  agrees to furnish one new tractor and boom ax as described in the County’s  RFQ  23-REQ-011 and 

related addendums.  The County references  the terms, conditions and specifications contained in the County’s RFQ  23-REQ-011 

and related addendums as superseding any and all other contracts, Purchase Orders or Agreements. 

CHAIRMAN

191,644.67$   

TAX

S & H

OTHER

TOTAL

TAX RATE

191,644.67$   

-$                 

SUBTOTAL

 

 

UNIT PRICE

$191,644.67

PURCHASE ORDER
Effingham County Board of Commissioners

REQUISITIONER SHIP VIA F.O.B. SHIPPING TERMS

Purchase of a Tractor and Boom Ax

 

 

11/1/2022

23-REQ-011

DESCRIPTION

ECBOC  

TOTAL

$191,644.67

212

Item XII. 11.



Page 1 of 2 JD-S 21-01 EFFECTIVE (14July21) U.S.A. ONLY 

Customer Purchase Agreement/Commitment to Lease for  
John Deere Construction, Utility and Forestry   

Products and Compact Construction Equipment - US 
("Purchase Agreement")

PA# 09107542
PA Revision# Original
Customer Name: EFFINGHAM COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS 

PURCHASER NAME AND ADDRESS (First Signer)

NAME(First, Middle, Last)
EFFINGHAM COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS 
STREET or RR
601 N LAUREL ST

CITY
SPRINGFIELD

STATE
GA

ZIP CODE
31329

COUNTY
Effingham

PHONE NUMBER
 912-754-2141

EMAIL ADDRESS

REWARDS #
993051006
PURCHASER NAME AND ADDRESS (Second Signer)
NAME(First, Middle, Last)

STREET or RR

CITY STATE ZIP CODE COUNTY

PHONE NUMBER EMAIL ADDRESS

REWARDS #

DEALER NAME AND ADDRESS
DEALER NAME
Dobbs Equipment

Dealer Account No. :
177352

STREET or RR
50 Morgan Industrial Blvd
CITY
SAVANNAH

STATE
GA

ZIP CODE
31408

Phone Number
 912-964-7370

Date Of Order:
Aug 30, 2022

Dealer Order No.: TYPE OF SALE:

CASH LEASE TIME SALE

PURCHASER TYPE:

4 Use County

MARKET USE CODE:

92 Highway Mowing
Add Purchaser to Mailing List (Check One or More)

Construction CCE Utility Forestry Government

PURCHASER IS:
Business Individual

Purchaser Acct.:

SOCIAL SECURITY IRS TAX ID NO EIN

NO. :

EXTENDED WARRANTY IS: Accept Decline✔

\IN1\(Initials)

LOCATION OF FIRST WORKING USE :

Use County EFFINGHAM

Use State/Province

GA

COUNTY CODE

103

Ultimate Uptime Package Purchase: Yes No✔ \IN1\(Initials)

QTY

Hours 
of 

Use
PIN or Serial Number Delivered Cash Price

N 
E 
W

U 
S 
E 
D

  
  

R 
E 
N 
T

D 
E 
M 
O

EQUIPMENT (Model, Size, Description) 

1 X 2022 ALAMO 6110M 24' SAMURAI/60" ROTARY Stock # F6890950\P0\ \I0\ $ 191,644 67
1  Georgia Contract#:  SPD0000102-0003 0 $ 0 00

 - DECLINED :John Deere Preventative Maintenance : 
 - DECLINED :John Deere Extended Warranty : 

(1) TOTAL CASH PRICE 67$ 191,644

QTY PIN or Serial Number AMOUNTTRADE-IN (Model, Size, Description ) Hours 
of Use

COMMENTS: (2) TOTAL TRADE-IN ALLOWANCE $ 0 00
(3) TOTAL TRADE-IN PAY-OFF $ 0 00
(4) BALANCE $ 191,644 67
(5) SUBTOTAL $ 191,644 67
(6) RENTAL APPLIED $ 0 00
(7) CASH WITH ORDER $ 0 00
(8) BALANCE DUE (5-(6 & 7) $ 191,644 67

213

Item XII. 11.



Page 2 of 2 JD-S 21-01 EFFECTIVE (14July21) U.S.A. ONLY 

Customer Purchase Agreement/Commitment to Lease for  
John Deere Construction, Utility and Forestry   

Products and Compact Construction Equipment - US 
("Purchase Agreement")

PA# 09107542
PA Revision# Original

Quote ID: 27350065 Customer Name: EFFINGHAM COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS 

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS: Purchaser offers to sell, transfer, and convey the item(s) listed as “Trade In” to the Dealer at or prior to the time of delivery of the 
above product(s), as a “trade-in” to be applied against the cash price. Purchaser represents that each “trade-in” item shall be free and clear of all security 
interests, liens, and encumbrances at the time of transfer to the Dealer except to the extent shown below. The price to be allowed for each “trade-in” item is 
listed on this document. The Purchaser promises to pay or otherwise satisfy the Balance Due (line 9) shown hereon in cash, or to execute a Retail Installment 
Contract, Rental Purchase Option Contract, Lease Agreement or other security agreement for the Balance Due for the Equipment, plus additional charges 
shown thereon, on or before delivery of the Equipment ordered herein. Despite delivery of the Equipment to the Purchaser, title to the Equipment shall not 
pass to the Purchaser until the Balance Due is paid or is otherwise satisfied in full for Equipment purchases. For Equipment leases and rentals, title to the 
Equipment shall not pass to the Purchaser. The Purchaser and the Dealer agree that this Purchase Agreement is not a security agreement and that delivery of 
the Equipment to the Purchaser pursuant to this Purchase Agreement will not constitute possession of the Equipment by the Purchaser, as a debtor, for the 
purposes of the purchase money security provisions in any statutes relating to personal property security or its equivalent. Purchaser understands that its rights 
in connection with this transaction are limited as set forth in this Purchase Agreement.

The Purchaser(s) and the Dealer acknowledge that while this document is defined herein as a “Purchase Agreement”, it serves as both a purchase agreement 
for the Equipment and/or a commitment to lease the Equipment. In addition, the defined term “Purchaser” extends to and includes both a purchaser of the 
Equipment and/or a lessee of the Equipment. Furthermore, this Purchase Agreement is deemed to constitute a “Purchase Order” or a “Customer Purchase 
Order for John Deere Construction, Utility and Forestry Products and Compact Construction Equipment” for the purposes of any other John Deere documents, 
including, without limitation, any dealer terms schedules.

USE OF INFORMATION/PRIVACY NOTICE (U.S.):  
I understand that John Deere Construction & Forestry Company and its affiliates (“John Deere”) and Dealer collect information, including my personal 
information and machine data to provide warranty, customer service, product and customer support, marketing and promotional information about Dealer, John 
Deere and their equipment, products and services and to support other business processes and purposes. See the John Deere Privacy Statement (https://
www.deere.com/en/privacy-and-data/privacy-statements/) for additional information on the types of personal information and machine data John Deere collects, 
how it is collected, used and disclosed. See Dealer directly for information about its privacy policy.
DISCLOSURE  OF  REGULATION  APPLICABILITY:   When  operated  in  California,  any  off-road  diesel  vehicle  may  be  subject  to  the  California  Air  
Resources  Board  In-Use  Off-Road  Diesel  Vehicle  Regulation.   It therefore  could  be  subject  to  retrofit  or  accelerated  turnover  requirements  to  reduce  
emissions  of  air  pollutants.  More  information  is  available  on  the  California  Air  Resources  Board  website  at 
http://www.arb.ca.gov/msprog/ordiesel/ordiesel.htm .  
 
IMPORTANT  WARRANTY  NOTICE:  The Standard Warranty for new John Deere construction, utility, forestry and compact construction products is set forth 
in a separate document the Dealer will provide to the Purchaser. Please read the Standard Warranty carefully before signing. No express warranty is made 
unless specified in the Warranty Statement. PURCHASER'S RIGHTS AND REMEDIES PERTAINING TO THIS TRANSACTION ARE LIMITED AS 
INDICATED IN THE STANDARD WARRANTY AND PURCHASE AGREEMENT. WHERE PERMITTED BY LAW, NO IMPLIED WARRANTY OF 
MERCHANTABILITY, CONDITIONS OR FITNESS IS MADE.

TELEMATICS: 
Orders of telematic devices include only the hardware. Where available, telematics software, including JDLink™ connectivity service, may be enabled from 
your local John Deere Operations Center or JDLink website. Please see your authorized John Deere dealer for assistance. 

The  undersigned  purchaser(s)  (the  “Purchaser”)  hereby  orders  the  product(s)  (the  "Product")  described  above  from  the  Dealer.  The  
Dealer  shall  not  be  liable  for  failure  to  provide  the  Product  or for  any  delay  in  delivery  if  such  failure  or  delay  is  due  to  the  Dealer's  
inability  to  obtain  such  Product  from  the  manufacturer  or  supplier  or  other  cause  beyond  the  Dealer's  control.  The  cash  price shown  
above  is  subject  to  the  Dealer  receiving  the  Product  from  the  manufacturer  or  supplier  prior  to  any  change  in  price  by  the  manufacturer  
or  supplier  and  is  also  subject  to  any  new  or  increased taxes  being  imposed  upon  the  sale  of  the  Product  after  the  date  of  this  
Purchase  Order. 

Purchaser's signature below acknowledges the Purchaser has received a copy of the Standard Warranty, Version

and understands its terms and conditions.

(Initials)

\IN1\ \IN2\

Purchaser (First Signer) EFFINGHAM COUNTY 
PUBLIC WORKS 

\C1\Signature Date \DC1\

Purchaser (Second Signer) \C2\ \DC2\Signature Date

Dealer Representative  Dobbs Equipment \D1\Signature Date \DD1\

Salesperson PADGETT,JOHN \SP1\Signature Date \DSP1\

DELIVERY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT Delivered with Operator's Manual On:
\DDV1\

Purchaser Signature

\CSN1\ \DCDV1\

\CDV1\

Show Details
C&F Warranty Hitachi Warranty
Timberjack Warranty

214

Item XII. 11.

https://www.deere.com/en/privacy-and-data/privacy-statements/
https://www.deere.com/en/privacy-and-data/privacy-statements/
http://www.arb.ca.gov/msprog/ordiesel/ordiesel.htm


US/CAN DEERE Warranty Statement   Ver. 9.0  Effective 21 March 2019  Page 1 of 4 

STANDARD WARRANTY FOR NEW JOHN DEERE 
CONSTRUCTION, UTILITY, CCE AND FORESTRY PRODUCTS – US & Canada 

 
• Construction, Forestry & Compact Construction Equipment (CCE) Products*: 12 months Full 

Machine Standard Warranty   
• * Compact Construction Equipment Products Delivered and settled on or after 01 June 2018: 24 

months or 2000 hours (whichever comes first) Full Machine Standard Warranty 
• C&E Series Pull-Type Scrapers: 6 months Full Machine Standard Warranty 
• DC & DE Series Pull-Type Scrapers: 12 months Full Machine Standard Warranty 
• Scraper Tractors: 24 Months or 2000 Hours (whichever occurs first) Full Machine Standard Warranty   
• Forestry Attachments: 12 Months or 2000 Hours (whichever occurs first) Full Machine Standard Warranty 
• Frontier Equipment:  6 months Full Machine Standard Warranty (90 days in rental applications) 

The "Standard Warranty" is part of the warranty protection package available from John Deere Construction & Forestry 
Company (John Deere Limited in Canada) ("John Deere") to purchasers of new John Deere products ("product"): 
  
STANDARD Warranty is John Deere's standard new product warranty, described in this document, provided at no 

additional charge to the purchaser. 
   
EXTENDED Warranty is a separate repair contract made available by John Deere for purchasers who wish to 

complement their Standard Warranty coverage. Complete Extended Warranty details, including coverage options and 
limitations, are set forth in the Application for Extended Warranty, which is available from authorized John Deere 
dealers.   

  
STRUCTURALL Warranty applies to certain structural components as listed below and as described in this document. 

FACTORY-INSTALLED UNDERCARRIAGE Warranty applies to certain undercarriage components as listed below and 
as described in this document. 

A.  STANDARD WARRANTY - GENERAL PROVISIONS 
John Deere will repair or replace, at its option, any parts (except those specified below) of a new John Deere product 
that, as delivered to the original retail purchaser(s), are defective in material or workmanship. Performance of this 
warranty will be free of charge for parts and labor/labour, except as otherwise stated below. Standard Warranty 
applies only to purchases from John Deere and authorized John Deere dealers and, except as otherwise provided in 
the next sentence and section L below, is extended only to the original retail purchaser of the product. Remaining 
Standard Warranty applicable to a used John Deere product is transferred to a subsequent purchaser of the product 
only if the subsequent purchaser requests a transfer from an authorized John Deere dealer before the product's 
Standard Warranty expires. Coverage begins on the date of delivery of the product to the original retail purchaser. For 
purposes of this warranty, a product that has been rented, used for demonstration purposes for 150 or more hours, or 
otherwise used prior to its original retail purchase has been "used" for the total duration of such use.  Warranty 
statements required by law covering engine emissions-related parts and components are found on a separate written 
warranty certificate provided to the purchaser at the time of the original retail purchase.   

  
B.  WHAT IS COVERED BY STANDARD WARRANTY -   

All parts of a new John Deere product (except those noted in Sections D and E below) are covered during the 
Standard Warranty period set out above.   
  

C.  EXCLUSIVE REMEDY -   
The repair or replacement of covered parts or components that are defective, as provided in Sections A, B, D.2 and 
D.3 herein, shall be the purchaser's exclusive remedy for any defect in the product. However, if after repeated 
attempts such repair or replacement fails to correct the performance problem caused by the defect, the purchaser's 
sole remedy shall be a refund of the amount paid for the product (in exchange for a return of the product), excluding 
any transportation charges, license fees, taxes and insurance premiums, and less a reasonable allowance for use of 
the product prior to its return. In no event will the dealer, John Deere or any company affiliated with John Deere be 
liable for any incidental or consequential damages, including but not limited to loss of profits, rental of substitute 
equipment or other commercial loss.  Correction of defects in the manner provided above shall constitute fulfillment of 
all liabilities of the Dealer, John Deere, or any company affiliated with John Deere to the purchaser or any other 

215

Item XII. 11.



US/CAN DEERE Warranty Statement   Ver. 9.0  Effective 21 March 2019  Page 2 of 4 

person, whether based upon contract, tort, strict liability, or otherwise.  This limitation does not apply to claims for 
personal injury. 
  
 
 

D.  ITEMS COVERED SEPARATELY -   
1. Standard Warranty does not apply to batteries, radios, tires, cameras, or to Cummins, MTU or Detroit Diesel 

Engines installed in John Deere products, which are covered by separate written warranties. 
2. Factory-Installed Undercarriage Warranty covers all non-rubberized factory-installed undercarriage wear 

components for 3 years or 4,000 hours from the date of delivery to the original retail purchaser, whichever occurs 
first (unless terminated earlier under Section F, below). For purposes of this warranty, a product that has been 
rented, used for demonstration purposes for 150 or more hours, or otherwise used prior to its original retail 
purchase has been "used” for the total duration of such use.  In addition to the items listed in section E below, 
Factory-Installed Undercarriage Warranty does not cover: failures due to wear, machine application, maintenance 
practices, or improper machine configuration; removal and installation labor/labour; transportation or hauling 
costs; unapproved parts; non-wear items; and rubberized undercarriage components such as rubber tracks. 
Warranty claims will be pro-rated based upon wear of the failed component and whether track shoe width is 
approved by John Deere. Factory-Installed Undercarriage Warranty does not apply to Scraper Tractors. 

3. StructurALL Warranty for new John Deere Products (except Compact Excavators & Loaders, Skid-Steer Loaders, 
Compact Track Loaders, Scraper Tractors, Pull-Type Scrapers, and Forestry Attachments, which are not eligible 
for StructurALL Warranty) begins at the date of delivery to the original retail purchaser and ends (unless 
terminated earlier under Section F, below) after three (3) years, or 10,000 hours (whichever occurs first). For 
purposes of this warranty, a product that has been rented, used for demonstration purposes for 150 or more 
hours, or otherwise used prior to its original retail purchase has been "used” for the total duration of such use. 
StructurALL Warranty applies only to the following structural components listed below as installed on the 
product at the time of original manufacture.  If a particular component is not listed below it is not covered by 
StructurALL Warranty.   
 
Arm; Articulation Joint (incl. pins & bushings); Bin Frame; Boom; Carbody; C-Frame*; Circle Frame; Coupler 
(John Deere built ONLY); Dipperstick; Draft Frame; Engine Frame; Equipment Frame; Grapple Arch and Grapple 
Boom; Loader Arm; Loader Frame; Mainframe; Moldboard Lift Arm; NeverGrease™ Pin Joints [Includes steering 
pin and bushing joints (standard equipment), roller elements (roller bearings) in bucket to boom joints and sliding 
elements (bushing) for boom and linkage joints (optional equipment)]; Rollover Protection Structure (ROPS); Side 
Frame; Swing Frame; Track Frame; Undercarriage Frame; X-Frame; Z-bar loader linkage (including bell crank 
and bucket driver link); Specialty booms and arms marketed as "heavy duty" by John Deere. 
 
Items Covered by StructurALL for Cut-to-Length Forestry Machines: Front frame (welded assembly); Rear frame 
(welded assembly); Crane king post with basement; Middle joint frame; Cabin swing frame; Main Boom 
 
StructurALL Warranty does not apply to:  

1. Any product used primarily in extreme duty or severe duty applications such as but not limited to: 
demolition and wrecking, chemical plant (including fertilizer plants), salt mines, steel mill, land fill and 
transfer stations, scrap handling, scarifying and other applications that are similarly destructive or similarly 
heavy duty except specialty booms and arms as stated in Section D.3 above.  

2. C-Frames on H-Series & J-Series Crawlers equipped with root rakes or used in forestry applications 
unless equipped with an "extreme duty” reinforcement package.   

3. Cut-to-Length Forestry Heads and Slash Bundler Units.  
4. Crawlers equipped with optional side booms. 
5. Cut-to-Length Forestry, Excavator, and Log Loader swing bearings. 
6. Motor Graders equipped with front- or rear-mounted snow wings. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

216

Item XII. 11.



US/CAN DEERE Warranty Statement   Ver. 9.0  Effective 21 March 2019  Page 3 of 4 

 
 
 
 
 
E.  ITEMS NOT COVERED - 

John Deere is NOT responsible for the following: 
1. Freight 
2. Adjustments to compensate for wear, for periodic maintenance or adjustments that result from normal wear and 

tear. 
3. Damage caused by unapproved adjustments (electronic or mechanical) to machine or machine components 

outside of published specifications including but not limited to engine, hydraulic components and relief valves. 
4. Program updates, calibrations, and pressure adjustments. 
5. Diagnostic Time 
6. Additional Labor/Labour Time - Above SPG/Labor/Labour Rate 
7. Additional Cleaning - Above SPG/Labor/Labour Rate 
8. Rental Fees 
9. Depreciation or damage caused by normal wear or application, lack of reasonable and proper maintenance, 

failure to follow operating instructions, misuse, negligence, collision or other accidents. 
10. Premiums charged for Overtime Labor/Labour 
11. Transportation to and from the dealership. 
12. Travel time, mileage or service calls by the dealer. 
13. Non-John Deere components or modifications, Rotobec grapples, and attachments installed aftermarket.  
14. Shop supplies and maintenance items such as, but not limited to: filters, fuels, oil, hydraulic fluid, lubricants, 

coolants, conditioners, shop towels, cleaners and degreasers. Note: Reimbursement for refills of oils/coolants lost 
due to a warrantable failure is covered when a system failure occurs outside the boundaries of a normal oil 
change (within 25% of specified change interval as provided in the Operator's Manual). 

15. Torn, cut, or worn hoses. 
16. Wear items, such as, but not limited to: body liner, belts, blades, bulbs, lubricated joints (including pins and 

bushings), dry brakes, brake linings, dry clutch linings, saw blades, chains, skidder grapple shocks, color marking 
nozzles, and articulation bumpers. 

17. Items such as cutting-edge parts, delimbing knives, bucket teeth and rubber track are not warranted for 
depreciation or damage caused by normal wear, lack of proper maintenance, misuse, failure to follow operating 
instructions, the elements or accident. 

18. Any defect in a non-covered component, or damage to or failure of a covered component caused by a defect in a 
non-covered component. 

19. Secondary damage which occurs from continued operation of a product after recognition of the occurrence of a 
failure. 

20. Parts supplied or modifications done by third party suppliers. 
21. Topping off fluids when fluid levels fall in the range between low and full  
22. Parts/Kits not ordered on machine and installed aftermarket.  These parts will be covered by any applicable parts 

warranty. 
23. Attachments installed aftermarket – i.e. Winch not installed at factory. 
24. Custom options installed outside the factory – i.e. G.R. Manufacturing option packages. 
25. Used Products (except as otherwise provided in section L below). 

  
F.  TERMINATION OF WARRANTY- 

John Deere is relieved of its obligations under Standard Warranty, StructurALL Warranty, Factory-Installed 
Undercarriage Warranty and/or Extended Warranty if:  
1. Service (other than normal maintenance and replacement of service items) is performed by someone other than 

an authorized John Deere dealer; or  
2. The product is modified or altered in ways not approved by John Deere; or  
3. Any unapproved or improperly sized attachment is installed on the product.  Approval and attachment size shall 

be at John Deere's sole discretion.  (Consult dealer prior to installing attachments or product modification). 
4. The product is moved outside the US and/or Canada. 

 
G.  PARTS REPLACED UNDER WARRANTY - 

Only new or remanufactured parts or components furnished or approved by John Deere, will be used if John Deere 
elects to repair the product. If any such part or component is defective in material or workmanship when installed in 
the product, John Deere will repair or replace, as it elects, such defective part or component, provided the defect is 

217

Item XII. 11.



US/CAN DEERE Warranty Statement   Ver. 9.0  Effective 21 March 2019  Page 4 of 4 

reported to an authorized John Deere dealer within 90 days of installation or before expiration of the applicable 
Standard Warranty, Factory-Installed Undercarriage Warranty and/or StructurALL Warranty whichever is later. 
 

 
 
H.  TELEMATICS 

NOTICE: Products may be equipped with telematics hardware and software (“Telematics”) that transmit data to John 
Deere/ Dealer. Purchaser may deactivate Telematics at www.jdlink.com. 
 
Notwithstanding Purchaser’s right, title or interest in the Products, Purchaser agrees that John Deere and Dealer 
(their affiliates, successors and assigns), without further notice to Purchaser have the right to:  
1. Access, use, collect and disclose any data generated by, collected by, or stored in, Products or any hardware or 

devices interfacing with Products (“Machine Data”);  
2. Access Machine Data directly through data reporting devices integrated within, or attached to, Products, including 

Telematics (“Data Reporting Systems”); and  
3. Update the Data Reporting Systems software from time to time. Machine Data will only be used in accordance 

with John Deere’s Machine Data Policy, located at www.JohnDeere.com/MachineDataPolicy.  
 
I.   OBTAINING WARRANTY SERVICE - 

To obtain warranty service, the purchaser must request warranty service from a John Deere dealer authorized to sell 
the product to be serviced. When making such a request, the purchaser must present evidence of the product's 
delivery date, make the product available at the dealer's place of business, and inform the dealer in what way the 
purchaser believes the product to be defective. Standard Warranty, Factory-Installed Undercarriage Warranty and/or 
StructurALL Warranty repairs may be made in the field if the purchaser and servicing dealer so desire. However, John 
Deere will not be responsible for any charges (such as dealer travel time, mileage or extra labor/labour) that would not 
have been incurred had the product been repaired at the dealer's place of business. 

  
J.  NO IMPLIED WARRANTY, CONDITIONS OR OTHER REPRESENTATION - 

Where permitted by law, neither John Deere nor any company affiliated with it makes any warranties, representations, 
conditions or promises, express or implied, as to the quality, performance, or freedom from defect of its products, 
other than those set forth in this document and NO IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, CONDITIONS 
OR FITNESS IS MADE. 

  
K.  NO DEALER WARRANTY -   

The selling dealer makes no warranty of its own on any item covered by this warranty, and makes no warranty on 
other items unless the dealer delivers to the purchaser a separate written warranty certificate specifically warranting 
the item. The dealer has no authority to make any representation or promise on behalf of John Deere, or to 
modify the terms or limitations of this warranty in any way. 

 
L. USED JOHN DEERE PRODUCTS ONLY - 

John Deere will transfer remaining Standard Warranty, Factory-Installed Undercarriage Warranty and/or StructurALL 
Warranty to the purchaser of a used John Deere construction and/or forestry product that has been used for less than 
the full warranty period provided at the product's original retail purchase.  This transfer is not effective until change of 
ownership is registered by a John Deere dealer.  ALL THE TERMS, INLCUDING LIMITATIONS AND EXCLUSIONS, 
OF THE JOHN DEERE STANDARD WARRANTY, FACTORY-INSTALLED UNDERCARRIAGE WARRANTY, 
AND/OR STRUCTURALL WARRANTY ORIGINALLY PROVIDED FOR THE PRODUCT REMAIN IN EFFECT AND 
APPLICABLE. 

218

Item XII. 11.

http://www.jdlink.com/
http://www.johndeere.com/MachineDataPolicy


Staff Report 
Subject: Approval of four PO’s for the purchase of equipment for the new fire engines 

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: Fire Department 

Meeting Date: November 1, 2022 

Item Description: PO’s for the purchase of equipment for the new fire engines 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of PO’s for the purchase of 

various equipment for the recently approved three (3) new engines for the fire 

department.  

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 In September, staff published an RFQ for various pieces of equipment that will be 

used on three new fire engines. Staff also requested additional sections of hose 

based on findings during their hose inspections.  

 This is a line item award project, so various items are being purchased from four 

(4) different vendors. The totals are as follows and reflect shipping charges: 

o FireLine, Inc. - $56,495.00 

o Georgia Fire & Rescue Supply - $23,416.85 

o NAFECO - $4,881.65 

o Ten-8 Fire & Safety, LLC - $101,099.66 

 Chief Hodges has reviewed the equipment listing and recommends approval to 

the vendors in the totals listed above.  

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Approval of PO’s with FireLine, Inc. for $56,495.00, Georgia Fire & Rescue 

Supply for $23,416.85, NAFECO for $4,881.65, and Ten-8 Fire & Safety, LLC for 

$101,099.66 

2. Take no action 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2 

Department Review: Purchasing, Fire, Finance  

Funding Source: SPLOST 

Attachments: 

o PO for FireLine, Inc. - $56,495.00 

o PO for Georgia Fire & Rescue Supply - $23,416.85 

o PO for NAFECO - $4,881.65 

o PO for Ten-8 Fire & Safety, LLC - $101,099.66 

 

219

Item XII. 12.



FireLine, Inc.
GEORGIA FIRE & 
RESCUE SUPPLY

North America Fire 
Equipment Company, Inc. Ten‐8 Fire & Safety, LLC

Line Item Description Quantity UOM Unit Cost Unit Cost Unit Cost Unit Cost

1
Standard Spanner/Hydrant Wrench Kit w/ Mounting 

Bracket 6 ea $200.00 $198.38 $119.60 $162.31
2 LDH Spanner Wrench Set w/ Mounting Bracket 3 ea $134.50 $133.40 $103.62 $91.07
3 6" NH Female w/ rocker lugs x 5" Storz 3 ea $280.00 $307.05 $279.11 $257.65
4 2.5" NH swivel Female w/ rocker lugs x 5" Storz 2 ea $150.50 $240.93 $203.00 $162.25
5 2.5" NH swivel Female x 2.5" NH Female 3 ea $68.00 $67.28 $74.69 $70.50
6 2.5" Hydrant Gate Valve 3 ea $288.00 $455.40 $314.00 $337.49
7 2.5" NH Male x 2.5" NH Male 3 ea $37.50 $37.38 $34.94 $33.00

8
2.5" NH Female x 1.5" NH Male Reducer (Polished 

Aluminum) 6 ea $42.50 $35.88 $66.26 $32.65

9
6" NH Female Swivel w/ Long Handles x 4.5" NH 

Female w/ Long Handle 3 ea $267.50 $265.08 $246.11 $226.25
10 6" NH Female Swivel x 6" NH Male 30 degree elbow 3 ea $283.00 $374.33 $259.00 $245.65
11 4.5" NH Female Swivel w/ Long Handle x 5" Storz 3 ea $288.00 $285.20 $216.61 $201.45
12 4" NH Female 30 degree elbow x 5" Storz 3 ea $310.00 $307.05 $259.00 $242.50
13 5" Storz Cap 3 ea $115.00 $113.85 $134.94 $101.15

14
6" NH Female x 5" Storz TFT Ball Valve Item # AX1ST‐

NX 3 ea $1,861.00 $2,213.52 $2,283.00 $1,822.73
15 1.5" NH Female Cap 6 ea $43.50 $43.13 $54.22 $30.25

16
2.5" NH Female x 2.5" NH Male 30 degree elbow ‐ 

Chrome 12 ea $118.00 $104.95 $97.00 $86.65

17
2.5" NH Female x 1.5" NH Gated Male x 1.5" NH 

Gated Male (Gated Wye) 6 ea $332.50 $427.11 $361.41 $351.70

18
TFT Foam Eductor 2.5" NH Female Inlet x 1.5" NH 

Male Outlet 3 ea $645.00 $767.28 $795.00 $631.82
19 1.5" NH Female x 1" NH Male 3 ea $42.50 $41.98 $39.75 $32.40
20 1" Forestry Nozzle 1 ea $378.00 $0.00 $162.65 $104.55
21 Akron 1723 1.5" NH Nozzle w/o pistol grip 12 ea $821.00 $0.00 $808.00 $717.18
22 1.5" TFT HVIT Nozzle 3 ea $376.50 $0.00 $465.00 $368.75
23 LDH Hose Clamp 3 ea $444.00 $425.44 $449.00 $380.68
24 Akron Mercury Monitor w/ Mounting Bracket 3 ea $2,547.00 $0.00 $1,832.00 $1,698.54
25 Akron Fog Nozzle for Akron Mercury Monitor 3 ea $0.00 $0.00 $673.00 $624.00
26 Akron Hi‐Riser Deluge Appliance 3 ea $5,281.00 $0.00 $5,355.00 $2,379.00

27
Permanent Pipe Mount for Akron Hi‐Riser Deluge 

Appliance 3 ea $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $290.64
28 Stacked Tips for Deluge Appliance 3 ea $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $417.14

220

Item XII. 12.



29
35' Key Pro‐Flow 5" Rubber Jacket ‐ Yellow w/ 5" 

storz couplings 3 ea $450.00 $0.00 $472.00 $443.69

30
100' Key Pro‐Flow 5" Rubber Jacket ‐ Yellow w/ 5" 

storz couplings 30 ea $937.00 $0.00 $776.75 $759.09

31
10' 6" Hard Suction w/ 6" NH Couplings w/ Long 

Handle 9 ea $870.00 $1,315.60 $589.00 $483.18
32 30' 3" Key ECO‐10 " w/ 2.5" NH Couplings ‐ Red 3 ea $320.00 $0.00 $205.85 $200.80
33 50' 1.75"Key BIG‐10 w/ 1.5" NH Couplings ‐ Red 18 ea $172.00 $0.00 $164.12 $162.50
34 50' 1.75" Key BIG‐10 w/ 1.5" NH Couplings ‐ Orange 18 ea $172.00 $0.00 $164.12 $162.50
35 50' 2.5" Key ECO‐10 w/ 2.5" NH Couplings ‐ Yellow 15 ea $236.00 $0.00 $188.40 $184.09
36 100' 1" Forestry Hose w/ 1" NH Couplings 6 ea $135.00 $116.15 $172.10 $164.77
37 Flat Head Axe w/ Fiberglass Handle 3 ea $75.00 $61.18 $78.33 $61.36
38 Pick Head Axe w/ Fiberglass Handle 3 ea $75.00 $61.18 $86.33 $66.82
39 Forged Halligan Type Bar 36" 3 ea $315.00 $289.80 $313.00 $286.36
40 36" Fiberglass Pike Pole w/ D‐Handle 3 ea $63.00 $51.11 $57.85 $81.82
41 36" Fiberglass Sheetrock Hook w/ D‐Handle 3 ea $85.00 $69.70 $103.66 $85.23
42 8' Fiberglass Pike Pole 3 ea $72.00 $58.88 $68.74 $51.95
43 6' Fiberglass Pike Pole 3 ea $64.00 $51.93 $59.11 $45.82
44 6' FDNY Hook w/ Chisel End 3 ea $125.00 $124.20 $124.89 $122.73
45 ZICO Mount for 36" Bolt Cutter 3 ea $99.00 $112.26 $106.11 $75.27
46 18" Gas Powered Positive Pressure Ventilation Fan 3 ea $2,695.00 $3,115.35 $2,738.00 $2,809.09
47 6" Low Level Strainer w/ Jet Siphon ‐ Kochek 3 ea $726.00 $574.31 $494.00 $455.40
48 6" Floating Strainer w/ Self Leveling Feature ‐  3 ea $858.00 $758.37 $589.00 $538.40
49 2.5" Male Chrome Mounting Brackets 12 ea $40.00 $28.01 $26.50 $22.68
50 6" Male Mounting Bracket 3 ea $179.00 $164.43 $96.35 $118.26
51 Rescue 42 CTC Strut Kit w/ Kevlar (CTC‐6002) 3 ea $3,500.00 $0.00 $5,288.00 $4,851.48
52 K970 Rescue Saw (K‐12) w/ Carbide Blade 3 ea $2,080.00 $1,970.64 $2,169.00 $1,994.94
53 Honda EU2200i Portable Generator w/ LED  3 ea $2,863.00 $2,873.85 $2,388.00 $2,239.43

54
Streamlight Vulcan 180 LED Flashlight w/ 12 volt 

charging base 12 ea $185.00 $186.19 $179.50 $183.98
55 MSA Altair 4X Gas Monitor 3 ea $1,210.00 $0.00 $0.00 $787.95
56 12'x14' Vinyl Salvage Covers 6 ea $124.00 $103.73 $144.59 $126.25

57
Worthington or SCI 4500 PSI SCBA Cylinder 4500 psi 

45 minute w/ MSA Valve 30 ea $1,135.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
58 FLIR K45 w/ 12 volt charging base 3 ea $5,480.00 $4,552.85 $4,940.00 $5,252.73
59 AFFF Foam 5 Gallon Pail FIREBULL F3 6 ea $170.00 $0.00 $154.00 $0.00
60 2.5" Stream Shaper 3 ea $211.00 $0.00 $194.00 $195.50

221

Item XII. 12.



804 S LAUREL STREET DATE:

SPRINGFIELD, GA 31329 P.O. #

Phone: 912-754-2159

Fax: 912-754-8413

VENDOR SHIP TO

FireLine Inc. Effingham County Board of Commissioners

725 Patrick Industrial Lane 804 S. Laurel Street

Winder, GA 30680 Springfield, GA 31329

(770)868-4455.fax / (770)868-4448.office ATTN : Alison Bruton

salesinfo@fireline.com 912-754-2159

ITEM # QTY

1 1

OTHER COMMENTS OR SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS

ECBOC is a tax exempt entity.  Tax ID# is 58-6000821

  

FireLine Inc. - SIGNATURE TITLE

  

FireLine Inc. - PRINT NAME DATE

 

  

AUTHORIZED BY - SIGNATURE AUTHORIZED BY - TITLE

 

AUTHORIZED BY - PRINT NAME AUTHORIZED DATE

Various Items as listed on Quote #353431

 

 

11/1/2022

23-REQ-009-1

DESCRIPTION

ECBOC  

TOTAL

$55,795.00

PURCHASE ORDER
Effingham County Board of Commissioners

REQUISITIONER SHIP VIA F.O.B. SHIPPING TERMS

UNIT PRICE

$55,795.00

 

 

TAX RATE

55,795.00$     

-$                 

SUBTOTAL

 

 

WESLEY CORBITT

-$                 

700.00$           

-$                 

FireLine Inc. agrees to furnish various fire equipment as described in the Quote 353431 and County’s RFQ  23-REQ-009 and 

related addendums.  The County references  the terms, conditions and specifications contained in the County’s RFQ  23-REQ-009 

and related addendums as superseding any and all other contracts, Purchase Orders or Agreements. 

CHAIRMAN

56,495.00$     

TAX

S & H

OTHER

TOTAL

222

Item XII. 12.

mailto:salesinfo@fireline.com


CUSTOMER QUOTE
DATE

10/7/2022

QUOTE #

353431

BILLING ADDRESS

Effingham Co. Fire Dept.
804 South Laurel St.
Springfield, GA. 31329
Attn: Ryan Morris

SHIPPING ADDRESS

Effingham Co. Fire Dept.
804 South Laurel Street
Springfield, GA 31329
Attn: Ryan Morris

FAX: (770) 868-4455
725 Patrick Industrial Lane
Winder, GA. 30680

TERMS

CREDIT CARD

REP

WRM

FOB

FACTORY

TOTAL

SUBTOTAL

SALES TAX (0.0%)30 DAY RETURN CONDITIONS: FireLine, Inc. will make final determination on return
authorization.  Electrical, hydraulic, special order, and fabricated parts are nonreturnable.  
Any parts that are returned to FireLine, Inc. without prior authorization or does not meet
stated return requirements will be scrapped without notification and credit denied.

Due To Supply Chain Disruptions and Inflating Costs, Quotes Are Only Valid For 10 Days. 
This May Be Extended Per FIRELINE, INC. Approval.  SURCHARGES MAY APPLY...

ITEM DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT PRICE TOTAL

AA3ST-NJ TFT 5'' STORZ SWIVEL X 2.5'' RLF SWIVEL ADAPTOR 
10-22

2 150.50 301.00

HHGV-25NHM-25NH HARRINGTON 2.5" F SWIVEL x 2.5" M HYDRANT GATE
VALVE  8-22

3 288.00 864.00

B-100-A ELKHART 2.5" F X (2) 1.5" M LT. WT. GATED WYE W/
LONG ALUMINUM HANDLE  10-22

6 332.50 1,995.00

718G4-H SUPER VAC 18" 7 SERIES GAS POSITIVE PRESSURE
FAN W/ HONDA GX200 ENGINE  4-22

3 2,695.00 8,085.00

CTC-6001 RESCUE 42 TELECRIB STRUT ENGINE KIT, 2 STRUT
KIT, (1) LONG STRUT, (1) SHORT STRUT, (2) 27 FT
STRAPS, (1) SCREW JACK HEAD, (1) HOOK CLUSTER,
(1) CINCH RING, (1) SPARE BASE PIN (1) SPARE STRUT
PIN, (1) ACCESSY BAG AND INSTRUCTIONAL  DVD 
9-22

3 3,500.00 10,500.00

10156424-SP MSA G1 FIRE SERVICE 4500 PSI 45 MIN. CYLINDER 
10-22

30 1,135.00 34,050.00

FRT. UPS FREIGHT  UPS + S/H 1 700.00 700.00

$56,495.00

$56,495.00

$0.00

223

Item XII. 12.



804 S LAUREL STREET DATE:

SPRINGFIELD, GA 31329 P.O. #

Phone: 912-754-2159

Fax: 912-754-8413

SHIP TO

Effingham County Board of Commissioners

804 S. Laurel Street

Springfield, GA 31329

ATTN : Alison Bruton

VENDOR

Georgia Fire & Rescue Supply 
107 P Rickman Industrial Drive 
Canton, GA 30115

(770) 479-5495 * (866) 479-5495 
912-754-2159

ITEM # QTY

1 1

OTHER COMMENTS OR SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS

ECBOC is a tax exempt entity.  Tax ID# is 58-6000821

Georgia Fire & Rescue Supply - SIGNATURE TITLE

Georgia Fire & Rescue Supply - PRINT NAME DATE

AUTHORIZED BY - SIGNATURE AUTHORIZED BY - TITLE

AUTHORIZED BY - PRINT NAME AUTHORIZED DATE

Various Items as listed on Quote #101122-sw2

11/1/2022

23-REQ-009-2

DESCRIPTION

ECBOC

TOTAL

$22,401.85

PURCHASE ORDER
Effingham County Board of Commissioners

REQUISITIONER SHIP VIA F.O.B. SHIPPING TERMS

UNIT PRICE

$22,401.85

TAX RATE

22,401.85$     

-$     

SUBTOTAL

WESLEY CORBITT

-$     

1,015.00$    

-$     

Georgia Fire & Rescue Supply agrees to furnish various fire equipment as described in the Quote 101122-sw2 and County’s RFQ  

23-REQ-009 and related addendums.  The County references  the terms, conditions and specifications contained in the County’s 

RFQ  23-REQ-009 and related addendums as superseding any and all other contracts, Purchase Orders or Agreements. 

CHAIRMAN

23,416.85$     

TAX

S & H

OTHER

TOTAL

224

Item XII. 12.

mailto:salesinfo@fireline.com


Quantity Item Description Unit Price Extension

3.00 AA7NJ-NJ TFT 2.5" NH x 2.5" NH Double Female 67.28 201.84

Swivel Rocker Lug Adpapter

11.00 FP10 X100W10N 100' 1" Forestry Hose w/ 1" NH Couplings 116.15 1,277.65

3.00 FHAFR6LB FLAME FIGHTER 6LB FLAT HEAD 61.18 183.54

AXE FIBERGLASS HANDLE 36" WITH

RUBBER GRIP

3.00 PHAFR6LB FLAME FIGHTER 6LB PICK HEAD 61.18 183.54

AXE FIBERGLASS HANDLE 36" WITH

RUBBER GRIP

3.00 PP03D 3' PIKE POLE WITH D HANDLE 51.11 153.33

3.00 DWH03D 3' Dry Wall Hook with D Handle 69.70 209.10

3.00 K12FD94-14C HUSQVARNA 14 RESCUE SAW WITH 1,970.64 5,911.92

94 CC ENGINE & 14" CARBIDE BLADE

6.00 HTV-12x14 (10 OZ.) HUSKY. 12' X 14' SALVAGE COVER. 103.73 622.38

10 OZ PER SQUARE YARD VINYL.

Freight

Quote Number:
101122-sw2

Quote Date:
Oct 11, 2022

Sales Rep

Quoted to:

Good Thru

11/10/22

Customer ID Payment Terms

Page:

Effingham Co FD Net 30 Days Whidby, Jason

1

Total Continued

Sales Tax Continued

Subtotal Continued

Continued

Quote  

107 P Rickman Industrial Drive
Canton, GA 30115

3%  fee added to purchase
made  with credit card on totals

of $3000 or more

Effingham County F.D.
Effingham County FD
1171 Hwy 119 North
Springfield, GA  31329
USA

Effingham County F.D.
Effingham County FD
1171 Hwy 119 North
Springfield, GA  31329
USA

Remit to :  
PO Box 915   
Holly Springs GA 30142

225

Item XII. 12.



Quantity Item Description Unit Price Extension

3.00 TFLK45 K45 240x180 Thermal Camera KitHard 4,552.85 13,658.55

Case, Thermal Imaging Camera (TIC), (2)

Li-Ion Batteries, Lanyard Strap,

Retractable Lanyard, Neckstrap, Tabletop

Charger

Freight

Quote Number:
101122-sw2

Quote Date:
Oct 11, 2022

Sales Rep

Quoted to:

Good Thru

11/10/22

Customer ID Payment Terms

Page:

Effingham Co FD Net 30 Days Whidby, Jason

2

Total 23,416.85

Sales Tax

Subtotal 22,401.85

1,015.00

Quote  

107 P Rickman Industrial Drive
Canton, GA 30115

3%  fee added to purchase
made  with credit card on totals

of $3000 or more

Effingham County F.D.
Effingham County FD
1171 Hwy 119 North
Springfield, GA  31329
USA

Effingham County F.D.
Effingham County FD
1171 Hwy 119 North
Springfield, GA  31329
USA

Remit to :  
PO Box 915   
Holly Springs GA 30142

226

Item XII. 12.



804 S LAUREL STREET DATE:

SPRINGFIELD, GA 31329 P.O. #

Phone: 912-754-2159

Fax: 912-754-8413

VENDOR SHIP TO

NAFECO Effingham County Board of Commissioners

1515 W Moulton St 804 S. Laurel Street

Decatur, AL 35601 Springfield, GA 31329

(800) 628-6233 ATTN : Alison Bruton

info@nafeco.com 912-754-2159

ITEM # QTY

1 1

OTHER COMMENTS OR SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS

ECBOC is a tax exempt entity.  Tax ID# is 58-6000821

 

NAFECO - SIGNATURE TITLE

  

NAFECO - PRINT NAME DATE

 

  

AUTHORIZED BY - SIGNATURE AUTHORIZED BY - TITLE

 

AUTHORIZED BY - PRINT NAME AUTHORIZED DATE

Various Items as listed on Quote #Q16221011406

 

 

11/1/2022

23-REQ-009-3

DESCRIPTION

ECBOC  

TOTAL

$4,666.65

PURCHASE ORDER
Effingham County Board of Commissioners

REQUISITIONER SHIP VIA F.O.B. SHIPPING TERMS

UNIT PRICE

$4,666.65

 

 

TAX RATE

4,666.65$        

-$                 

SUBTOTAL

 

 

WESLEY CORBITT

-$                 

215.00$           

-$                 

NAFECO agrees to furnish various fire equipment as described in the Quote Q16221011406 and County’s RFQ  23-REQ-009 and 

related addendums.  The County references  the terms, conditions and specifications contained in the County’s RFQ  23-REQ-009 

and related addendums as superseding any and all other contracts, Purchase Orders or Agreements. 

CHAIRMAN

4,881.65$        

TAX

S & H

OTHER

TOTAL

227

Item XII. 12.

mailto:info@nafeco.com


Quotation
Q16221011406

Date: 10/11/2022
Expires: 11/10/2022
FOB: Destination

Customer Number: EFF070
Customer Information: EFFINGHAM COUNTY BOCC

Address: 1171 Hwy 119 N
 SPRINGFIELD, GA 31329
  

Attention: Alison M. Bruton
Phone: 912-754-2159
Email: ABruton@effinghamcounty.org

Prepared By: Joe Smallidge

NAFECO
Mailing: 1515 W Moulton St
(2601 Beltline Road)
Decatur, AL 35601
(800) 628-6233
info@nafeco.com

 

 Qty. Product Description Each Total
6 K48-3 Kochek Wrenches w/ Double Holder, Set of (1) K07 &(2)K01 $119.60 $717.60
3 MM601-C KOCHECK 6 NH M MOUNTING PLATE CHROME $96.35 $289.05
12 44315 Streamlight Vulcan 180 Light, 1200 Lumen LED, 12V DC, Orange $179.50 $2,154.00
6 FB-FF-005 Enforcer One FireBull Foam Class A/B, 5 Gal Pail $154.00 $924.00
3 282A Elkhart Stream Shaper 2.5" X 2.5", Elk-O-Lite $194.00 $582.00

1 SHIPPING
ESTIMATED SHIPPING 

Shipping costs are subject to change at any time.
$215.00 $215.00

Total: $4,881.65

 tax & freight to be
determined

Notes:

Thank you for your business!
NOTE: All accounts are subject to sales tax charges unless a valid state exempt

certificate is on file with NAFECO, or provided at the time of the order. 

If you have any questions concerning this quote, please call our number listed above.

Visit Us On The Internet At:  www.nafeco.com

228

Item XII. 12.



804 S LAUREL STREET DATE:

SPRINGFIELD, GA 31329 P.O. #

Phone: 912-754-2159

Fax: 912-754-8413

VENDOR SHIP TO

Ten-8 Fire & Safety, LLC Effingham County Board of Commissioners

2904 59th Ave Drive East 804 S. Laurel Street

Bradenton, FL 34203 Springfield, GA 31329

(800) 228-8368 / (941) 756-2598 ATTN : Alison Bruton

912-754-2159

ITEM # QTY

1 1

OTHER COMMENTS OR SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS

ECBOC is a tax exempt entity.  Tax ID# is 58-6000821

 

Ten-8 Fire & Safety, LLC - SIGNATURE TITLE

  

Ten-8 Fire & Safety, LLC - PRINT NAME DATE

 

  

AUTHORIZED BY - SIGNATURE AUTHORIZED BY - TITLE

 

AUTHORIZED BY - PRINT NAME AUTHORIZED DATE

Various Items as listed on Quote #231001689

 

 

11/1/2022

23-REQ-009-4

DESCRIPTION

ECBOC  

TOTAL

$97,702.26

PURCHASE ORDER
Effingham County Board of Commissioners

REQUISITIONER SHIP VIA F.O.B. SHIPPING TERMS

UNIT PRICE

$97,702.26

 

 

TAX RATE

97,702.26$     

-$                 

SUBTOTAL

 

 

WESLEY CORBITT

-$                 

3,397.40$        

-$                 

Ten-8 Fire & Safety, LLC agrees to furnish various fire equipment as described in the Quote 231001689 and County’s RFQ  23-REQ-

009 and related addendums.  The County references  the terms, conditions and specifications contained in the County’s RFQ  23-

REQ-009 and related addendums as superseding any and all other contracts, Purchase Orders or Agreements. 

CHAIRMAN

101,099.66$   

TAX

S & H

OTHER

TOTAL

229

Item XII. 12.



TEN-8 FIRE & SAFETY, LLC

QUOTATION

2904 59TH AVENUE DRIVE EAST

BRADENTON, FL 34203
USA
Phone: 800-228-8368
Fax: 941-756-2598

Document Date Page

Customer No. Federal Tax ID - Business Partner

PO Number

Delivery Address

1/3

C00303

09/14/22

Copy

Quote Number
231001689

Sell To:

Roberts, Van

Sales Employee

vroberts@ten8fire.com

Email

EFFINGHAM COUNTY FIRE RESCUE

Same as Bill-to

EFFINGHAM COUNTY FIRE RESCUE

1171 HWY 119 N
SPRINGFIELD GA  31329
USA

EmailDocument Owner

Pike, Cory R cpike@ten8fire.com

Description Quantity UoM Price  TotalDisc. %Vendor

SET 91.07 273.21DBL WRENCH SET 
W/HOLDER

3146-2 0.00RED HEAD BRASS

EA 257.65 772.95ADAPT 5 STRZ X 6F NH 3S54R56 0.00KOCHEK CO., INC.

EA 33.00 99.00ADAPT 2.5 DBL MALE 336R2525-H51 0.00KOCHEK CO., INC.

EA 32.65 195.90ADAPTER 2.5" NH FEMALE 
X 1.5" NH MALE

637R2515 0.00

EA 226.25 678.75"6"" NH X 4.5"" NH 
DOUBLE SWIVEL LONG 
HANDLE FEMALE"

357L645 0.00KOCHEK CO., INC.

EA 245.65 736.956 NH SW RL F X 6 NH M 
30* ELBOW NAT/GREY

3KE6R6-H51 0.00KOCHEK CO., INC.

EA 201.40 604.20"ADAPTER 5"" STORZ X 
4.5"" LONG HANDLE 
FEMALE"

3S54L545 0.00KOCHEK CO., INC.

EA 101.15 303.45"5"" STORZ CAP 
W/CHAIN"

3CC507 0.00KOCHEK CO., INC.

EA 1,822.73 5,468.19"JUMBO BIV 5.0"" STORZ 
RIGID X 6.0"" FEMALE"

3AX1ST-NX 0.00TASK FORCE TIPS

EA 30.25 181.50"CAP 1.5""NH RL 
W/CHAIN, BLACK 
HARDCOAT"

6CC1552-H52 0.00KOCHEK CO., INC.

EA 86.65 1,039.8030 DEG ELBOW, 2.5" 
ROCKERLUG FEMALE X 
2.5" MALE NH

12KE25R25 0.00KOCHEK CO., INC.

EA 263.61 790.83"30 DEGREE ELBOW 5"" 
STORZ X 4"" FEMALE 
ROCKER LUG"

3SKE54R-H51 0.00KOCHEK CO., INC.

EA 631.82 1,895.46"EDUCTOR, 2.5"" NH 125 
gpm"

3UE-125-NJ-NF 0.00TASK FORCE TIPS

EA 32.40 97.20ADAPTER 1.5" NH FEMALE 
X 1.0" NH MALE

337R151 0.00KOCHEK CO., INC.

EA 104.55 104.55"1"" FORESTRY NOZZLE" 11030 0.00AKRON BRASS 
COMPANY

All returns must be initiated within 30 days of receipt of product and will be charged a restocking fee. Contact your
sales representative to receive a Return Materials Authorization (RMA). Special order parts are not returnable. Full

terms and conditions for returns can be found on our website at https://ten8fire.com/return-policy/ 230

Item XII. 12.



2/3
Page

09/14/22
Document Date

231001689
Quote Number

Copy QUOTATION

Currency: $

Description Quantity UoM Price  TotalDisc. %Vendor

EA 717.18 8,606.16Mid-Range Turbojet 
Nozzle with Pistol Grip

121723 0.00AKRON BRASS 
COMPANY

EA 368.75 1,106.25"1.5"" VALVE, INTEGRAL 
TIP"

3HVIT 0.00TASK FORCE TIPS

EA 380.68 1,142.046" HOSE CLAMP 36HC 0.00HEBERT HOSE 
CLAMPS

EA 2,225.77 6,677.31MERCURY QUICK ATTACK 
LE 4446 NOZZLE @100 PSI 
AND MOUNTING BRACKET

334440014 0.00AKRON BRASS 
COMPANY

EA 2,379.45 7,138.35APOLLO HI-RISER 
LIFT-OFF ONLY

334330002 0.00AKRON BRASS 
COMPANY

EA 290.64 871.92FLANGE HI RISER 334330001 0.00AKRON BRASS 
COMPANY

EA 417.14 1,251.42Quad Stacked Deluge 
Tips

324994001 0.00AKRON BRASS 
COMPANY

EA 443.69 1,331.07"PRO FLOW 5"" X 35' 
CPLD 5"" STORZ"

3PF-50Y-35 0.00KEY FIRE HOSE 
CORP.

EA 759.09 22,772.70"'PRO-FLOW' 5"" X 100' 
LDH YELLOW W/5"" 
STORZ"

30PF-50Y-100 0.00KEY FIRE HOSE 
CORP.

EA 443.18 3,988.62"6"" X 10' COUPLED RL 
MALE X LH FEMALE HARD 
SUCTION"

9A007-1960-0010 0.00JGB 
ENTERPRISES, 

EA 200.80 602.40"ECO-10D.J. 3"" X 30' RED 
CPLD 2.5"""

3E10-30R-30 0.00KEY FIRE HOSE 
CORP.

EA 162.50 5,525.00"BIG-10 D/J HOSE 1.75"" 
X 50' RED"

34B10-17R-50 0.00KEY FIRE HOSE 
CORP.

SECT 162.50 5,687.50"'BIG-10' D/J HOSE 
1.75"" X 50' ORANGE"

35B10-17O-50 0.00KEY FIRE HOSE 
CORP.

EA 184.09 2,761.35"ECO-10 YELLOW 2.5"" X 
50' CPLD 2.5"""

15e10-25y-50 0.00KEY FIRE HOSE 
CORP.

EA 286.36 859.08"36"" PRO BAR W/CELTEX 
GRIP"

3PB-36 0.00FIREHOOKS 
UNLIMITED INC

EA 51.95 155.858' PIKE POLE WITH 
FIBERGLASS HANDLE

3PP08 0.00FLAMEFIGHTER 
CORP.

EA 45.82 137.466' PIKE POLE WITH 
FIBERGLASS HANDLE

3PP06 0.00FLAMEFIGHTER 
CORP.

EA 122.73 368.19NEW YORK ROOF HOOK 6' 3RH-6 0.00FIREHOOKS 
UNLIMITED INC

EA 75.27 225.81BRACKET, BOLT CUTTER 3BCB 0.00ZICO ZIAMATIC 
CORP

EA 455.40 1,366.20"6"" NH LONG HANDLE 
LOW LEVEL STRAINER"

3LL60 0.00KOCHEK CO., INC.

EA 538.40 1,615.20"6"" NH SELF LEVELING 
FLOATING STRAINER"

3FBS60 0.00KOCHEK CO., INC.

EA 22.68 272.16"2.5"" NST MALE MOUNT 
PLATE CHROME"

12RMP4906AC 0.00SOUTH PARK 
CORPORATION

All returns must be initiated within 30 days of receipt of product and will be charged a restocking fee. Contact your
sales representative to receive a Return Materials Authorization (RMA). Special order parts are not returnable. Full

terms and conditions for returns can be found on our website at https://ten8fire.com/return-policy/ 231

Item XII. 12.



3/3
Page

09/14/22
Document Date

231001689
Quote Number

Copy QUOTATION

Currency: $

Description Quantity UoM Price  TotalDisc. %Vendor

EA 1,321.63 3,964.89HONDA GENERATOR 
EU2200ITAN

3EU2200ITAN 0.00CENTRAL 
FLORIDA 

EA 1,223.18 3,669.54SCENESTAR 
LED,20000LMN. W/ BRKT 
FOR HONDA EU2000I

3ELSS-XLAC-HK2-LKI 0.00AKRON BRASS 
COMPANY

EA 787.95 2,363.85Altair 4XR Mutigas 
Dectector, Bluetooth

310178557 0.00MSA SAFETY 
SALES, LLC

EA 3,397.40 3,397.40FRGT02 1FRGT02 0.00

Subtotal: $ 101,099.66

Total Before Tax: $ 101,099.66

Total Tax Amount: $ 0.00

Total Amount: $ 101,099.66

Valid Until: 10/14/2022

All returns must be initiated within 30 days of receipt of product and will be charged a restocking fee. Contact your
sales representative to receive a Return Materials Authorization (RMA). Special order parts are not returnable. Full

terms and conditions for returns can be found on our website at https://ten8fire.com/return-policy/ 232

Item XII. 12.



Staff Report 

 
Subject:   Coastal Incentive Grant Award Agreement Amendment  

Author:  Mark W. Barnes, Finance Director 

Department:  Finance Department 

Meeting Date: 11/1/22 

Item Description: Consideration to approve an amendment to the Coastal Incentive 
Grant award agreement for the stormwater master plan, extending 
the timeframe for master plan completion. 

 

Summary Recommendation:   

Staff recommends approval of the amendment. 
 

Executive Summary: 

The County has been awarded a Coastal Incentive Grant from the Georgia Department 
of Natural Resources.  Pond & Co. is in the process of completing a major milestone in 
this grant’s timeline, but was not yet fully complete as of 9/30/22.  This amendment to 
the award agreement extends the agreement term from 9/30/22 to 3/31/23.  Pond & Co. 
is expected to be completed well before then. 
 
Background: 
1. The original award agreement term ran through 9/30/22. 
2. This amendment extends that timeframe to 3/31/23. 
3. Pond & Co. is expected to be finished well before 3/31/23. 

 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 

1. Approve the award agreement amendment. 
2. Do not approve the amendment. 

 

 

Recommended Alternative: 

Staff recommends Alternative number 1 – Approve the amendment to the Coastal 

Incentive Grant award agreement. 

 

 

Other Alternatives: 

N/A  

 

 

Department Review: (list departments) 

Finance 

233

Item XII. 13.



 

 

 

 

Funding Source: 

No funding required 

 

Attachments: 

1. Georgia Coastal Incentive Grant Award Agreement Amendment #1 

 

234

Item XII. 13.



GEORGIA COASTAL INCENTIVE GRANT AWARD AGREEMENT 
CYCLE  

,” 

AMENDMENT # 

Pursuant to the terms outlined in section (D) TERM and section (Z) CONTRACT 
INTERPRETATION of the “COASTAL INCENTIVE GRANT AWARD 
AGREEMENT CYCLE      ,” between the Georgia Department of Natural Resources, 
COASTAL RESOURCES DIVISION and the  
(“Sub-grantee”) for the Award entitled “
dated                               , the following changes are made part of the Agreement:   

Section A. TERM is hereby amended to extend the end date of the Award Agreement 
from                              to                               . 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment #      as of the 
___ day of ________, 20__. 

Georgia Department of Natural Resources, Coastal Resources Division 

By: __________________________________________ 
Doug Haymans, Director 

_________________________________________ (Sub-grantee) 

By: ___________________________________ 

     Name _______________________________ 
     Title _______________________________ 

Stormwater Master Plan Y1

Stormwater Master Plan Y1

Aug. 20, 2021

Sept. 30, 2022 March 31, 2023

 Effingham County Board of Commissioners

 Effingham County Board of Commissioners

1

1
28th Sept 21

24

24

235

Item XII. 13.



Staff Report 

 
Subject:    FY 2023 Budget Amendment  

Author:  Mark W. Barnes, Finance Director 

Department:  Finance Department 

Meeting Date: 11/1/22 

Item Description: Consideration to approve an amendment to the FY 2023 budget. 
 

Summary Recommendation:   

Staff is requesting approval of an amendment to the FY 2023 budget. 
 

Executive Summary: 

Each year the Board of Commissioners proposes a tentative budget. During the year, 

the Board receives requests from agencies and department heads to adjust the budget. 

Additionally, other factors, such as revenue, may fluctuate thereby allowing the Board to 

direct that additional expenditures be made. Therefore, a formal budget resolution 

incorporating these factors is made to adjust the budget accordingly.  

 

Background: 

Georgia Law 6-81-3. Requires the establishment of fiscal year; requirement of annual 
balanced budget; adoption of budget ordinances or resolutions generally; budget 
amendments; uniform chart of accounts. Section (b)(1) notes that each unit of local 
government shall adopt and operate under an annual balanced budget for the general 
fund, each special revenue fund, and each debt service fund in use by the local 
government. The annual balanced budget shall be adopted by ordinance or resolution 
and administered in accordance with this article. 
 
  
The budget amendment attached reflects the following changes: 

1. Allocating funding for the FDR road projects. 
2. Allocating funding for other items such as the Effingham Parkway 

roundabout designs, LMIG 2022 road projects, and ambulances. 
 
Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 

1. Approve the resolution to amend the budget for FY 2023.  
2. Do not approve the resolution. 

3. Provide staff with direction. 

 

 

 

 

 

236

Item XII. 14.



Recommended Alternative: 

Staff recommends Alternative number 1 – Approve the resolution to amend the budget 

for FY 2023. 

 

Other Alternatives:  

N/A  

 

Department Review:  

Finance 

 

Funding Source: 

Multiple 

 

Attachments: 

FY 2023 budget amendment resolution 

237

Item XII. 14.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
           Resolution# ____________ 

 

State of Georgia 

County of Effingham 

 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE FY2022-2023 BUDGET 

 
WHEREAS, the FY 2023 budget of Effingham County was adopted on June 21st, 2022 

and; WHEREAS, it is necessary to further amend said budget to reflect desired changes and; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the County Effingham, 

Georgia that the following amendment be made: 

  

 
 
This amendment allocates funding for FDR roads, LMIG 2022 road projects, Effingham Parkway roundabout 

designs, and other items. 

 
 Approved this _____ day of ___________   2022. 
 
Attest: 
 
 
                                          
Stephanie D.  Johnson, County Clerk   Wesley M. Corbitt, Chairman  

DEPT DEPT NAME ACCT NAME ACCT NO. AMOUNT DESCRIPTION

037 SPLOST 2017 ROADS ARCHER RD 321-4207-037-54-2532 159116.01 to allocate addt'l funds for FDRE roads

037 SPLOST 2017 ROADS CORINTH CHURCH RD 321-4207-037-54-2533 1271604.76 to allocate addt'l funds for FDRE roads

037 SPLOST 2017 ROADS COURTHOUSE ROAD EXT 321-4207-037-54-2534 211078.86 to allocate addt'l funds for FDRE roads

037 SPLOST 2017 ROADS MOUNT PLEASANT RD 321-4207-037-54-2535 859574.40 to allocate addt'l funds for FDRE roads

037 SPLOST 2017 ROADS OLD DIXIE HWY 321-4207-037-54-2536 498625.97 to allocate addt'l funds for FDRE roads

047 SPLOST 2017 DRAINAGE WESTWOOD HEIGHTS 321-4250-047-54-2512 -1019500.00 to re-allocate for design-only at this time

100 SPLOST 2017 WATER WATER DIRECT DISCHARGE 321-4420-100-54-1405 -500000.00 to re-allocate for next fiscal year

041 SPLOST 2017 EQUIPMENT FUEL ISLAND USAGE LOG 321-4970-041-54-2535 -200000.00 to re-allocate for next fiscal year

041 SPLOST 2017 EQUIPMENT AMBULANCE 321-3600-041-54-2202 338242.36 to allocate funds for amublance & stretcher

037 SPLOST 2017 ROADS EFFINGHAM PARKWAY 321-4207-037-54-1406 631795.00 to allocate funds for Parkway roundabouts

037 SPLOST 2017 ROADS LMIG 2021 ROAD PROJECTS 321-4207-037-54-2523 86784.76 to allocate funds for LMIG 2021 projects

037 SPLOST 2017 ROADS LMIG 2022 ROAD PROJECTS 321-4207-037-54-2527 842444.35 to allocate funds for LMIG 2022 projects

037 SPLOST 2017 CASH CARRY FORWARD 321-38-9015 -3179766.47 to allocate SPLOST 2017 fund balance

322 SPLOST 2021 COURTHOUSE ROAD EXT 322-4208-322-54-1400 394877.21 to allocate addt'l funds for FDRE roads

322 SPLOST 2021 SCUFFLETOWN RD 322-4208-322-54-1401 624254.50 to allocate addt'l funds for FDRE roads

322 SPLOST 2021 SPLOST 2021 322-31-3205 -1019131.71 to allocate SPLOST 2021 revenues

0.00 net entries

238

Item XII. 14.



 

 

Staff Report 

 
Subject:        Tax Assessor Board Appointment 

Author:        Stephanie Johnson, County Clerk  

Department:      Administration  

Meeting Date:    November 1, 2022 

Item Description:   Consideration to approve Resolution# 022-048 to appoint Scott 

Morgan to the Tax Assessor Board  

 

Summary Recommendation: It is the policy of the Board of Commissioners to appoint 

qualified people to various boards and committees of the county.  Staff proposes 

consideration of approval of the board to appoint Scott Morgan as a representative for 

the Third District.   

 

Executive Summary/Background: The Board of Assessor’s consists of a five (5) 

member board.  Each member serves a four (4) year term. Mr. Morgan will fulfill the 

unexpired term of office of Mr. Lowell Morgan.  

 

This term of office will expire March 15, 2025.  
 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider:  

1. To approve Resolution# 022-048 to appoint Scott Morgan as a member to the 
Tax Assessor Board to fulfil the unexpired term of office for the Third District.  

2. To not approve the resolution of appointment for the Tax Assessor Board at this 
time.  

 

Recommended Alternative: Alternative 1 

 

Other Alternatives: To consider other individuals to serve on the Tax Assessor Board 
 

Department Review: County Administration and Tax Assessor’s Office 
 

Funding Source: Cost for training, travel and Board Meetings are paid from the Tax 

Assessors budget 

 

Attachments:  

1. Resolution_ Morgan 

 

 

239

Item XII. 15.



Resolution# 022-048 
 

STATE OF GEORGIA 
COUNTY OF EFFINGHAM 
 
 

RESOLUTION FOR APPOINTMENT TO THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY  
BOARD OF TAX ASSESSOR’S 

 
 

 WHEREAS, O.C.G.A § 48-5-290 authorizes the establishment of the county 

Board of Tax Assessors in each of several counties in the state; and  

 WHEREAS, the Board of Tax Assessors of Effingham County, Georgia is a duly 

constituted body pursuant to such authority; and  

 WHEREAS, the term of office for Scott Morgan, a duly appointed member of the 

Effingham County Board of Tax Assessors, will terminate effective March 15, 2025 and  

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section A-6 of Appendix A of the Official Code of 

Effingham County, Georgia and upon the recommendation of the Effingham County 

Commissioner for District 3 who has commended to the Board of Commissioners the 

appoint/reappoint of Scott Morgan to the Effingham County Board of Tax Assessors 

beginning November 1, 2022 and terminating on March 30, 2025, said 

recommendation is hereby approved by the Board upon a motion made and carried. 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Effingham County Board of 

Commissioners appoints Scott Morgan to the Effingham County Board of Tax 

Assessor’s 

 

This _____ day of _______________, 2022 

 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

____________________________________ 
Wesley M. Corbitt, Chairperson 

 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
Stephanie D. Johnson, County Clerk  

240

Item XII. 15.



Staff Report                
 
Subject:  Rezoning (First District) 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: November 1, 2022 
Item Description: Allen Cote requests to rezone 23.38 acres from AR-2 to AR-1 to allow for the 
placement of a second home for an immediate family member. Located at 110 Buford Hill Road.  Map# 302 
Parcel# 15A 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends approval of the request to rezone 23.38 acres from 
AR-2 to AR-1 to allow for the placement of a second home for an immediate family member, with conditions. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  
• The request for rezoning is a requirement of Appendix C, Article IX-Amendments to Map or Text, 

Section 9. Zoning districts are described in Appendix C, Article V-Uses Permitted in Districts. Section 
5.1 - AR-1 Agricultural Residential Districts, requires a minimum lot size of 5 acres. 

• Pursuant to Section 5.1.2.5, the AR-1 zoning district allows: One additional single-family detached 
dwelling and its customary uses, provided that said dwelling meets all state and county health 
requirement, unless prohibited by other applicable laws or regulations, and provided the additional 
dwelling is inhabited by a person who is related to the owner of the real property in one of the following 
ways: parent, child, grandparent, grandchild, sister, or brother. The zoning administrator shall administer 
this conditional use. 

• This parcel is 23.28 acres, exceeding the 5-acre minimum for the AR-1 zoning district. The contiguous 
parcels to the south and west are also AR-1. 

• The parcel has access on Buford Hill Road, but is not a platted lot of Buford Hill subdivision.  
• The applicants wish to allow their parents to locate a mobile home on to their parcel, rezoning to AR-1 

allows them to achieve this without adding an additional parcel with access to Buford Hill Road. 
• At the October 17, 2022 Planning Board meeting, Ryan Thompson made a motion to approve the 

request to rezone 23.38 acres from AR-2 to AR-1 to allow for the placement of a second home for an 
immediate family member, with the following conditions: 
2. Permitting of the mobile home and related private well and septic system must be approved by 

Development Services and Environmental Health before the new dwelling is placed on site. 
3. The lot shall meet the requirements of the AR-1 zoning district. 

• The motion was seconded by Alan Zipperer and carried unanimously. 

 
Alternatives   
1. Approve the request to rezone 23.38 acres from AR-2 to AR-1 to allow for the placement of a second 
home for an immediate family member, with the following conditions:  

1. Permitting of the mobile home and related private well and septic system must be approved by 
Development Services and Environmental Health before the new dwelling is placed on site. 

2. The lot shall meet the requirements of the AR-1 zoning district. 
 

2. Deny the request to rezone 23.38 acres from AR-2 to AR-1. 
 
Recommended Alternative:  1    Other Alternatives:  2 
 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
Attachments:  1.   Rezoning application and checklist 3. Plat   5. Deed 

2. Ownership certificate/authorization 4. Aerial photograph 

241

Item XVI. 1.



242

Item XVI. 1.



243

Item XVI. 1.



244

Item XVI. 1.



245

Item XVI. 1.



246

Item XVI. 1.



247

Item XVI. 1.



248

Item XVI. 1.



249

Item XVI. 1.



250

Item XVI. 1.



251

Item XVI. 1.



252

Item XVI. 1.



253

Item XVI. 1.



254

Item XVI. 1.



255

Item XVI. 1.



256

Item XVI. 1.



 
 
Staff Report                
 
Subject:  2nd Reading Zoning Map Amendment 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: November 1, 2022 
Item Description: Allen Cote requests to rezone 23.38 acres from AR-2 to AR-1 to allow for the 
placement of a second home for an immediate family member. Located at 110 Buford Hill Road.  Map# 302 
Parcel# 15A 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends approval of the request to rezone 23.38 acres from 
AR-2 to AR-1 to allow for the placement of a second home for an immediate family member, with conditions. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  
• The request for rezoning is a requirement of Appendix C, Article IX-Amendments to Map or Text, 

Section 9. Zoning districts are described in Appendix C, Article V-Uses Permitted in Districts. Section 
5.1 - AR-1 Agricultural Residential Districts, requires a minimum lot size of 5 acres. 

• Pursuant to Section 5.1.2.5, the AR-1 zoning district allows: One additional single-family detached 
dwelling and its customary uses, provided that said dwelling meets all state and county health 
requirement, unless prohibited by other applicable laws or regulations, and provided the additional 
dwelling is inhabited by a person who is related to the owner of the real property in one of the following 
ways: parent, child, grandparent, grandchild, sister, or brother. The zoning administrator shall administer 
this conditional use. 

• This parcel is 23.28 acres, exceeding the 5-acre minimum for the AR-1 zoning district. The contiguous 
parcels to the south and west are also AR-1. 

• The parcel has access on Buford Hill Road, but is not a platted lot of Buford Hill subdivision.  
• The applicants wish to allow their parents to locate a mobile home on to their parcel, rezoning to AR-1 

allows them to achieve this without adding an additional parcel with access to Buford Hill Road. 
• At the October 17, 2022 Planning Board meeting, Ryan Thompson made a motion to approve the 

request to rezone 23.38 acres from AR-2 to AR-1 to allow for the placement of a second home for an 
immediate family member, with the following conditions: 
1. Permitting of the mobile home and related private well and septic system must be approved by 

Development Services and Environmental Health before the new dwelling is placed on site. 
2. The lot shall meet the requirements of the AR-1 zoning district. 

• The motion was seconded by Alan Zipperer and carried unanimously. 

 
Alternatives   
1. Approve the request to rezone 23.38 acres from AR-2 to AR-1 to allow for the placement of a second 
home for an immediate family member, with the following conditions:  

1. Permitting of the mobile home and related private well and septic system must be approved by 
Development Services and Environmental Health before the new dwelling is placed on site. 

2. The lot shall meet the requirements of the AR-1 zoning district. 
 

2. Deny the request to rezone 23.38 acres from AR-2 to AR-1. 
 
Recommended Alternative:  1    Other Alternatives:  2 
 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
Attachments:  1.   Zoning Map Amendment 

257

Item XVI. 2.



 STATE OF GEORGIA 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY 

 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO. 

302-150A 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO.  

302-150A 

 

 AND TO REPEAL ALL OTHER ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH. 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Effingham County Board of Commissioners in regular meeting assembled and pursuant to lawful 

authority thereof: 

WHEREAS ALLEN COTE has filed an application to rezone twenty-three and thirty-eight hundredth (23.38) +/- acres; from 

AR-2 to AR-1 to allow for the placement of a second home for an immediate family member; map and parcel number 302-150A, 

located in the 1st commissioner district, and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on November 1, 2022 and notice of said hearing having been published in the 

Effingham County Herald on October 5, 2022; and 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Effingham County Planning Board, notice of said hearing having been 

published in the Effingham County Herald on September 28, 2022; and 

IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED THAT twenty-three and thirty-eight hundredth (23.38) +/- acres; map and parcel number 302-

150A, located in the 1st commissioner district is rezoned from AR-2 to AR-1, with the following conditions: 

1. Permitting of the mobile home and related private well and septic system must be approved by Development Services and 

Environmental Health before the new dwelling is placed on site. 

2. The lot shall meet the requirements of the AR-1 zoning district. 

 

All ordinances or part of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

This ______ day of ________________, 20____ 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

      EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

      BY:  _______________________________ 

               WESLEY CORBITT, CHAIRMAN 

 

 

ATTEST:       FIRST/SECOND READING:  ______________  

  

___________________________ 

STEPHANIE JOHNSON 

COUNTY CLERK 

258

Item XVI. 2.



Staff Report            

Subject:  Rezoning (First District) 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: November 1, 2022 
Item Description: Wendall A. Kessler as Agent for Amby Development requests to rezone 23.3 acres 
from PD to AR-1 to allow for a home site. Located off Old River Road. Map# 329 Parcel# 26 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends approval of the request to rezone 23.3 acres from PD 
to AR-1 to allow for a home site, with conditions. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  
• The request for rezoning is a requirement of Appendix C, Article IX-Amendments to Map or Text, Section 

9.  Zoning districts are described in Appendix C, Article V-Uses Permitted in Districts.  
• The 23.3-acre parcel was rezoned to PD on January 21, 2003, as part of an 86.65-acre rezoning which 

created Stonegate Subdivision. 
• The applicant wishes to rezone the 23.3 acres, known as Lake Jean in supporting documentation, to AR-

1 in order to remove the lot from the Stonegate PD and establish a private residence. 
• Page 10, sec. 2.42 of the original 2005 covenants states that “(The) Developer specifically reserves the 

right to split, subdivide, reconfigure, or recombine its Lots”. The applicant is the Developer named in the 
document and has retained ownership of the Lake Jean parcel. 

• An amendment to the covenants was recorded in 2011, revoking the HOA lease and rights to “The Lake” 
which is described in a manner that indicates Lake Jean. 

• The applicant requested AR-1 zoning specifically. As the parcel meets the requirements of the AR-1 
zoning district, and AR-1 zoning is compatible with surrounding properties, Staff is recommending 
approval. It should be noted that, given the unique shape of the parcel, the amount of lake coverage, 
presence of wetlands, and unknown location of future building, it is not guaranteed that the applicant will 
be able to meet required building setbacks.   

• At the October 17, 2022 Planning Board meeting, Ryan Thompson made a motion to approve the 
request to rezone 23.3 acres from PD to AR-1 to allow for a home site, with the following conditions: 
1. The lot shall meet the requirements of the AR-1 zoning district. 
2. The applicant must provide a legal easement to the Stonegate HOA to allow access to Lake Jean as 

part of Stonegate’s drainage system.   
• The motion was seconded by Alan Zipperer and carried unanimously. 

 
 

Alternatives  
1. Approve the request to rezone 23.3 acres from PD to AR-1, with the following conditions: 

1. The lot shall meet the requirements of the AR-1 zoning district. 
2. The applicant must provide a legal easement to the Stonegate HOA to allow access to Lake Jean as 

part of Stonegate’s drainage system.   
 
2. Deny the request to rezone 23.3 acres from PD to AR-1. 
 
 
Recommended Alternative:  1    Other Alternatives:  2 
 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
Attachments:  1.   Rezoning application and checklist 3. Plat   5. Deed 

3. Ownership certificate/authorization 4. Aerial photograph 
259

Item XVI. 3.



260

Item XVI. 3.



261

Item XVI. 3.



262

Item XVI. 3.



263

Item XVI. 3.



264

Item XVI. 3.



265

Item XVI. 3.



266

Item XVI. 3.



267

Item XVI. 3.



268

Item XVI. 3.



269

Item XVI. 3.



270

Item XVI. 3.



271

Item XVI. 3.



272

Item XVI. 3.



273

Item XVI. 3.



274

Item XVI. 3.



275

Item XVI. 3.



276

Item XVI. 3.



277

Item XVI. 3.



278

Item XVI. 3.



279

Item XVI. 3.



280

Item XVI. 3.



281

Item XVI. 3.



282

Item XVI. 3.



283

Item XVI. 3.



284

Item XVI. 3.



285

Item XVI. 3.



286

Item XVI. 3.



287

Item XVI. 3.



288

Item XVI. 3.



289

Item XVI. 3.



290

Item XVI. 3.



291

Item XVI. 3.



292

Item XVI. 3.



293

Item XVI. 3.



294

Item XVI. 3.



295

Item XVI. 3.



296

Item XVI. 3.



297

Item XVI. 3.



298

Item XVI. 3.



299

Item XVI. 3.



300

Item XVI. 3.



301

Item XVI. 3.



302

Item XVI. 3.



303

Item XVI. 3.



304

Item XVI. 3.



305

Item XVI. 3.



306

Item XVI. 3.



307

Item XVI. 3.



308

Item XVI. 3.



309

Item XVI. 3.



310

Item XVI. 3.



311

Item XVI. 3.



312

Item XVI. 3.



313

Item XVI. 3.



314

Item XVI. 3.



315

Item XVI. 3.



316

Item XVI. 3.



317

Item XVI. 3.



318

Item XVI. 3.



319

Item XVI. 3.



320

Item XVI. 3.



321

Item XVI. 3.



322

Item XVI. 3.



323

Item XVI. 3.



324

Item XVI. 3.



325

Item XVI. 3.



326

Item XVI. 3.



Staff Report            

Subject:  2nd Reading Zoning Map Amendment 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: November 1, 2022 
Item Description: Wendall A. Kessler as Agent for Amby Development requests to rezone 23.3 acres 
from PD to AR-1 to allow for a home site. Located off Old River Road. Map# 329 Parcel# 26 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends approval of the request to rezone 23.3 acres from PD 
to AR-1 to allow for a home site, with conditions. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  
• The request for rezoning is a requirement of Appendix C, Article IX-Amendments to Map or Text, Section 

9.  Zoning districts are described in Appendix C, Article V-Uses Permitted in Districts.  
• The 23.3-acre parcel was rezoned to PD on January 21, 2003, as part of an 86.65-acre rezoning which 

created Stonegate Subdivision. 
• The applicant wishes to rezone the 23.3 acres, known as Lake Jean in supporting documentation, to AR-

1 in order to remove the lot from the Stonegate PD and establish a private residence. 
• Page 10, sec. 2.42 of the original 2005 covenants states that “(The) Developer specifically reserves the 

right to split, subdivide, reconfigure, or recombine its Lots”. The applicant is the Developer named in the 
document and has retained ownership of the Lake Jean parcel. 

• An amendment to the covenants was recorded in 2011, revoking the HOA lease and rights to “The Lake” 
which is described in a manner that indicates Lake Jean. 

• The applicant requested AR-1 zoning specifically. As the parcel meets the requirements of the AR-1 
zoning district, and AR-1 zoning is compatible with surrounding properties, Staff is recommending 
approval. It should be noted that, given the unique shape of the parcel, the amount of lake coverage, 
presence of wetlands, and unknown location of future building, it is not guaranteed that the applicant will 
be able to meet required building setbacks.   

• At the October 17, 2022 Planning Board meeting, Ryan Thompson made a motion to approve the 
request to rezone 23.3 acres from PD to AR-1 to allow for a home site, with the following conditions: 
1. The lot shall meet the requirements of the AR-1 zoning district. 
2. The applicant must provide a legal easement to the Stonegate HOA to allow access to Lake Jean as 

part of Stonegate’s drainage system.   
• The motion was seconded by Alan Zipperer and carried unanimously. 

 
 

Alternatives  
1. Approve the request to rezone 23.3 acres from PD to AR-1, with the following conditions: 

1. The lot shall meet the requirements of the AR-1 zoning district. 
2. The applicant must provide a legal easement to the Stonegate HOA to allow access to Lake Jean as 

part of Stonegate’s drainage system.   
 
2. Deny the request to rezone 23.3 acres from PD to AR-1. 
 
 
Recommended Alternative:  1    Other Alternatives:  2 
 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
Attachments:  1.   Zoning Map Amendment 

327

Item XVI. 4.



 STATE OF GEORGIA 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY 

 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO. 

329-26 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO.  

329-26 

 

 AND TO REPEAL ALL OTHER ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH. 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Effingham County Board of Commissioners in regular meeting assembled and pursuant to lawful 

authority thereof: 

WHEREAS WENDALL A. KESSLER AS AGENT FOR AMBY DEVELOPMENT has filed an application to rezone 

twenty-three and thirty hundredth (23.3) +/- acres; from PD to AR-1 to allow for a single family home site; map and parcel number 

329-26, located in the 1st commissioner district, and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on November 1, 2022 and notice of said hearing having been published in the 

Effingham County Herald on October 5, 2022; and 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Effingham County Planning Board, notice of said hearing having been 

published in the Effingham County Herald on September 28, 2022; and 

IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED THAT twenty-three and thirty hundredth (23.3) +/- acres; map and parcel number 329-26, 

located in the 1st commissioner district is rezoned from PD to AR-1, with the following conditions: 

1. The lot shall meet the requirements of the AR-1 zoning district. 

2. The applicant must provide a legal easement to the Stonegate HOA to allow access to Lake Jean as part of Stonegate’s drainage 

system.   

 

All ordinances or part of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

This ______ day of ________________, 20____ 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

      EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

      BY:  _______________________________ 

               WESLEY CORBITT, CHAIRMAN 

 

 

ATTEST:       FIRST/SECOND READING:  ______________  

  

___________________________ 

STEPHANIE JOHNSON 

COUNTY CLERK 

328

Item XVI. 4.



Staff Report            

Subject:  Variance (First District) 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: November 1, 2022 
Item Description: Effingham County Industrial Development Authority as Agent for Effingham 
County Board of Commissioners requests a variance from section 3.38.9 Freestanding Sign Size, to allow 
for a sign size in excess of the 100 square foot maximum for a sign on an I-1 zoned parcel. Located on 
Savannah Portside Industrial Parkway, zoned I-1.   Map# 329D Parcel# 1C 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends approval of the request for a variance from section 
3.38.9 Freestanding Sign Size, with conditions. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  
• Pursuant to Appendix C-Zoning Ordinance, Article VII-Planning Board, Section 7.1.8, variances may 

only be granted if the following findings are made: 
That there are unique physical circumstances or conditions, including irregularity, narrowness, or 

shallowness, of lot size or shape, or exceptional topographical or other physical conditions peculiar to the 
particular property, and that the unnecessary hardship is due to such conditions, and not to circumstances 
or conditions generally created by the provisions of the zoning ordinance in the neighborhood or district 
in which the property is located; and  

That because of such physical circumstances or conditions, there is no possibility that the property 
can be developed in strict conformity with the provisions of the zoning ordinance, and that the authorization 
of a variance is therefore necessary to enable the reasonable use of the property.  

• The applicant is proposing a sign design with a sign face of approximately 112 square feet. The maximum 
signable area (section 3.38.9 a) for a freestanding sign on an I-1 zoned, multiple tenant parcel is 100 
square feet. 

• The proposed sign is designed and sized for high visibility, promoting safe access for truck traffic, while 
providing an aesthetically pleasing entry. 

• At the October 17, 2022 Planning Board meeting, Alan Zipperer made a motion to approve the request 
for a variance from section 3.38.9 Freestanding Sign Size, to allow for a sign size in excess of the 100 
square foot maximum for a sign on an I-1 zoned parcel, with the following condition: 
1. The sign shall not encroach into the street right-of-way, or be within 25 feet of an established street 

intersection, nor obstruct driver visibility. 
• The motion was seconded by Peter Higgins and carried unanimously. 

 

Alternatives   
1. Approve the request for a variance from section 3.38.9 Freestanding Sign Size, with the following 
condition:  

1. The sign shall not encroach into the street right-of-way, or be within 25 feet of an established street 
intersection, nor obstruct driver visibility. 

 
2. Deny the request for a variance from section 3.38.9 Freestanding Sign Size. 
 
Recommended Alternative:  1    Other Alternatives:  2 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
Attachments:  1.   Variance application                        3. Site Plan   5. Deed 

2. Ownership certificate/authorization 4. Aerial photograph 

329

Item XVI. 5.



330

Item XVI. 5.



331

Item XVI. 5.



332

Item XVI. 5.



333

Item XVI. 5.



334

Item XVI. 5.



335

Item XVI. 5.



336

Item XVI. 5.



337

Item XVI. 5.



338

Item XVI. 5.



339

Item XVI. 5.



340

Item XVI. 5.



341

Item XVI. 5.



Staff Report            

Subject:  2nd Reading Zoning Amendment 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: November 1, 2022 
Item Description: Effingham County Industrial Development Authority as Agent for Effingham 
County Board of Commissioners requests a variance from section 3.38.9 Freestanding Sign Size, to allow 
for a sign size in excess of the 100 square foot maximum for a sign on an I-1 zoned parcel. Located on 
Savannah Portside Industrial Parkway, zoned I-1.   Map# 329D Parcel# 1C 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends approval of the request for a variance from section 
3.38.9 Freestanding Sign Size, with conditions. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  
• Pursuant to Appendix C-Zoning Ordinance, Article VII-Planning Board, Section 7.1.8, variances may 

only be granted if the following findings are made: 
That there are unique physical circumstances or conditions, including irregularity, narrowness, or 

shallowness, of lot size or shape, or exceptional topographical or other physical conditions peculiar to the 
particular property, and that the unnecessary hardship is due to such conditions, and not to circumstances 
or conditions generally created by the provisions of the zoning ordinance in the neighborhood or district 
in which the property is located; and  

That because of such physical circumstances or conditions, there is no possibility that the property 
can be developed in strict conformity with the provisions of the zoning ordinance, and that the authorization 
of a variance is therefore necessary to enable the reasonable use of the property.  

• The applicant is proposing a sign design with a sign face of approximately 112 square feet. The maximum 
signable area (section 3.38.9 a) for a freestanding sign on an I-1 zoned, multiple tenant parcel is 100 
square feet. 

• The proposed sign is designed and sized for high visibility, promoting safe access for truck traffic, while 
providing an aesthetically pleasing entry. 

• At the October 17, 2022 Planning Board meeting, Alan Zipperer made a motion to approve the request 
for a variance from section 3.38.9 Freestanding Sign Size, to allow for a sign size in excess of the 100 
square foot maximum for a sign on an I-1 zoned parcel, with the following condition: 
1. The sign shall not encroach into the street right-of-way, or be within 25 feet of an established street 

intersection, nor obstruct driver visibility. 
• The motion was seconded by Peter Higgins and carried unanimously. 

 

Alternatives   
1. Approve the request for a variance from section 3.38.9 Freestanding Sign Size, with the following 
condition:  

1. The sign shall not encroach into the street right-of-way, or be within 25 feet of an established street 
intersection, nor obstruct driver visibility. 

 
2. Deny the request for a variance from section 3.38.9 Freestanding Sign Size. 
 
Recommended Alternative:  1    Other Alternatives:  2 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
Attachments:  1.   Zoning Map Amendment 

342

Item XVI. 6.



 STATE OF GEORGIA 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY 

 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO. 

329D-1C 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO.  

329D-1C 

 

 AND TO REPEAL ALL OTHER ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH. 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Effingham County Board of Commissioners in regular meeting assembled and pursuant to lawful 

authority thereof: 

WHEREAS, EFFINGHAM COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY AS AGENT FOR EFFINGHAM 

COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS has filed an application for a variance, to exceed the 100 square foot maximum for a sign 

on an I-1 zoned parcel; map and parcel number 329D-1C, located in the 1st commissioner district, and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on November 1, 2022 and notice of said hearing having been published in the 

Effingham County Herald on October 5, 2022; and 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Effingham County Planning Board, notice of said hearing having been 

published in the Effingham County Herald on September 28, 2022; and 

IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED THAT a variance to exceed the 100 square foot maximum for a sign on an I-1 zoned parcel; 

map and parcel number 329D-1C, located in the 1st commissioner district is approved, with the following condition: 

1. The sign shall not encroach into the street right-of-way, or be within 25 feet of an established street intersection, nor obstruct 

driver visibility. 

 

All ordinances or part of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

This ______ day of ________________, 20____ 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

      EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

      BY:  _______________________________ 

               WESLEY CORBITT, CHAIRMAN 

 

 

ATTEST:       FIRST/SECOND READING:  ______________  

  

___________________________ 

STEPHANIE JOHNSON 

COUNTY CLERK 

343

Item XVI. 6.



Staff Report            

Subject:  Rezoning (Third District) 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: November 1, 2022 
Item Description: Scott B. Eishen requests to rezone 4.72 acres from AR-1 to AR-2 to allow for the 
separation of a home site. Located at 7083 Clyo-Kildare Road. Map# 229A Parcel# 1 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends approval of the request to rezone 4.72 acres from AR-
1 to AR-2 to allow for the separation of a home site, with conditions. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  
• The request for rezoning is a requirement of Appendix C, Article IX-Amendments to Map or Text, Section 

9.  Zoning districts are described in Appendix C, Article V-Uses Permitted in Districts. AR-1 requires a 
minimum lot size of 5 acres. AR-2 allows lots of one acre or more.   

• The applicant proposes to split a 4.72-acre parcel. The proposed lots will be less than 5 acres and, 
therefore, the entire 4.72 acres must be rezoned to AR-2. 

• At the October 17, 2022 Planning Board meeting, Alan Zipperer made a motion to approve the request 
to rezone 4.72 acres from AR-1 to AR-2 to allow for the separation of a home site, with the following 
conditions: 
1. The lots shall meet the requirements of the AR-2 zoning district. 
2. Minor subdivision plat must be approved by Development Services and Environmental Health, and be 

recorded, before the rezoning can take effect. 
• The motion was seconded by Brad Smith and carried unanimously. 

 

Alternatives  
1. Approve the request to rezone 4.72 acres from AR-1 to AR-2, with the following conditions: 

1. The lots shall meet the requirements of the AR-2 zoning district. 
2. Minor subdivision plat must be approved by Development Services and Environmental Health, and 

be recorded, before the rezoning can take effect. 
2. Deny the request to rezone 4.72 acres from AR-1 to AR-2. 

Recommended Alternative:  1    Other Alternatives:  2 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
Attachments:  1.   Rezoning application and checklist 4. Deed 

2. Ownership certificate/authorization 5. Aerial photograph 
3. Plat  

344

Item XVI. 7.



345

Item XVI. 7.



346

Item XVI. 7.



347

Item XVI. 7.



348

Item XVI. 7.



349

Item XVI. 7.



350

Item XVI. 7.



351

Item XVI. 7.



352

Item XVI. 7.



353

Item XVI. 7.



354

Item XVI. 7.



355

Item XVI. 7.



356

Item XVI. 7.



357

Item XVI. 7.



358

Item XVI. 7.



359

Item XVI. 7.



Staff Report            

Subject:  2nd Reading Zoning Map Amendment 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: November 1, 2022 
Item Description: Scott B. Eishen requests to rezone 4.72 acres from AR-1 to AR-2 to allow for the 
separation of a home site. Located at 7083 Clyo-Kildare Road. Map# 229A Parcel# 1 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends approval of the request to rezone 4.72 acres from AR-
1 to AR-2 to allow for the separation of a home site, with conditions. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  
• The request for rezoning is a requirement of Appendix C, Article IX-Amendments to Map or Text, Section 

9.  Zoning districts are described in Appendix C, Article V-Uses Permitted in Districts. AR-1 requires a 
minimum lot size of 5 acres. AR-2 allows lots of one acre or more.   

• The applicant proposes to split a 4.72-acre parcel. The proposed lots will be less than 5 acres and, 
therefore, the entire 4.72 acres must be rezoned to AR-2. 

• At the October 17, 2022 Planning Board meeting, Alan Zipperer made a motion to approve the request 
to rezone 4.72 acres from AR-1 to AR-2 to allow for the separation of a home site, with the following 
conditions: 
1. The lots shall meet the requirements of the AR-2 zoning district. 
2. Minor subdivision plat must be approved by Development Services and Environmental Health, and be 

recorded, before the rezoning can take effect. 
• The motion was seconded by Brad Smith and carried unanimously. 

 

Alternatives  
1. Approve the request to rezone 4.72 acres from AR-1 to AR-2, with the following conditions: 

1. The lots shall meet the requirements of the AR-2 zoning district. 
2. Minor subdivision plat must be approved by Development Services and Environmental Health, and 

be recorded, before the rezoning can take effect. 
2. Deny the request to rezone 4.72 acres from AR-1 to AR-2. 

Recommended Alternative:  1    Other Alternatives:  2 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
Attachments:  1.   Zoning Map Amendment  

360

Item XVI. 8.



 STATE OF GEORGIA 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY 

 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO. 

229A-1 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO.  

229A-1 

 

 AND TO REPEAL ALL OTHER ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH. 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Effingham County Board of Commissioners in regular meeting assembled and pursuant to lawful 

authority thereof: 

WHEREAS SCOTT B. EISHEN has filed an application to rezone four and seventy-two hundredth (4.72) +/- acres; from 

AR-1 to AR-2 to allow for the separation of a home site; map and parcel number 229A-1, located in the 3rd commissioner district, and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on November 1, 2022 and notice of said hearing having been published in the 

Effingham County Herald on October 5, 2022; and 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Effingham County Planning Board, notice of said hearing having been 

published in the Effingham County Herald on September 28, 2022; and 

IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED THAT four and seventy-two hundredth (4.72) +/- acres; map and parcel number 229A-1, 

located in the 3rd commissioner district is rezoned from AR-1 to AR-2, with the following conditions: 

1. The lots shall meet the requirements of the AR-2 zoning district. 

2. Minor subdivision plat must be approved by Development Services and Environmental Health, and be recorded, before the 

rezoning can take effect. 

All ordinances or part of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

This ______ day of ________________, 20____ 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

      EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

      BY:  _______________________________ 

               WESLEY CORBITT, CHAIRMAN 

 

 

ATTEST:       FIRST/SECOND READING:  ______________  

  

___________________________ 

STEPHANIE JOHNSON 

COUNTY CLERK 

361

Item XVI. 8.



Staff Report            

Subject:  Rezoning (Third District) 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: November 1, 2022 
Item Description: Terry Griner requests to rezone 0.23 acres from B-3 to AR-1 to allow for a 
recombination of parcels. Located on Go Cart Road & Pound Road. Map# 296 Parcel# 46F 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends approval of the request to rezone .23 acres from B-3 
to AR-1 to allow for a recombination of parcels, with conditions. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  
• The request for rezoning is a requirement of Appendix C, Article IX-Amendments to Map or Text, Section 

9.  Zoning districts are described in Appendix C, Article V-Uses Permitted in Districts.  
• The applicant wishes to allow 0.23 acres of his B-3 zoned parcel to be added to adjacent Map/Parcel 296-

46E. This addition to the property will serve to correct the existing property line, which currently runs 
through functional travel access and a structure. 

• The 0.23 section is being added to a parcel that is zoned AR-1. Therefore, the 0.23 acres must also be 
zoned AR-1. 

• The applicant was denied a request to rezone the entirety of this parcel to I-1 on August 2, 2022. Staff, in 
consultation with the County Attorney, have determined that this current rezoning request is not subject 
to the 6-month prohibition on reapplication due to the vastly different scope and intent of the proposed 
rezoning.  

• At the October 17, 2022 Planning Board meeting, Peter Higgins made a motion to approve the request 
to rezone 0.23 acres from B-3 to AR-1 to allow for a recombination of parcels, with the following 
conditions: 
1. The lot shall meet the requirements of the AR-1 zoning district. 
2. A combination plat must be approved by Development Services and, and be recorded, before the       

rezoning can take effect. 
• The motion was seconded by Brad Smith and carried unanimously. 

 

Alternatives  
1. Approve the request to rezone 0.23 acres from B-3 to AR-1, with the following conditions:  

1. The lot shall meet the requirements of the AR-1 zoning district. 
2. A combination plat must be approved by Development Services and, and be recorded, before the       

 rezoning can take effect. 
 
2. Deny the request to rezone 0.23 acres from B-3 to AR-1 
 
Recommended Alternative:  1    Other Alternatives: 2 
 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
Attachments:  1.   Rezoning application and checklist 4. Deed 

2. Ownership certificate/authorization 5. Aerial photograph 
3. Plat  

 
 
  

362

Item XVI. 9.



363

Item XVI. 9.



364

Item XVI. 9.



365

Item XVI. 9.



366

Item XVI. 9.



367

Item XVI. 9.



368

Item XVI. 9.



369

Item XVI. 9.



370

Item XVI. 9.



371

Item XVI. 9.



372

Item XVI. 9.



373

Item XVI. 9.



374

Item XVI. 9.



375

Item XVI. 9.



376

Item XVI. 9.



377

Item XVI. 9.



378

Item XVI. 9.



379

Item XVI. 9.



Staff Report            

Subject:  2nd Reading Zoning Map Amendment 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: November 1, 2022 
Item Description: Terry Griner requests to rezone 0.23 acres from B-3 to AR-1 to allow for a 
recombination of parcels. Located on Go Cart Road & Pound Road. Map# 296 Parcel# 46F 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends approval of the request to rezone .23 acres from B-3 
to AR-1 to allow for a recombination of parcels, with conditions. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  
• The request for rezoning is a requirement of Appendix C, Article IX-Amendments to Map or Text, Section 

9.  Zoning districts are described in Appendix C, Article V-Uses Permitted in Districts.  
• The applicant wishes to allow 0.23 acres of his B-3 zoned parcel to be added to adjacent Map/Parcel 296-

46E. This addition to the property will serve to correct the existing property line, which currently runs 
through functional travel access and a structure. 

• The 0.23 section is being added to a parcel that is zoned AR-1. Therefore, the 0.23 acres must also be 
zoned AR-1. 

• The applicant was denied a request to rezone the entirety of this parcel to I-1 on August 2, 2022. Staff, in 
consultation with the County Attorney, have determined that this current rezoning request is not subject 
to the 6-month prohibition on reapplication due to the vastly different scope and intent of the proposed 
rezoning.  

• At the October 17, 2022 Planning Board meeting, Peter Higgins made a motion to approve the request 
to rezone 0.23 acres from B-3 to AR-1 to allow for a recombination of parcels, with the following 
conditions: 
1. The lot shall meet the requirements of the AR-1 zoning district. 
2. A combination plat must be approved by Development Services and, and be recorded, before the       

rezoning can take effect. 
• The motion was seconded by Brad Smith and carried unanimously. 

 

Alternatives  
1. Approve the request to rezone 0.23 acres from B-3 to AR-1, with the following conditions:  

1. The lot shall meet the requirements of the AR-1 zoning district. 
2. A combination plat must be approved by Development Services and, and be recorded, before the       

 rezoning can take effect. 
 
2. Deny the request to rezone 0.23 acres from B-3 to AR-1 
 
Recommended Alternative:  1    Other Alternatives: 2 
 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
Attachments:  1.   Zoning Map Amendment  
 
 
  

380

Item XVI. 10.



 STATE OF GEORGIA 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY 

 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO. 

296-46F 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO.  

296-46F 

 

 AND TO REPEAL ALL OTHER ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH. 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Effingham County Board of Commissioners in regular meeting assembled and pursuant to lawful 

authority thereof: 

WHEREAS TERRY GRINER has filed an application to rezone twenty-three hundredth (.23) +/- acres; from B-3 to AR-1 to 

allow for a recombination of parcels; map and parcel number 296-46F, located in the 3rd commissioner district, and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on November 1, 2022 and notice of said hearing having been published in the 

Effingham County Herald on October 5, 2022; and 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Effingham County Planning Board, notice of said hearing having been 

published in the Effingham County Herald on September 28, 2022; and 

IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED THAT twenty-three hundredth (.23) +/- acres; map and parcel number 296-46F, located in the 

3rd commissioner district is rezoned from B-3 to AR-1, with the following conditions: 

1. The lot shall meet the requirements of the AR-1 zoning district. 

2. A combination plat must be approved by Development Services and, and be recorded, before the rezoning can take effect. 

All ordinances or part of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

This ______ day of ________________, 20____ 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

      EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

      BY:  _______________________________ 

               WESLEY CORBITT, CHAIRMAN 

 

 

ATTEST:       FIRST/SECOND READING:  ______________  

  

___________________________ 

STEPHANIE JOHNSON 

COUNTY CLERK 

381

Item XVI. 10.



Staff Report            

Subject:  Rezoning (Fourth District) 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: November 1, 2022 
Item Description: The McGraley Co. as Agent for Charles Layton requests to rezone 65.29 of 97.36 
acres from AR-1 to I-1, to allow for a surface mine. Located on McCall Road Map# 391 Parcels# 11C & 11F 
Map# 412 Parcel# 24 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends denial of the request to rezone 65.29 of 97.36 acres 
from AR-1 to I-1, to allow for a surface mine 
Executive Summary/Background  
• The request for rezoning is a requirement of Appendix C, Article IX-Amendments to Map or Text, Section 

9.  Pursuant to Sec. 3.17.3.3, excavation activity that involves movement of soil off-site must be located 
within the I-1 zoning district.  

• Surface Mines are regulated by O.C.G.A. 12-4-70 Georgia Surface Mining Act of 1968, as amended, 
and Georgia Rule 391-3-3. Pursuant to O.C.G.A 12-4-75 of the Georgia Surface Mining Act, a mining 
land use plan (MLUP) shall be consistent with the land use in the area of the mine. Mine operators must 
obtain a letter from the local government stating the mine location is in zoning compliance. 

• The proposed site is surrounded by agricultural and residential uses, which are supported by the future 
land use map. According to EPD, there are approximately 31 permitted mines in the county. 

• The proposed site has extensive wetlands coverage. Pursuant to sec. 3.17(4)(7), all wetlands impacts 
must be permitted by the USACE.  

• The proposed surface mine site has frontage on both McCall Road & Racepath Road. Neither road is a 
designated truck route.  

• The applicant has submitted an application for Map/Parcel 391-11C for a pond less than one acre in size. 
The submitted site plan shows the pond inside the proposed surface mine area. 

• At the October 17, 2022 Planning Board meeting, Brad Smith made a motion to approve the request to 
rezone 65.29 of 97.36 acres from AR-1 to I-1, to allow for a surface mine, with the following conditions: 
1. This rezoning allows a surface mine only. No other I-1 uses are allowed. 
2. A wetlands delineation and the state mining permit shall be submitted to Development Services. 
3. Applicant shall meet with the county engineer to set the scope of the Traffic Impact Assessment. 
4. Applicant shall obtain a Timber Permit prior to removal of any trees outside the buffer area. 
5. The surface mine site shall meet the requirements of Section 3.17- Excavation, mining, ponds, and 

fills of land and/or state federal jurisdictional waters or wetlands, Section 3.17.5 Surface Mine 
Operations – Road Maintenance Requirements, and Sec. 74-8 Designated Truck Routes. 

6. The applicant shall notify Development Services at the time of final reclamation of the surface mine 
and close-out of this mining operation. Upon the determination of the Department of Natural 
Resources that the affected lands have been reclaimed in an acceptable manner, the applicant 
shall rezone the property to AR-1. 

• And the added condition: 
7. There shall be no traffic entrance to, exit from, or travel along Racepath Road. Surface mine traffic 

and access shall be limited to McCall Road. 
• The motion was seconded by Alan Zipperer and carried unanimously. 

 
 

 
 
 

382

Item XVI. 11.



Alternatives  
1. Approve the request to rezone 65.29 of 97.36 acres from AR-1 to I-1, to allow for a surface mine, with 

the following conditions: 
1. This rezoning allows a surface mine only. No other I-1 uses are allowed. 
2. A wetlands delineation and the state mining permit shall be submitted to Development Services. 
3. Applicant shall meet with the county engineer to set the scope of the Traffic Impact Assessment. 
4. Applicant shall obtain a Timber Permit prior to removal of any trees outside the buffer area. 
5. The surface mine site shall meet the requirements of Section 3.17- Excavation, mining, ponds, and 

fills of land and/or state federal jurisdictional waters or wetlands, Section 3.17.5 Surface Mine 
Operations – Road Maintenance Requirements, and Sec. 74-8 Designated Truck Routes. 

6. The applicant shall notify Development Services at the time of final reclamation of the surface mine 
and close-out of this mining operation. Upon the determination of the Department of Natural 
Resources that the affected lands have been reclaimed in an acceptable manner, the applicant 
shall rezone the property to AR-1. 

7. There shall be no traffic entrance to, exit from, or travel along Racepath Road. Surface mine traffic 
and access shall be limited to McCall Road. 

2. Deny the request to rezone 65.29 of 97.36 acres from AR-1 to I-1. 
 
Recommended Alternative:  2    Other Alternatives:  1 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
Attachments:  1.   Rezoning application and checklist 3. Plat   5. Deed 

2. Ownership certificate/authorization 4. Aerial photograph 

  

383

Item XVI. 11.



384

Item XVI. 11.



385

Item XVI. 11.



386

Item XVI. 11.



387

Item XVI. 11.



388

Item XVI. 11.



389

Item XVI. 11.



390

Item XVI. 11.



391

Item XVI. 11.



392

Item XVI. 11.



393

Item XVI. 11.



394

Item XVI. 11.



395

Item XVI. 11.



396

Item XVI. 11.



397

Item XVI. 11.



398

Item XVI. 11.



399

Item XVI. 11.



400

Item XVI. 11.



401

Item XVI. 11.



402

Item XVI. 11.



403

Item XVI. 11.



404

Item XVI. 11.



405

Item XVI. 11.



Staff Report            

Subject:  2nd Reading Zoning Map Amendment 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: November 1, 2022 
Item Description: The McGraley Co. as Agent for Charles Layton requests to rezone 65.29 of 97.36 
acres from AR-1 to I-1, to allow for a surface mine. Located on McCall Road Map# 391 Parcels# 11C & 11F 
Map# 412 Parcel# 24 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends denial of the request to rezone 65.29 of 97.36 acres 
from AR-1 to I-1, to allow for a surface mine 
Executive Summary/Background  
• The request for rezoning is a requirement of Appendix C, Article IX-Amendments to Map or Text, Section 

9.  Pursuant to Sec. 3.17.3.3, excavation activity that involves movement of soil off-site must be located 
within the I-1 zoning district.  

• Surface Mines are regulated by O.C.G.A. 12-4-70 Georgia Surface Mining Act of 1968, as amended, 
and Georgia Rule 391-3-3. Pursuant to O.C.G.A 12-4-75 of the Georgia Surface Mining Act, a mining 
land use plan (MLUP) shall be consistent with the land use in the area of the mine. Mine operators must 
obtain a letter from the local government stating the mine location is in zoning compliance. 

• The proposed site is surrounded by agricultural and residential uses, which are supported by the future 
land use map. According to EPD, there are approximately 31 permitted mines in the county. 

• The proposed site has extensive wetlands coverage. Pursuant to sec. 3.17(4)(7), all wetlands impacts 
must be permitted by the USACE.  

• The proposed surface mine site has frontage on both McCall Road & Racepath Road. Neither road is a 
designated truck route.  

• The applicant has submitted an application for Map/Parcel 391-11C for a pond less than one acre in size. 
The submitted site plan shows the pond inside the proposed surface mine area. 

• At the October 17, 2022 Planning Board meeting, Brad Smith made a motion to approve the request to 
rezone 65.29 of 97.36 acres from AR-1 to I-1, to allow for a surface mine, with the following conditions: 
1. This rezoning allows a surface mine only. No other I-1 uses are allowed. 
2. A wetlands delineation and the state mining permit shall be submitted to Development Services. 
3. Applicant shall meet with the county engineer to set the scope of the Traffic Impact Assessment. 
4. Applicant shall obtain a Timber Permit prior to removal of any trees outside the buffer area. 
5. The surface mine site shall meet the requirements of Section 3.17- Excavation, mining, ponds, and 

fills of land and/or state federal jurisdictional waters or wetlands, Section 3.17.5 Surface Mine 
Operations – Road Maintenance Requirements, and Sec. 74-8 Designated Truck Routes. 

6. The applicant shall notify Development Services at the time of final reclamation of the surface mine 
and close-out of this mining operation. Upon the determination of the Department of Natural 
Resources that the affected lands have been reclaimed in an acceptable manner, the applicant 
shall rezone the property to AR-1. 

• And the added condition: 
7. There shall be no traffic entrance to, exit from, or travel along Racepath Road. Surface mine traffic 

and access shall be limited to McCall Road. 
• The motion was seconded by Alan Zipperer and carried unanimously. 

 
 

 
 
 

406

Item XVI. 12.



Alternatives  
1. Approve the request to rezone 65.29 of 97.36 acres from AR-1 to I-1, to allow for a surface mine, with 

the following conditions: 
1. This rezoning allows a surface mine only. No other I-1 uses are allowed. 
2. A wetlands delineation and the state mining permit shall be submitted to Development Services. 
3. Applicant shall meet with the county engineer to set the scope of the Traffic Impact Assessment. 
4. Applicant shall obtain a Timber Permit prior to removal of any trees outside the buffer area. 
5. The surface mine site shall meet the requirements of Section 3.17- Excavation, mining, ponds, and 

fills of land and/or state federal jurisdictional waters or wetlands, Section 3.17.5 Surface Mine 
Operations – Road Maintenance Requirements, and Sec. 74-8 Designated Truck Routes. 

6. The applicant shall notify Development Services at the time of final reclamation of the surface mine 
and close-out of this mining operation. Upon the determination of the Department of Natural 
Resources that the affected lands have been reclaimed in an acceptable manner, the applicant 
shall rezone the property to AR-1. 

7. There shall be no traffic entrance to, exit from, or travel along Racepath Road. Surface mine traffic 
and access shall be limited to McCall Road. 

2. Deny the request to rezone 65.29 of 97.36 acres from AR-1 to I-1. 
 
Recommended Alternative:  2    Other Alternatives:  1 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
Attachments:  1.   Zoning Map Amendment 
  

407

Item XVI. 12.



 STATE OF GEORGIA 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY 

 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO. 

391-11C, 11F & 412-24  

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO.  

391-11C, 11F & 412-24 

 

 AND TO REPEAL ALL OTHER ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH. 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Effingham County Board of Commissioners in regular meeting assembled and pursuant to lawful 

authority thereof: 

WHEREAS THE MCGRALEY CO. AS AGENT FOR CHARLES LAYTON has filed an application to rezone sixty-five 

and twenty-nine hundredth (65.29) +/- acres; from AR-1 to I-1 to allow for surface mine; map and parcel number 391-11C, 11F & 

412-24, located in the 4th commissioner district, and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on November 1, 2022 and notice of said hearing having been published in the 

Effingham County Herald on October 5, 2022; and 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Effingham County Planning Board, notice of said hearing having been 

published in the Effingham County Herald on September 28, 2022; and 

IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED THAT sixty-five and twenty-nine hundredth (65.29) +/- acres; map and parcel number 391-

11C, 11F & 412-24, located in the 4th commissioner district is rezoned from AR-1 to I-1, with the following conditions: 

1. This rezoning allows a surface mine only. No other I-1 uses are allowed. 

2. A wetlands delineation and the state mining permit shall be submitted to Development Services. 

3. Applicant shall meet with the county engineer to set the scope of the Traffic Impact Assessment. 

4. Applicant shall obtain a Timber Permit prior to removal of any trees outside the buffer area. 

5. The surface mine site shall meet the requirements of Section 3.17- Excavation, mining, ponds, and fills of land and/or state federal 

jurisdictional waters or wetlands, Section 3.17.5 Surface Mine Operations – Road Maintenance Requirements, and Sec. 74-8 Designated 

Truck Routes. 

6. The applicant shall notify Development Services at the time of final reclamation of the surface mine and close-out of this mining 

operation. Upon the determination of the Department of Natural Resources that the affected lands have been reclaimed in an acceptable 

manner, the applicant shall rezone the property to AR-1. 

7. There shall be no traffic entrance to, exit from, or travel along Racepath Road. Surface mine traffic and access shall be limited to McCall 

Road. 

All ordinances or part of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 
This ______ day of ________________, 20____ 

 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

      EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

      BY:  _______________________________ 

               WESLEY CORBITT, CHAIRMAN 

 

 

ATTEST:      FIRST/SECOND READING:  ______________  

  

___________________________ 

STEPHANIE JOHNSON 

COUNTY CLERK 

408

Item XVI. 12.



Staff Report            

Subject:  Rezoning (Fourth District) 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: November 1, 2022 
Item Description: The McGraley Co. as Agent for Richard Hall requests to rezone 27.17 of 64.8 acres 
from AR-1 to I-1, to allow for a surface mine. Located on Horse Pen Road Map# 394 Parcels# 29 & 30 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends denial of the request to rezone 27.17 of 64.8 acres from 
AR-1 to I-1, to allow for a surface mine. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  
• The request for rezoning is a requirement of Appendix C, Article IX-Amendments to Map or Text, Section 

9.  Zoning districts are described in Article V-Uses Permitted in Districts. Pursuant to Sec. 3.17.3.3, 
excavation activity that requires a state mining permit must be located within the I-1 zoning district.  

• Surface Mines are regulated by O.C.G.A. 12-4-70 Georgia Surface Mining Act of 1968, as amended, 
and Georgia Rule 391-3-3. Pursuant to O.C.G.A 12-4-75 of the Georgia Surface Mining Act, a mining 
land use plan (MLUP) shall be consistent with the land use in the area of the mine. Mine operators must 
obtain a letter from the local government stating the mine location is in zoning compliance. 

• The proposed site is surrounded by agricultural and residential uses, which are supported by the future 
land use map. According to EPD, there are 31 permitted mines in the county. 

• The proposed site has extensive wetlands coverage. Pursuant to sec. 3.17(4)(7), all wetlands impacts 
must be permitted by the USACE.  

• The proposed surface mine site has frontage on Horse Pen Road, which is not a designated truck route.  
• The applicant has submitted an application for Map/Parcel 394-30 for a pond less than one acre in size. 

The submitted site plan shows the proposed pond inside the area to be mined. 
• At the October 17, 2022 Planning Board meeting, Brad Smith made a motion to approve the request to 

rezone 65.29 of 97.36 acres from AR-1 to I-1, to allow for a surface mine, with the following conditions: 
1. This rezoning allows a surface mine only. No other I-1 uses are allowed. 
2. A wetlands delineation and the state mining permit shall be submitted to Development Services. 
3. Applicant shall meet with the county engineer to set the scope of the Traffic Impact Assessment. 
4. Applicant shall obtain a Timber Permit prior to removal of any trees outside the buffer area. 
5. The surface mine site shall meet the requirements of Section 3.17- Excavation, mining, ponds, and 

fills of land and/or state federal jurisdictional waters or wetlands, Section 3.17.5 Surface Mine 
Operations – Road Maintenance Requirements, and Sec. 74-8 Designated Truck Routes. 

6. The applicant shall notify Development Services at the time of final reclamation of the surface mine 
and close-out of this mining operation. Upon the determination of the Department of Natural 
Resources that the affected lands have been reclaimed in an acceptable manner, the applicant 
shall rezone the property to AR-1. 

• The motion was seconded by Alan Zipperer and carried unanimously. 

Alternatives  
1. Approve the request to rezone 27.17 of 64.8 acres from AR-1 to I-1 for a surface mine, with the following 

conditions: 
1. This rezoning allows a surface mine only. No other I-1 uses are allowed. 
2. A wetlands delineation and the state mining permit shall be submitted to Development Services. 
3. Applicant shall meet with the county engineer to set the scope of the Traffic Impact Assessment. 
4. Applicant shall obtain a Timber Permit prior to removal of any trees outside the buffer area. 

409

Item XVI. 13.



5. The surface mine site shall meet the requirements of Section 3.17- Excavation, mining, ponds, and 
fills of land and/or state federal jurisdictional waters or wetlands, Section 3.17.5 Surface Mine 
Operations – Road Maintenance Requirements, and Sec. 74-8 Designated Truck Routes. 

6. The applicant shall notify Development Services at the time of final reclamation of the surface mine 
and close-out of this mining operation. Upon the determination of the Department of Natural 
Resources that the affected lands have been reclaimed in an acceptable manner, the applicant 
shall rezone the property to AR-1. 

2. Deny the request to rezone 27.17 of 64.8 acres from AR-1 to I-1. 

Recommended Alternative:  2    Other Alternatives:  1 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
Attachments:  1.   Rezoning application and checklist 3. Plat   5. Deed 

3. Ownership certificate/authorization 4. Aerial photograph 

410

Item XVI. 13.



411

Item XVI. 13.



412

Item XVI. 13.



413

Item XVI. 13.



414

Item XVI. 13.



415

Item XVI. 13.



416

Item XVI. 13.



417

Item XVI. 13.



418

Item XVI. 13.



419

Item XVI. 13.



420

Item XVI. 13.



421

Item XVI. 13.



422

Item XVI. 13.



423

Item XVI. 13.



424

Item XVI. 13.



425

Item XVI. 13.



426

Item XVI. 13.



427

Item XVI. 13.



428

Item XVI. 13.



Staff Report            

Subject:  2nd Reading Zoning Map Amendment 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: November 1, 2022 
Item Description: The McGraley Co. as Agent for Richard Hall requests to rezone 27.17 of 64.8 acres 
from AR-1 to I-1, to allow for a surface mine. Located on Horse Pen Road Map# 394 Parcels# 29 & 30 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends denial of the request to rezone 27.17 of 64.8 acres from 
AR-1 to I-1, to allow for a surface mine. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  
• The request for rezoning is a requirement of Appendix C, Article IX-Amendments to Map or Text, Section 

9.  Zoning districts are described in Article V-Uses Permitted in Districts. Pursuant to Sec. 3.17.3.3, 
excavation activity that requires a state mining permit must be located within the I-1 zoning district.  

• Surface Mines are regulated by O.C.G.A. 12-4-70 Georgia Surface Mining Act of 1968, as amended, 
and Georgia Rule 391-3-3. Pursuant to O.C.G.A 12-4-75 of the Georgia Surface Mining Act, a mining 
land use plan (MLUP) shall be consistent with the land use in the area of the mine. Mine operators must 
obtain a letter from the local government stating the mine location is in zoning compliance. 

• The proposed site is surrounded by agricultural and residential uses, which are supported by the future 
land use map. According to EPD, there are 31 permitted mines in the county. 

• The proposed site has extensive wetlands coverage. Pursuant to sec. 3.17(4)(7), all wetlands impacts 
must be permitted by the USACE.  

• The proposed surface mine site has frontage on Horse Pen Road, which is not a designated truck route.  
• The applicant has submitted an application for Map/Parcel 394-30 for a pond less than one acre in size. 

The submitted site plan shows the proposed pond inside the area to be mined. 
• At the October 17, 2022 Planning Board meeting, Brad Smith made a motion to approve the request to 

rezone 65.29 of 97.36 acres from AR-1 to I-1, to allow for a surface mine, with the following conditions: 
1. This rezoning allows a surface mine only. No other I-1 uses are allowed. 
2. A wetlands delineation and the state mining permit shall be submitted to Development Services. 
3. Applicant shall meet with the county engineer to set the scope of the Traffic Impact Assessment. 
4. Applicant shall obtain a Timber Permit prior to removal of any trees outside the buffer area. 
5. The surface mine site shall meet the requirements of Section 3.17- Excavation, mining, ponds, and 

fills of land and/or state federal jurisdictional waters or wetlands, Section 3.17.5 Surface Mine 
Operations – Road Maintenance Requirements, and Sec. 74-8 Designated Truck Routes. 

6. The applicant shall notify Development Services at the time of final reclamation of the surface mine 
and close-out of this mining operation. Upon the determination of the Department of Natural 
Resources that the affected lands have been reclaimed in an acceptable manner, the applicant 
shall rezone the property to AR-1. 

• The motion was seconded by Alan Zipperer and carried unanimously. 
 

Alternatives  
1. Approve the request to rezone 27.17 of 64.8 acres from AR-1 to I-1 for a surface mine, with the following 

conditions: 
1. This rezoning allows a surface mine only. No other I-1 uses are allowed. 
2. A wetlands delineation and the state mining permit shall be submitted to Development Services. 
3. Applicant shall meet with the county engineer to set the scope of the Traffic Impact Assessment. 
4. Applicant shall obtain a Timber Permit prior to removal of any trees outside the buffer area. 

429

Item XVI. 14.



5. The surface mine site shall meet the requirements of Section 3.17- Excavation, mining, ponds, and 
fills of land and/or state federal jurisdictional waters or wetlands, Section 3.17.5 Surface Mine 
Operations – Road Maintenance Requirements, and Sec. 74-8 Designated Truck Routes. 

6. The applicant shall notify Development Services at the time of final reclamation of the surface mine 
and close-out of this mining operation. Upon the determination of the Department of Natural 
Resources that the affected lands have been reclaimed in an acceptable manner, the applicant 
shall rezone the property to AR-1. 

2. Deny the request to rezone 27.17 of 64.8 acres from AR-1 to I-1. 

Recommended Alternative:  2    Other Alternatives:  1 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
Attachments:  1.   Zoning Map Amendment  

430

Item XVI. 14.



 STATE OF GEORGIA 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY 

 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO. 

394-29 & 30 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO.  

394-29 & 30 

 

 AND TO REPEAL ALL OTHER ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH. 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Effingham County Board of Commissioners in regular meeting assembled and pursuant to lawful 

authority thereof: 

WHEREAS THE MCGRALEY CO. AS AGENT FOR RICHARD HALL has filed an application to rezone twenty-seven 

and seventeen hundredth (27.17) +/- acres; from AR-1 to I-1 to allow for surface mine; map and parcel number 394-29 & 30, located 

in the 4th commissioner district, and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on November 1, 2022 and notice of said hearing having been published in the 

Effingham County Herald on October 5, 2022; and 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Effingham County Planning Board, notice of said hearing having been 

published in the Effingham County Herald on September 28, 2022; and 

IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED THAT twenty-seven and seventeen hundredth (27.17) +/- acres; map and parcel number 394-

29 & 30, located in the 4th commissioner district is rezoned from AR-1 to I-1, with the following conditions: 

1. This rezoning allows a surface mine only. No other I-1 uses are allowed. 

2. A wetlands delineation and the state mining permit shall be submitted to Development Services. 

3. Applicant shall meet with the county engineer to set the scope of the Traffic Impact Assessment. 

4. Applicant shall obtain a Timber Permit prior to removal of any trees outside the buffer area. 

5. The surface mine site shall meet the requirements of Section 3.17- Excavation, mining, ponds, and fills of land and/or state federal 

jurisdictional waters or wetlands, Section 3.17.5 Surface Mine Operations – Road Maintenance Requirements, and Sec. 74-8 Designated 

Truck Routes. 

6. The applicant shall notify Development Services at the time of final reclamation of the surface mine and close-out of this mining 

operation. Upon the determination of the Department of Natural Resources that the affected lands have been reclaimed in an acceptable 

manner, the applicant shall rezone the property to AR-1. 

All ordinances or part of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

This ______ day of ________________, 20____ 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

      EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

      BY:  _______________________________ 

               WESLEY CORBITT, CHAIRMAN 

 

 

ATTEST:       FIRST/SECOND READING:  ______________  

  

___________________________ 

STEPHANIE JOHNSON 

COUNTY CLERK 

431

Item XVI. 14.



Staff Report            

Subject:  Sketch Plan (First District) 
Author:  Teresa Concannon, AICP, Planning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: November 1, 2022 
Item Description: Daniel Ben-Yisrael as Agent for Effingham County Industrial Development 
Authority requests approval of a sketch plan for “Parker’s Convenience Store – Old River Road”. Located 
on Old River Road, zoned B-3. Map# 330 Parcel# 46 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends approval of a sketch plan for “Parker’s Convenience 
Store – Old River Road”. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  

• The request for approval of a sketch plan is a requirement of Appendix B – Subdivision Regulations, 
Article V-Plan and Plat Requirements, Section 5.1 – Sketch Plan. 
The purpose of a sketch plan is to provide both the applicant and the county an opportunity to review 
the proposed development before significant financial resources have been invested. Therefore, the 
sketch plan does not require the certification of an engineer, surveyor, or other professional. Existing 
features, including water bodies, wetlands, and flood zone limits, are required to be surveyed for the 
sketch plan.   

• Development Services and DPH staff met with the development team on June 10 via teleconference, 
and discussed access management and stormwater requirements.   

• The applicant proposes to obtain water service from the Industrial Development Authority. 
• All proposed driveways are on county roads. Encroachment permits will be required for site 

development approval. A Traffic Impact Assessment will be required, to identify any needed turn 
lanes and road improvements. 

• A 30’ vegetative buffer is required on the northern and eastern boundaries with AR properties. 
• After Sketch Plan approval, staff will follow-up with a Notice to Proceed, summarizing requirements 

and recommendations. 
• At the October 17, 2022 Planning Board meeting, Ryan Thompson made a motion to approve a sketch 

plan for “Parker’s Convenience Store – Old River Road”, with the added condition: 
1. The Traffic Impact Analysis must justify accommodation of two additional full movement access points 

on Old River Road. If these access points are not justified by the TIA, one full movement access point 
must be restricted to right-in/right-out only.  

• The motion was seconded by Brad Smith and carried unanimously. 
 

Alternatives  
1. Approve request for a sketch plan for: “Parker’s Convenience Store – Old River Road”. 
2. Deny the request of a sketch plan for: “Parker’s Convenience Store – Old River Road”. 
 
Recommended Alternative:  1   Other Alternatives:  2 
 
Department Review:  Development Services FUNDING: N/A 
 
Attachments:  1. Sketch Plan Application 3. Aerial Photograph  

2. Sketch Plan 

 
 
 

432

Item XVI. 15.



433

Item XVI. 15.



434

Item XVI. 15.



435

Item XVI. 15.



436

Item XVI. 15.



437

Item XVI. 15.



438

Item XVI. 15.



439

Item XVI. 15.



440

Item XVI. 15.


	Top
	Item X. 1.	WTOC Recruitment Plan
	WTOC staff report (11.012022) CH
	WTOC Plan

	Item X. 2.	Enterprise Vehicles
	1. Staff Report Enterprise
	2. Effingham County Board of Commissioners Fleet Proposal P794284
	3. Effingham Sheriff's Department Fleet Proposal P781929

	Item X. 3.	LIHWAP water assistance program agreement renewal
	LIWHAP water assistance program agreement
	LIWHAP agreement renewal

	Item XI. 1.	Howze RZ
	Ansgarhay RZ
	1. 419-1A Howze

	Item XI. 2.	Howze RZ 2nd reading
	Howze 2nd reading
	419-1A_Howze_RZ

	Item XI. 3.	Revisions to Definitions, R-3, and R-6; add New R-5
	Staff Report R-3 and R-6 Revisions and new R-5_10242022
	Definitions_10242022
	R-3_ordinance revision_10242022
	R-6_ordinance revision_10242022
	R-5_Zoning District_10242022

	Item XII. 1.	Retired Educators Day Proclamation
	Retired Educators proclamation_sr
	Retired Educators Day Proclamation
	Retired Educators' Day 10.06.22[20851]

	Item XII. 2.	Hospital LOC Resolution
	Resolution - Effingham County for EHS LOC (Oct. 2022) 4867-9375-1609 v.1
	EHS Letter - Truist

	Item XII. 3.	Oglethorpe Landing ph 1 Final Plat
	Staff Report Oglethorpe Landing ph 1 final plat approval
	Oglethorpe Landing Warranty Deed_signed_10202022
	Oglethorpe Landing ph 1_final plat_BFT-21072 SUB1 SIGNED SET 10-19-22
	Oglethorpe Landing ph 1_LOC_6355
	Oglethorpe Landing ph 1_Signed Infrastructure Agreement_10202022
	Signed FINAL PLAT SUBMITTAL FORM_001

	Item XII. 4.	Approval of New Job Descriptions for GIS
	New Job Description_GIS 2022-2023
	GIS Manager
	GIS Coordinator

	Item XII. 5.	2023 Stop Loss Renewal- Sun Life
	2023 Stop Loss Insurance Renewal
	2023 Effingham County Stop Loss Presentation 11.1.2022

	Item XII. 6.	Old Augusta Road Corridor Study
	1. Staff Report Old Augusta Road Corridor Study 101422
	OAR Corridor Study Summerization

	Item XII. 7.	POND Stormwater MP CO 3
	1. Staff Report Stormwater MP CO3
	2. Effingham Co SW MP Change Order No. 3 Northern HUC Watershed Modeling

	Item XII. 8.	RCE Change Order FDRE
	1. Staff Report Template
	2. Change Order 1 FDRE Agreement
	3. Effingham FDRE Add Service Proposal One 10.5.22

	Item XII. 9.	RCE LMIG CO
	1. Staff Report Template
	2. Change Order 1 LMIG Agreement
	3. Effingham LMIG 2022 Add Service Proposal One 10.5.22
	4. Effingham LMIG 2022 Add Service Proposal Two 10.5.22

	Item XII. 10.	RCE CO TSPLOST Intersections
	1. Staff Report Template
	2. Change Order 1 TSPLOST Intersections
	3. Effingham Intersections Add Service Proposal One 10.20.22

	Item XII. 11.	Tractor and Boom Ax
	1. Staff Report Template
	2. PO Dobbs Equipment

	Item XII. 12.	Fire Equipment POs
	1. Staff Report Fire Equipment
	2. Full tabulation
	3. 1 FireLine Fire Equipment
	3. 2 GA Fire & Rescue Supply Equipment
	3. 3 NAFECO Fire Equipment Revised
	3. 4 Ten-8 Fire Equipment

	Item XII. 13.	CIG stormwater master plan grant agreement amendment
	CIG stormwater grant extension
	Exentesion1.C24.Effingham.Larson.StormwaterMasterPlanY1

	Item XII. 14.	FY 2023 budget amendment
	Staff Report FY 2022 Budget Amendment - 11-1-22
	Resolution FY 2022 budget amendments 11-1-22 meeting

	Item XII. 15.	Tax Assessor Board Appointment
	tax assessor board sr
	RESOLUTION OF APPOINTMENT

	Item XVI. 1.	1 of 7 Cote Rezone
	1. Cote
	302-150A Cote

	Item XVI. 2.	1 of 7 Cote 2nd Reading
	1.2 Cote
	1. 302-150A Cote

	Item XVI. 3.	2 of 7 Kessler Rezone
	2. Kessler
	2. 329-26 Kessler

	Item XVI. 4.	2 of 7 Kessler 2nd Reading
	2.2 Kessler
	2. 329-26_Kessler_RZ

	Item XVI. 5.	3 of 7 IDA Variance
	IDA
	329D-1C IDA

	Item XVI. 6.	3 of 7 IDA 2nd Reading
	3.2 IDA
	3. 329D-1C_IDA_V

	Item XVI. 7.	4 of 7 Eishen Rezone
	4. Eishen
	229A-1 Eishen

	Item XVI. 8.	4 of 7 Eishen 2nd Reading
	4.2 Eishen
	4. 229A-1_Eishen_RZ

	Item XVI. 9.	5 of 7 Griner Rezone
	5. Griner
	296-46F Griner

	Item XVI. 10.	5 of 7 Griner 2nd Reading
	5.2 Griner
	5. 296-46F_Griner_RZ

	Item XVI. 11.	6 of 7 McGraley for Layton Rezone
	6. McGraley McCall
	391-11C&11F 412-24 McGraley McCall

	Item XVI. 12.	6 of 7 McGraley Layton 2nd Reading
	6.2 McGraley McCall
	6. 391-11C,11F & 412-24_McGraley_RZ

	Item XVI. 13.	7 of 7 McGraley for Hall Rezone
	7. McGraley Horsepen
	394-29&30 McGraley Horsepen

	Item XVI. 14.	7 of 7 McGraley Hall 2nd Reading
	7.2 McGraley Horsepen
	7. 394-29 & 30_McGraley_RZ

	Item XVI. 15.	Ben-Yisrael_Parker's Old River Road_SP
	Ben-Yisrael _SP
	2. 330-46 Ben-Yisrael

	Bottom

